SLCCCERA

Employees’ Retirement Association

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING Retirement Board Conference Room
FIRST MONTHLY MEETING The Willows Office Park
9:00 a.m. 1355 Willow Way
Suite 221
November 6, 2013 Concord, California

THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING:
1. Pledge of Allegiance.
2. Accept comments from the public.
3. Approve minutes from the October 2, 2013 Board meeting.

4. Routine items for November 6, 2013.

Approve certifications of membership.

Approve service and disability allowances.

Accept disability applications and authorize subpoenas as required.
Approve death benefits.

Accept Asset Allocation Report

o0 op

5. Consider and take possible action on request from PDOCC regarding call back pay.

6.  Consider and take possible action on request from DSA regarding “Deputy Sherriff-
Recruit-Fixed Term” position.

7. Consider and take possible action on request from CCCREA regarding a mailing to
retirees and authorization for deductions from retiree benefit checks.

CLOSED SESSION

8. The Board will go into closed session under Gov. Code Section 54959 to consider
recommendation from the Hearing Officer regarding the disability application of
Kimberly Jones.

9. The Board will go into closed session under Govt. Code Section 54956.9(a) to confer
with legal counsel regarding existing litigation :

a. Contra Costa County Deputy Sheriffs Association, et al., v. CCCERA, et al.,
Contra Costa County Superior Court, Case No. N12-1870.

10. The Board will go into closed session under Govt. Code Section 54956.9(b) to confer
with legal counsel regarding potential litigation.

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting.




OPEN SESSION

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Consider and take possible action on SACRS legislative proposal.

Consider and take possible action on proposed legislation to make CCCERA a
separate District.

Legislative update from staff.

Consider and take possible action on follow up information received regarding retiring
member with on call pay.

Consider and take possible action on Board meeting audio recordings.

Consider and take possible action on Aether Investments.

Consider authorizing the attendance of Board and/or staff:

a.
b.

C.

Legislative Conference, NCPERS, January 26 — 28, 2-14, Washington, D.C.
Institutional Investors’ Roundtable, KORIED, December 2 — 4, 2013, San
Francisco, CA.

Risk & Liquidity, Institutional Investor, January 14 — 15, 2014, New York,
NY.

d. Protecting Securities Portfolios, BLB&G, February 6, 2014, New York, NY.
Miscellaneous

a. Staff Report

b. Outside Professionals’ Report

C.

Trustees’ comments

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting.




Meeting Date

CONTRA
SECCCERA |
COUNTY Agenda Item

Employees’ Retirement Association #3

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES

FIRST MONTHLY BOARD MEETING Retirement Board Conference Room
9:00 a.m. The Willows Office Park
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221
October 2, 2013 Concord, California
Present: Debora Allen, Richard Cabral, Scott Gordon, Brian Hast, Jerry Holcombe, Louie Kroll,

Karen Mitchoff, John Phillips, Gabe Rodrigues, Jerry Telles and Rusty Watts

Absent: None

Staff: Marilyn Leedom, Retirement Chief Executive Officer; Kurt Schneider, Retirement

Deputy Chief Executive Officer; Karen Levy, General Counsel; Vickie Kaplan,
Retirement Accounting Manager; and Christina Dunn, Retirement Administration

Manager

Outside Professional Support: Representing:
Harvey Leiderman Reed Smith LLP
Marty Dirks Milliman
Dorian Young Milliman

Pledge of Allegiance
Hast led all in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Recognition of Nannette Mendoza for 25 yvears of service

Hast recognized and congratulated Nannette Mendoza for her 25 years of service.

Accept comments from the public

No members of the public offered comment.

Approval of Minutes

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes of the July 24, 2013 meeting with a change to Item 3, second
paragraph, second sentence, to read “The report also includes the changes in the economic and non-
economic assumptions, including changing the interest discount assumption from 7.75% to 7.25%.”
and by changing Item 10 to include the description of each of the 4 items approved. (Yes: Allen,
Cabral, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Telles and Watts)

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes of the August 14, 2013 meeting. (Yes: Allen, Cabral, Gordon,
Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Telles and Watts)

Routine Items



Page 2
October 2, 2013

It was M/S/C to approve the routine items of the October 2, 2013 Board meeting. (Yes: Allen,
Cabral, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Telles and Watts)

6. Presentation of Cash Flow report for the 6 months ended June 30, 2013
Kaplan reviewed the Cash Flow report for January through June 2013 noting the first half of the
report shows inflows to CCCERA and the second half shows the outflows. She reported a new
column has been added showing the percentage change from the prior year.
Kaplan reported the increase to Segal was mostly due to PEPRA costs. The experience study was
also completed this year.
The Board requested footnotes for large increases/decreases in individual line items. They also
requested a breakdown of attorney’s fees (investment, non-investment, tax, salary, etc.).
It was M/S/C to accept the cash flow report for the 6 months ended June 30, 2013. (Yes: Allen,
Cabral, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Telles and Watts)

CLOSED SESSION

The Board moved into closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54956.9(a).

The Board moved into open session.

7.

There was no reportable action related to Govt. Code Section 54956.9(a).

It was the consensus of the Board to move to Item #10.

10.

11.

12.

Consider and take possible action on staff recommendation regarding Lord Abbett — Marty
Dirks, Dorian Young

Dirks introduced Dorian Young who just joined Milliman. Young gave a brief overview of his
background in the industry.

Dirks reported 3 personnel have left Lord Abbett recently. He stated the departures are not part of
the investment management team but it is, nevertheless, a concern. He stated their performance has
been quite good, the money management team hasn’t changed, but there is always a concern when

there are personnel changes.

After a discussion on the departing personnel and the Watch List in general, it was M/S/C to place
Lord Abbett on the CCCERA Manager Watch List and conduct an on-site visit. (Yes: Allen, Cabral,
Hast, Phillips, Rodrigues, Telles and Watts. No: Gordon and Mitchoff)

Consider and take possible action on staff recommendation regarding the GSAM Park
Account

Leedom reviewed the background of the Goldman Sachs “Park portfolio” and the recommendation
to move the remaining balance to the main Goldman Sachs account.

After a brief discussion, it was M/S/C to move the Park portfolio of legacy assets into the main
Goldman Sachs account and the Park portfolio be terminated. (Yes: Allen, Cabral, Gordon, Hast,
Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Telles and Watts)

Consider and take possible action on staff recommendation for an actuarial audit




13.

Page 3
October 2, 2013

Leedom gave an overview of the RFP process completed in 2008 which included an actuarial audit
of CCCERA’s Actuarial Valuation and Experience Study to be completed every six years.

It was M/S/C to authorize staff to work with Milliman to provide an actuarial audit in 2014 with the
same scope as the Milliman 2008 actuarial audit in an amount not to exceed $82,500. (Yes: Allen,
Cabral, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Telles and Watts)

Consider and take possible action to change the date of the November 6, 2013 Board meeting

The Board discussed the availability of a quorum for the November 6, 2013 Board meeting and
decided to keep the November 6, 2013 meeting date.

Educational presentation from Fiduciary Counsel on Fiduciary Duties

Leiderman gave an overview of his presentation materials and the CCCERA policies included in the
agenda packet noting his presentation will be an interactive one.

He gave several hypothetical scenarios on the fundamental fiduciary responsibilities (Primary
Loyalty Rule, Exclusive Benefit Rule and Prudent Expert Rule), the requirements of the CCCERA
Code of Fiduciary Conduct and Ethics, conflicts of interests, disclosure of outside interests, the
Brown Act, and the confidentiality of closed sessions.

Mitchoff was no longer present for subsequent discussion and voting.

9.

14.

15.

Educational presentation on Brown Act and gift reporting requirements

This item was pulled from the Agenda.

Conference Seminar Attendance

a. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 1 Board member at the Annual Employee Benefits
Conference, IFEBP, October 20-23, 2013, Las Vegas, NV. (Yes: Allen, Cabral, Gordon, Hast,
Holcombe, Phillips, Rodrigues, Telles and Watts)

Miscellaneous

(a) Staff Report —

Leedom reported she received requests from the San Ramon Valley Fire District and the
Moraga-Orinda Fire District to provide their actuary with the actuarial information that was
used to calculate the rates.

She attended the Administrators Institute and felt it was interesting.

Leedom noted the total compensation report is still not completed.

Leedom reported CALAPRS has changed their annual trustee training for new Board members
to the first week in August.

(b) Outside Professionals’ Report -
None

(c) Trustees’ comments —




Page 4
October 2, 2013

Holcombe reported on the CII Conference.

Phillips reported he, Mitchoff, Watts and Schneider attended the Public Retirement Journal
seminar and felt it was interesting.

Cabral reported he also attended the CII Conference.

Gordon reported he was contacted by Paladin Investments stating they hadn’t been at recent
board meetings at Milliman’s direction. Phillips noted he received the same email.

Allen reported she spent 4 days at Wharton in the advanced investment training and highly
recommends the program. She reported she had dinner with Emerald while she was there,
noting it was more of a personal nature.

Allen also reported she and Rodrigues attended the Milliman conference which was very
interesting.

It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting. (Yes: Allen, Cabral, Gordon, Hast, Holcombe, Phillips, Rodrigues,
Telles and Watts)

Brian Hast, Chairman Jerry Telles, Secretary




CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION

Page 1

Items requiring Board Action

A.

KEY:

BOARD OF RETIREMENT

November 6, 2013

Certifications of Membership — see list and classification forms.

Service and Disability Retirement Allowances:

Name

Belvin, Marlyn
Buck, Terry

Cline, Lance
Conry, Deanna
Ergo, Allen
Laroya, Eugenia
Lisenko-Messick, Anne
Magana, Salvador
Martinez, Edwardo
Parrott, James
Reardon, Juan
Silva-Leong, Betty
Smith, Barbara
Sutter, Stacey
Tucker, Jaime
Willett, Jr., Louis

Number
64189
38631
D3406
D9500
56718
65726
49835
D9990
40592
54263
48847
62563
67663
46686
53344
46587

Meeting Date
11/06/13
Agenda Item
#4

Effective  Optiol

Date Type Group Selected
08/01/13 SR IT & III Unmod
08/31/13 SR SA Unmod
08/05/13 SR I Unmod
08/01/13 SR IT & I1I Unmod
09/01/13 SR 111 Unmod
08/21/13 SR II & III Unmod
07/01/13 SR IT & ITI Unmod
08/06/13 SR I Unmod
08/01/13 SR II&III  Option 2
06/01/13 SR II & III Unmod
09/01/13 SR II & III Unmod
08/31/13 SR IT & ITI Unmod
08/03/13 SR 111 Unmod
08/03/13 SR I Unmod
08/01/13 SR 111 Unmod
08/15/13 SR SA Unmod

Disability Retirement Applications: The Board’s Hearing Officer is hereby authorized to
issue subpoenas in the following cases involving disability applications:

Name
Besag, David
Plake, Brian

Deaths:

Name
Andrews, Earl
Ashcraft, Miner
Broad, Alan
Bruce, Clyde
Burke, Eleanor
Butler, Blanche
Denny, Richard
Edralin, Gregorio
Fly, Marilyn

Group
I=Tierl
II = Tier II
III = Tier I1I
S/A = Safety Tier A
S/C = Safety Tier C

Number
63004
54223

Date of Death

09/24/13
10/28/13
09/19/13
10/20/13
10/08/13
09/27/13
10/10/13
10/19/13
09/18/13

Option
* = County Advance
Selected w/option

Filed Type
08/19/13  SCD
10/14/13  SCD
Employer

Contra Costa County
Contra Costa County
Contra Costa County
Contra Costa County
Contra Costa County
Contra Costa County
Beneficiary

Contra Costa County
Contra Costa County

Type
NSP = Non-Specified
SCD = Service Disability
SR = Service Retirement
NSD = Non-Service Disability



CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION

Page 2

KEY:

Grunlund, Janet
Helma, Allen
Hernandez, Manuel
Jefferson, Johnny
Kuidis, Victoria
Lowrie, Delores
McCall, Loretta
Mellers, Robert
Minnie, O'Tey
Monroe, Ellen
Morgan, Bettye
Nelson, William

BOARD OF RETIREMENT
08/14/13  Beneficiary
09/23/13  Contra Costa County
09/20/13  Contra Costa County
10/12/13  Contra Costa County
08/30/13  Beneficiary
10/22/13  Contra Costa County
10/02/13  Contra Costa County
09/04/13  Beneficiary
01/06/13 Contra Costa County
10/19/13  Beneficiary
10/09/13  Contra Costa County
10/05/13  Contra Costa County

November 6, 2013

Contra Costa County Sanitary District
Contra Costa County Sanitary District

Perez, William H. 06/22/13
Quintero, David 10/23/13
Robb, Sharon 09/23/13  Contra Costa County
Salgado, Michelle 08/30/13  Contra Costa County
Sawyer, Jeanne 09/30/13  Beneficiary
Schooley, Robert 04/19/13  Beneficiary
Squires, Shirley 04/15/13  Beneficiary
Steinberg, Eric 08/29/13  Contra Costa County
Tashijian, Helen 05/21/13  Contra Costa County
Terry, Arleah 02/06/12  Beneficiary
Vejar, Mavis 10/18/13  Contra Costa County
Vlach, Agnes 02/02/13  Beneficiary
Waters, Lawrence 09/06/13  Contra Costa County
Williamson, Mildred 10/03/13 Contra Costa County
Winquist, Ann 03/26/13  Beneficiary
Woodward, Janice 10/22/13  Contra Costa County
Group Option
I=Terl * = County Advance
II = Tier I Selected w/option

III = Tier ITI
S/A = Safety Tier A
S/C = Safety Tier C

Type
NSP = Non-Specified
SCD = Service Disability
SR = Service Retirement
NSD = Non-Service Disability




€1/22/ uompYy pIeog ‘pajeurung - AHM

TL/cT/e1 uowpy preog ‘uoneziuesiQ - (oA MO [eGO[D Pue 310D Y30q) HOALNI

80/827/90 UoIPY pIeog ‘adurUIIoyD] - s103s3Au] sareSoN
€1/22/50 U0y paeog ‘pajeurnuidy, - QD
01/5T/20 uoPY pIeog ‘@dueuriofs - I NI 02s3Au]

TI/£2/S0 uondy preog “uoneziueSiQ) ‘9duULUIIONId ] - JIeypM Suo

SMIIATY JFANN

SLUSSY TV.LOL

senyrunjioddQ joqIely [ejoL
6002 29133720

sjusteainby % yse) rejog,
jueg Jeonis 23ElS
Iainsea1], Ayuno)
SIUSUIISOAU] SAIJEUIDI[Y [€IOL

2je)sy [eay] [eljoL
}OSSY 189y [ej0],
X] S92IN0sS3aY [einje punjuowuIo)
39SSY IV OOWId
wIn3ay [e3o] redy uojSurem
dwodu] paxIy PISIX YSIH [elol
(e3e891ddy SefoyoIN exj) S103soAu] [eqorD ZUely
swodu] PIXIY [eqoD [ejo],
juswagdeuey }3sSy preze]
QWIOdU] PIXIY J1ISaWO(] [BIO0],
Al pung &runjroddo 399q IySiyozo],
III pung Lrunjyzoddo 392q 3ysiyoIo],
II pung &runjreddo 399q IYSHYoI0],
13249V pio]
juswoSeur]y }9SSY SYoeS UewWplon
orjoj3rod jred, WVSD
OONId
IsSnI], Juauwr)soAu] SUISNoy OID-TJIV
£ymmbAg 1ejog,
£3mby reqoro relo]
(£31mye[0A MO TeqOTD) Yoojul
senuniroddo reqorn uespay
s[deq Isng
sanrunjroddQ reqorn ueSIoNdr
A3mbyg reuonjeurajug fejo],
Irefg urerjiim
W3ss
A3ymbyg orysawoq 1e30L

X3pa1ad)d

v# + 32038 ODNId
%Bh:mdfm\. (s10D) yooajug
£1/90/11 (AP PP

*A] UIUWIYSIAUT dILMB[I
216G BUTToo PV Jusm)saAu] oou.”om

%0 0 %00T 000°6£6°68Z°9 000°6£6°68Z°9 %0°00T
%S Ol %0 (%sZ°0) (zrS‘0Lp°ST) %SS 0 000°‘6b8‘bE ZIs‘61£0S %8°0
%Sz 0) (21S°0LY°ST) %SS°0 000°6¥8°+€ TIS'61£°0S %80
%T OL %0 %910 S0E‘0H0°‘0T %99°0 000°06%°1H S69‘6bH°1E %S0
%990 000°06+ 1
%00°0
%TT OL %S %0E°0 099°60L°‘ST %0€"9 000°90T1°‘96€ obe‘o6e‘LLE %09
%9T OL %01 (%20°0) (sze‘eL0'T) %8Y°TT 000°69T1°S8L SLE‘THT‘O8L %S°TT
%0T OL %0 %Z0°0 0so‘see‘l %Z0°'S 000°ZE8°‘S1E 0S6°‘96b‘PIE %0°S
(%92°0) (215°690°8Y) %t0°0 000°0S2°'C TIS'61E°0S %80
%10°0 860¢1S %181 000°€EL‘ETT TO06°8TTCIT %8'T
%8L°0 940688 %81°€ 000'6v8‘661 9€5°8560ST %tb'C
%6 OL %Z (%.L0°0) (ose‘vse‘p) %E6' Y 000°ZTHI‘0TE 0S6‘96H ‘b1 %0°'S
(%20°0) (0S6'VSEY) %E6 ¥ 000°CHT1°0TE 0S6°96% +1€ %0°S
%0E OL %0Z (%$9°0) (boo‘oLs ob) %96°ZT 000°SSO‘vb‘1T $09°STHb8H°1 %9°€T
%S0°0 0tv'26C°€ %S0 ¥ 000°068 +ST 09S°2L6S°1ST %0 ¥
(%69°0) (b+0°€99°eY) %16'8T | 000°S9T‘681°T ++0°8C8°CET T %961
(%¢S™0) (6ze’ess Te) %8S°0 000°9€9°9¢ 6CE°681°69 %11
(%€5°0) (9v1°920‘c€) %L8°0 000°€86‘tS 9165088 %t 1
%02Z°0 019'eveTI %02’ T 000°€¥T‘SL 06€°668°C9 %0°T
(%20°0) (8ev956) %81'Y 000°122‘€92 8EY LLTVOT %G ¥
%L0°0 LSTTIS Y %LL'E 000°0¥2°LET €vL10LCET %L'€
%170 000°€0S‘8 %t1°0 000°€0S‘8 0 %0°0
(%€0°0) (0S6T09°T) %L6"Y 000°S68‘CTE 0S6'964‘t1€ %0°S
(%10°0) (8+0°+€8) %61°¢ 000‘v++°00T 8+0'8LZ‘10T %G €
%SS Ol %0P %0S°0 9ZHP8I‘1E %O0T LY 000°96Z°296°C PLSTTITIE6C %99
%L1°0 €05°288°01 %L¥'TT | 000°0SS‘+8L L6Y°T99°CLL %€'TT
%€0°0 €81°0C6'1 %EE 0 000°26.°0C L18°698°81 %E"0
(%S1°0) (095‘GES°6) %S8°¢ 000290C¥T 09S°L6S1ST %0t
%60°0 ovb18S°S %60t 000°6t1°LST 095265152 %0
%1C°0 Obv'6+6°TT %IT ¥ 000°L¥S‘v9T 09S°2L6S‘152 %0
%01°0 99vG9¢‘9 %0L'0T | 000°660°€L9 +E€S'€€L999 %9°0T
%10 €ETHELS %tb'S 000°101°THE 192°99¢g’eee %E€’'S
(%+0°0) (L9L89¢°T) %9T°S 000‘866°‘0EE 19299g‘cee %E’S
%TC"0 LGP IE6ET %C6'€C | 000°LY9b0OS‘T €HS'S1L°064°T %L €T
%01°0 0€8°10C9 %0T1°€ 000°006't61 0,1°869°88T %0'€
(%L2°0) (1€ pT1°LT) %ET "t 000°€H9‘6ST 91E°LSL‘9LT %t b
(%50°0) (L2£826°T) %ST'¥ 000°62S°L92 LLELIY0LT %€
%T1€°0 0€8‘16T°‘61 %IE€'E 000°066°L0T 01869881 %0°€
%61°0 StL‘€10CT %69'Y 000°190°S6Z SSTLY0‘e8T %S v
(%90°0) (SSzeTs‘e) %tbb v 0004TS‘6.LT SST LH0‘E8T %S ¥
a3uey (xopupn) (xzapun) s3assy anfep S39SSY jo8re],
1340 1240 Ten3oy JoxrelN 3edre], 30 %
v-a a0 a o} g v

nyd WO-YIyD :Ag paaedaag
€10 ‘0€ J2qudaydag :puy yyuoy untodoy

000°6£6°68T°9$
(3n[eA IR S)9SSY JULIN)
NOILVOOTIV LASSY



Real Estate & Alternative Investments

As of September 30, 2013

REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS Inception Target Funding Market % of Outstanding
Date Termination | Commitment Value Total Asset | Commitment
DLJ Real Estate Capital Partners, L.P. II 04/00/99 7/14/2009 40,000,000 4,076,000 0.06%
DLJ Real Estate Capital Partners, L.P. III 06/01/05 1/1/2014 75,000,000 43,260,000 0.69% 18,958,000
DLJ Real Estate Capital Partners, L.P. IV 12/26/07 1/1/2016 100,000,000 77,703,000 1.24% 19,476,000
DLJ Real Estate Capital Partners, L.P. V 09/30/13 9/30/2020 75,000,000 75,000,000
Hearthstone Partners [ 06/15/95 12/31/2003 3,750,000 53,000 0.00%
Hearthstone Partners II 06/17/98 12/31/2009 6,250,000 (2,000} 0.00%
Invesco IREF I 10/22/03 4/30/2011 50,000,000 13,596,000 0.22%
Invesco IREF II 05/30/07 12/31/2015 85,000,000 39,242,000 0.62%
Invesco IREF III 08/01/13 8/1/2021 35,000,000 16,191,000 0.26% 19,732,000
Long Wharf FREG II 02/26/04 2/26/2012 50,000,000 8,072,000 0.13%
Long Wharf FREG III 03/31/07 3/31/2015 75,000,000 51,706,000 0.82%
Long Wharf FREG IV 07/16/13 7/31/2021 25,000,000 5,442,000 0.09% 19,558,000
Oaktree Real Estate Opportunities Fund V 12/15/11 12/31/2016 50,000,000 55,850,000 0.89%
Oaktree Real Estate Opportunities Fund VI 09/30/13 9/30/2020 80,000,000 37,600,000 42,400,000
Siguler Guff Distressed Real Estate Opportunities Fund 12/31/11 12/31/2016 75,000,000 58,147,000 0.92% 22,518,000
Siguler Guff Distressed Real Estate Opportunities Fund } 08/31/13 8/31/2020 70,000,000 7,700,000 62,300,000
Paulson Real Estate Fund II 11/10/13 11/10/2020 25,000,000 25,000,000
Angelo Gordon Realty Fund VIII 12/31/11 12/31/2018 80,000,000 40,961,000 0.65% 38,545,000
LaSalle Income & Growth Fund VI 01/31/12 1/31/2019 75,000,000 23,188,000 0.37% 51,812,000
Adelante Capital Management (REIT) 0 203,004,000 3.23%
INVESCO International REIT 0 91,380,000 1.45%
Willows Office: $10,774,100 **+* 0 8,000,000 0.13%
** purchase price $10,600,000 plus acquisition cost and fees $174,100. 1,180,000,000 785,169,000 11.76% 395,299,000
Outstanding Commitments 395,299,000
Total 1,180,468,000
PRIVATE DEBT INVESTMENTS Inception Target Funding Market % of Outstanding
Date Termination | Commitment Value Total Asset | Commitment
ING Clarion Commercial Mortgage Fund II 09/28/06 9/30/2014 128,000,000 75,243,000 1.20%
ING Clarion Commercial Mortgage Fund III 09/30/08 9/30/2016 75,000,000 54,983,000 0.87%
Torchlight Commercial Mortgage Fund IV 08/01/12 8/30/2020 60,000,000 36,636,000 0.58% 33,047,000
263,000,000 166,862,000 2.65% 33,047,000
Outstanding Commitments 33,047,000
Total 199,909,000
ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS Inception Target Funding Market % of Outstanding
Date Termination | Commitment Value Total Asset | Commitment
Adams Street Partners 12/22/95| INDEFINITE 180,000,000 91,525,000 1.46% 41,632,000
Adams Street Secondary II 12/31/08| 12/31/2012 30,000,000 30,606,000 0.49% 13,552,000
Adams Street Secondary V 10/31/12} 10/31/2016 40,000,000 3,216,000 0.05% 36,052,000
Pathway 11/09/98 11/9/2013 125,000,000 74,535,000 1.18% 18,249,000
Pathway 2008 07/31/09]| 12/31/2016 30,000,000 14,254,000 0.00% 16,664,000
Pathway 6 08/31/11] 12/31/2018 40,000,000 4,989,000 0.00% 35,232,000
Pathway 7 07/10/13] 7/31/2020 70,000,000 1,935,000 0.00% 69,065,000
EIF USPF I 11/26/03| 6/30/2011 30,000,000 1,807,000 0.03% 0
EIF USPF II 07/13/05|] 6/30/2015 50,000,000 39,920,000 0.63% 0
EIF USPF III 05/30/07] 3/31/2017 65,000,000 52,257,000 0.83% 0
EIF USPF IV 08/31/10 9/1/2020 50,000,000 9,211,000 0.15% 37,741,000
Nogales Investment 02/15/04| 2/15/2014 15,000,000 2,760,000 0.04% 1,651,000
Bay Area Equity Fund 06/14/04} 12/31/2012 10,000,000 11,144,000 0.18% 0
Bay Area Equity Fund II 2/29/09] 12/31/2017 10,000,000 5,561,000 0.09% 3,598,000
Paladin III 11/30/07| 12/31/2017 25,000,000 16,994,000 0.27% 4,841,000
Carpenter Community BancFund 01/31/08f 1/31/2016 30,000,000 35,392,000 0.56% 6,032,000
800,000,000 396,106,000 5.96% 284,309,000
Outstanding Commitments 284,309,000
Total 680,415,000
OPPORTUNISTIC INVESTMENTS Inception Target Funding Market % of Outstanding
Date Termination ] Commitment Value Total Asset | Commitment
Oaktree Private Investment Fund 2009 02/28/10] 1/31/2017 40,000,000 34,849,000 0.55% 5,163,000
Outstanding Commitments 5,163,000
Total 40,012,000
REAL ASSET INVESTMENTS Inception Target Funding Market % of Outstanding
Date Termination | Commitment Value Total Asset | Commitment
Commonfund Capital Natural Resources IX 06/30/13 06/30/20 50,000,000 2,250,000 0.04% 47,750,000
Aether 75,000,000 0.00% 75,000,000
125,000,000 2,250,000 0.04% 122,750,000
122,750,000

Outstanding Commitments

Total

Market value column is the latest ending quarter plus any additional capital calls after the ending quarter.
The Target Termination column is the beginning of liquidation of the fund, however, some funds may be extended for an additional two or three years.

125,000,000




Meeting Date

SUCCCERA | s
COSTA
cOU Agenda Item

Emp oyees’ Retirement Association #3

MEMORANDUM

Date: November 6, 2013

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement

From: Kurt Schneider, Deputy Retirement Chief Executive Officer
Subject: Physicians Call Back Pay (Pay Code D16)

Earlier this year it was discovered that “call back pay”, which is generally considered overtime
and excluded from compensation earnable was being reported by the County as pensionable for
some job classifications, and the County had been collecting contributions on these pay items.
After analysis, staff notified the County that contributions should not be taken on these pay
items, and members who received these pay items were notified that these pay items would not
be included in the calculations of their retirement allowance. Members receiving this pay item
were also notified of the same.

Members of the Physicians and Dentists Organization of Contra Costa ("PDOCC") requested
further analysis of "Physician Call Back Pay," County Pay Code D16. CCCERA staff, including
legal counsel, met with and reviewed information provided by the doctors to ascertain whether
pay item D16 was for "scheduled" work on the weekend. Enclosed please find CCCERA's
written determination dated August 23, 2013.

The physicians asked to address the Board concerning this issue, and have submitted the
enclosed three letters from PDOCC representatives. Among other issues addressed in the letters,
PDOCC has raised a concern regarding whether CCCERA may exclude call back pay at all in
light of the "Stay Order" in the AB 197 lawsuit. Staff is working to analyze the issues that were
raised in these letters.

Recommendation: Refer the matter to legal counsel for further analysis.

1355Wi||0wWay Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.646.5747 www.cccera.org



v Oy,
(JOF‘“;.;«: w""@taé

&

Employees’ Retirement Association
1355 willow way suite 221 concord ca 94520

Wm 3960 fax 925.646.5747

Dr. David MacDonald (Via e-mail)

August 23,2013

Re: Physician Call-Back Pay (County Pay Item D16)

Dear David:

Thank you for working with CCCERA staff on the Physician Call-Back Pay issue. Over the
course of the past few months, we have had several meetings with you to gather information and
gain a better understating of Physician Call-Back Pay.

This letter is to follow-up on the meeting held on August 8, 2013 and documentation provided to
CCCERA subsequently by Dr. David Goldstein, Chief Medical Officer of the Contra Costa
Regional Medical Center and Health Centers. We appreciate all the information and
documentation you and Dr. Goldstein have provided. As agreed, we have reviewed
documentation pertaining to one member (with the member's consent) as a sample.

As we have discussed, in late 1997 when the CCCERA Retirement Board first considered
including some call-back pay as “compensation earnable” for retirement purposes, the Board
adopted a policy that included call-back pay for physicians only if it was “pay for scheduled work
on a weekend”. Since 1998, however, the County reported all call-back pay as pensionable. In
June 2013, CCCERA informed the auditor-controller’s office and active CCCERA members who
have received call-back pay that call-back pay will no longer be included as compensation for
retirement purposes and should not be reported as pensionable to CCCERA.

The purpose of the meeting in August 2013 was to provide information regarding whether and
how Physician Call-Back Pay (County pay code D16) is scheduled to be worked. If scheduled on
a weekend, the Physicians argued, the call-back pay should be included for retirement purposes.
Dr. Goldstein presented timesheets and on-call schedules for a sample member during a sample
time period to show what work was scheduled on a weekend. Additional timesheets and schedules
were provided to CCCERA in the days and weeks following the meeting.

CCCERA staff has reviewed the documentation provided and found that, with some minor
exceptions, the on-call time on the timesheets for weekends and holidays corresponds to the on-
call schedules for the sample member during the sample time period. The call-back pay, on the
other hand, does not correspond to any time on the schedule (other than it was, for the most part,
during time that the member was scheduled to be on-call). Since we cannot confirm that any of
the call-back pay was scheduled to be worked on a weekend, we cannot include any
compensation reported under pay code D16 as compensation for retirement purposes under the
current compensation policy.




Dr. David MacDonald
Avgust 23, 2013
Page 2

As we discussed, the argument that call-worked (i.e., call back) is an extension of being on call
and should be included on that basis is something the Retirement Board considered in 1997 and
reaffirmed in 1999. Time for being on-call was to be included, while time for being called back
(even if it results from being on-call) is overtime and pay for such time should be excluded.

As mentioned during our meeting, since call back pay is a form of payment for overtime work,
regular overtime rules apply. Under statutes and Board policy, overtime is generally excluded
from compensation for retirement purposes (Govt. Code § 31461.6). The exception is that pay
for mandatory overtime that the employer requires all employees in the same job classification to
work is included in compensation for retirement purposes.' As we discussed, the County is well
aware of this overtime exclusion and the exception. For the purposes of this inquiry, however,
CCCERA staff has limited its inquiry to whether or not any of the call-back pay is “pay for
scheduled work on a weekend” as directed by the standard adopted by the Board in 1997.

If you would like the Retirement Board to reconsider its position, please let me know, so we can
put the matter on a future Board agenda.

Sincerely,

/\/)%/mz oo

Marilyn Ledd
Retirement Chief Executive Officer

Ce:; Dr, David Goldstein

! Government Code Section 31461.6 defines “compensation earnable” follows: ““‘Compensation earnable’ shall not
include overtime premium pay other than premium pay for hours worked within the normally scheduled or regular
working hours that are in excess of the statutory maximum workweek or work period applicable to

the employee under [the Fair Labor Standards Act].” Government Code Section 31461 defines “compensation
earnable” as: “the average compensation . . . for the period under consideration upon the basis of the average
number of days ordinarily worked by persons in the same grade or class of positions during the period, and at the
same rate of pay.” We have referred you to the Stevenson case, Stevenson v. Board of Retirement of OCERS, 186
Cal. App. 4th 498 (2010)), in which the court upheld the retirement board’s determination that overtime pay was not
“compensation earnable” because it was not required of and worked by all members of the job classification.




LEONARD CARDER, LLP

LEONARD | CARDER

Oakland, CA 94612

s . . Telephone: (510) 272-0169

REPRESENTING UNIONS: WORKERS, AND BENEFIT PLANS Fax: (510) 272-0174
www.leonardcarder.com

File No. 663-2

October 24, 2013

Board of Retirement

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association
1335 Willow Way, Suite 221

Concord, CA 94520

Re:  Physician Call-Back Pay

Dear Members of the Board:

We write on behalf of the Physicians and Dentists Organization of Contra Costa (“PDOCC”)
regarding CCCERA’s recent changes to how it treats “physician call-back pay” in pension
calculations. In particular, we ask that the Board reconsider CCCERA staff’s decision to now
exclude all forms of physician call-back pay, recorded under County pay code D16, from pension
benefits. This action does not comport with the CCCERA’s historic treatment of call-back pay,
disregards the nature of call-back work for CCCERA members represented by PDOCC, and
contradicts prior Board policy regarding call-back pay.

By way of background, in its implementation of Ventura County Deputy Sheriffs’ Assn. v.
Board of Retirement of Ventura County Employees’ Retirement Assn. (1997) 16 Cal.4th 483, the
Board in 1997 determined that what was then County pay code 19 for “Call Back/Weekend” would
be included as retirement compensation. As it was described in the policy adopted by the Board on
December 5, 1997, this was “[play to med. Personnel if called in on weekend or after hours due to
patient illness™ and the policy further stated that it would “[i]nclude those that are scheduled” but
“[e]xclude those not scheduled.” (See Attachment A.) Subsequent documents identifying County
pay code 19 as includible pay for purposes of implementing the Ventura decision—e.g., the Paulson
settlement agreement—note that “[w]e understand that this pay item has been used to report time
both scheduled and unscheduled. In [sic] this pay item should be used to report pay for scheduled
work on a weekend.” (Attachment B.)

However, for reasons that remain unexplained to PDOCC, it appears that CCCERA has
collected contributions on all call-back pay since implementing its policy in 1997 and has included
call-back pay as compensation in retirement calculations. This has been the case for years now and
numerous physicians and other employees have retired with call-back pay included in their pension

calculations.

Although CCCERA has for more than 15 years collected contributions on call-back pay and
has included call-back pay in pension calculations, on June 19, 2013, CCCERA announced that it

Wit OFFICES I Say FRANCISCO AND OAKLAND




CCCERA Board of Retirement
October 23, 2013
Page 2 of 4

would cease doing so. Additionally, CCCERA made its decision retroactive to April 2013, stating
that retirement calculations finalized in April 2013 already excluded these payments. Given the
extensive period of time that CCCERA has collected contributions on call-back pay and included it
in pension calculations, this sudden shift came as a surprise to many CCCERA members, and it was
made without any warning or notice to them. This change significantly affected the retirement
benefits of several employees—including PDOCC members—who were contemplating or planned
on retiring and who have opted not to retire at this time because of CCCERA’s apparent change in

policy.

Upon hearing about the retirement system’s new treatment of call-back pay, PDOCC
contacted CCCERA to understand why this change had been made and to explain why PDOCC
believed physician call back should continue to be included as pensionable. After several meetings
with CCCERA staff to discuss the treatment of physician call-back pay, CCCERA staff informed
PDOCC that it would not include any physician call-back pay as compensation for retirement
purposes. Staff informed PDOCC that “[s]ince we cannot confirm that any of the call-back pay was
scheduled to be worked on a weekend, we cannot include any compensation reported under pay
code D16 as compensation for retirement purposes under the current compensation policy.”
(Attachment C.)

PDOCC submits that there are several problems with CCCERA staff’s determination
regarding physician call-back pay.

First, CCCERA has for many years now been collecting contributions and making pension
calculations based on the inclusion of physician call-back pay. Given CCCERA’s longstanding
practice, PDOCC members have come to understand that this was consistent with CCCERA policy
and to rely on the inclusion of physician call-back pay in their future pension calculations. At no
point were PDOCC or PDOCC members informed by CCCERA or the County that physician call-
back was not pensionable or that scheduled and unscheduled call back needed to be recorded
separately in order for call back to be pensionable. For CCCERA to change direction now and
exclude call-back pay would be inequitable and unfair to longstanding CCCERA members who
understood from the retirement association’s own actions that it would be included. Moreover,
since this present change affects so-called “legacy” members (as opposed to new “PEPRA”
members), it would be contrary to the Board’s decision to stay all changes to its treatment of
retirement compensation, including call-back pay, while the A.B. 197 litigation is pending.

Second, for physicians, there is little difference between on-call work and call-back work—
the primary distinction being whether the physician is physically at the facility or not. Because on-
call duty and call-back work (also referred to by physicians as “call worked”) are inextricably
intertwined, there is good reason to include them both as pensionable compensation.

As a required part of their duties, physicians in the Family Medicine, Surgery, Internal
Medicine, and Critical Care departments must perform both on-call and call-back work. Each
physician is scheduled to be on call, which requires them to provide consultation and management
of patient care issues by phone and to be available to come in to the hospital or clinics in person.
Physicians on call, then, are actively working while on call and not simply waiting to be called in to




CCCERA Board of Retirement
October 23, 2013
Page 3 of 4

perform work. When they do come in to the facility while on call, this is an extension of the patient
management they are already performing remotely, and at all times the compensation they receive is
for necessary services rendered, consistent with CCCERA’s policy for determining which pay items
are pensionable compensation. Because this work is normally expected to be worked, occurs within
a scheduled period of time, and simply reflects a difference in whether the physician is performing
the work in person or remotely, it should not be excluded, just as on-call pay is not excluded.

Third, CCCERA staff’s decision contradicts CCCERA’s policy regarding scheduled
weekend physician call back. (See Attachment A.) CCCERA’s current policy is that scheduled
physician call-back work is includible compensation. But CCCERA’s decision excludes all
physician call back, even scheduled weekend call back, making it overbroad and a violation of

CCCERA’s own policies.

When a physician is scheduled to be on call during a weekend or holiday, the physician is
required to come in to the hospital to manage inpatient services, and this is an inherent part of the
weekend on-call duty. Physicians with weekend on call work must come in to the facility, because
they are the only physicians in charge of patient care during that time. Accordingly, they perform
rounds and other care management that is normally performed by on duty physicians during the
regular workweek. Thus, unlike being on call during the regular workweek, physicians on call
during the weekend must be physically present for some portion of the on-call time.

Weekend call-back work is scheduled, because the call worked is a required component of
weekend on call, which is scheduled as discussed above. Every time a physician has weekend on
call duty, he or she comes in to the facility in the morning to do rounds and other work, recording
this time as physician call worked, and only afterwards is the physician free to attend to other
things. The only instance in which weekend call worked would not be scheduled is if the physician
were called in unexpectedly either before or after having finished his or her duties at the facility for
the day. However, this has historically been a small percentage of weekend call worked.

Physician on call and call back at Contra Costa County has been conducted in this manner
for decades, including well before the adoption of CCCERA’s 1997 policy. In other words, this is
precisely the system in place when CCCERA adopted its policy in 1997, and this is the work that
was envisioned to be included when CCCERA decided that scheduled weekend work for physicians
must be included in pension calculations.

There is no reason this scheduled weekend call back should be excluded given CCCERA’s
policy. The justification offered in CCCERA’s August 23 letter is that staff “cannot confirm that
any of the call-back pay was scheduled to be worked on a weekend,” however this is not the case.
Although all physician call-back pay has been reported together, it is still possible to compare a
retiring physicians’ call worked with his or her schedule and time sheets to determine what portion
of it was worked on a weekend or holiday and thus performed as required by the on-call duty. To
the extent some of this time is the result of unscheduled call back work also performed on the
weekend, that will constitute only a small portion of this time and it may be possible to estimate or
agree to some average percentage of time that would be attributable to unscheduled weekend call.




CCCERA Board of Retirement
October 23, 2013
Page 4 of 4

Finally, there has been no indication what CCCERA intends to do with the contributions it
has been collecting from employees all these years but will not honor as includible for retirement
purposes. It would be entirely unfair for CCCERA to now refuse to include call-back pay as
pensionable but nevertheless keep employee contributions made to fund this benefit.

Thus, we hope that you will reconsider CCCERA staff’s decision on this matter and include
physician call-back pay for retirement purposes. Thank you for your consideration, and we look
forward to discussing the matter more fully with you at the Board’s November 4, 2013 meeting.

~ Sincerely,
/
William Corman Axthur Liou

BOGATIN, CORMAN & GOLD LEONARD CARDER, LLP




CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION

Page 1 = T December 5, 1997

The Board of Retirement met in regular session at 9:00 a.m. on Friday, December 5, 1997
in the Conference Room of the Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association,
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221, Concord, CA.

Present: Richard Cabral, R. William Cullen, Ed Fleming, F. Robert Koenig, Louis
Kroll, Mohammed Soughayer for Alfred P. Lomeli, Sharon Naramore,

Jerome E. Hatfield, and Helen Shea

Staff: Pat Wiegert, Retirement Administrator; Charly Barron, Assistant
Retirement Administrator; Kathy Somsen, Retirement Benefits Manager;
Rick Koehler, Retitement Accounting Manager; Toni Warren, Retirement
Office Services Manager; Ed Lane, Deputy County Counsel

Guests: Representing:
Paul Angelo William M. mercer
Bonnie Allen CCC Sanitary District
Vic Westman County Counsel’s Office
Stan A. Williams SELF
Bob Rey Local #1230
Mary Dressel Lewis & Summers Public Relations
Mary Lou Williams Retiree’s Association
Allen Little Contra Costa Fire
Kathy Foster Staff
Sheila Wendler Staff
Alan Elnick PDOCC
Debbié Ratcliff CCC Sanitary District

Ventura Decision - Potential Cost

Angelo reviewed his memo which provided revised cost estimates based on the Board’s
action at its November 25 meeting. He noted that the cost to apply the decision
retroactively was based on the assumption that it would apply three years retroactively to
all current retirees. In response to a question as to whether the county’s 50% subvention
of employee contributions was included in his estimates, Angelo stated the subvention
was included, and that its removal would not materially change the numbers. He also
cautioned that the estimated cost of including lump sum payments at termination was
probably. understated because this change in the treatment of accrued time will likely
influence future decisions to take or to accumulate vacation time.

Ventura Decision - Criteria for Inclusion of a Pay Item

It was M/S to adopt the policy with amendments to refer to the Board’s concern for
continued actuarial soundness and to include Holiday Pay as an example of types of cash
payments. During discussion a question arose as to the proposed effective date of
October 1, 1997 versus August 14, 1997, the date ';hc Ventura decision was handed down.

ATTACHMENT A




CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION

Page 2 December 5, 1997
It was noted that the Walden suit was entered between those two dates: September 15,
1997. Selecting an October 1 effective date would leave the group of people who retired
between September 15 and October 1 with little legal recourse than to sue as a separate
class. After the group agreed that the class in the Walden case could be amended to
include this two-week period, the motion carried.

In response to further discussion on the intent behind Principle # 4 as drafted, it was

M/S/C to amend Principle #4 to further clarify that only the portion of a lump sum
 payment at termination which is attributable to the last year (or last three years in the case
_or Tier I members) is includible as compensation for retirement purposes.

Fleming was not present for subsequent discussion and voting.

Wiegert note that she understood pay items called “FLSA Overtime” and “: Overtime
Adj. Curr Yr.” were not strictly overtime as we would use that term, but rather they
denoted time worked which was in excess of the FLSA definition of overtime. Based on
this, she recommended that these two pay items be included in compensation for
retirement purposes. It was M/S/C to include the pay item “FLSA Overtime” in
compensation. It was M/S/C to include the pay item “Overtime Adj. Curr. Y’ in

compensation.

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned.

QQM L/ Lo £ PFT

/ i) .gaes Lee, Chairman / JTerome Hatfield/Secretary




[6)]
01
\;‘35 14-
Hé 15
joo 16-
\tf?g‘g 18

- o %

NO 22 -

WO 25

COUNTY DIFFERERTIALS ARD PAY ITEMS
NOT INCLUDED IN RETIREMENT “COMPENSATIOR™
1997

TITLE and EXPLANATION . ‘

Taxable Auto
Additional mileage that Assessors receive (2 cerits/mile), in excess of

the Fed. maximum. Also includes $3/day charged to employees using a
county car to commute, '
Lum St gry et
Nurses Weekend Bonus o
Pay to nurses who work a ‘weekend shift

o Tphude Thet phich L'f(’('m b M echlhl

Holiday FPay _ s >
Pay for hours not otherwise scheduled to w’ork.'(“i' G
Geacch Lhecant Coy (441

Nurses Longevity

Same as Management Pay
fhemta l'J:

¢ PIALY)
M8 Lead Differential

Paid to mental health lead positions under terms of the Local 1
contract.

Call Back/Weekend
Pay to med. persomnel if called in on weekend or after hours due to

patient illness. [, Ay Yoo e A Al | G il sy iz si-iodhedild |

FLSA Overtime
Additional pay eligible undet FLSA but corisidered overtime by

employer. ‘

Overtime Adj. Prior Yr.
Pdayroll adjusting entry.

Overtime Adj. Curr. Yr.
Payroll adjusting entry.

Gross Pay Adj.

Used for multiple purposes. Negative offset for SDI buybacks, late
time reporting, late WC clearances. All require negative offsetto
previously . .taxed wages that are to be changed to nontaxable.

, ay

*@‘é 27

tes ¥
, ygﬁ@
(

g},&ﬁ 34

#2 Base :
Used when an employee works a portion of a month at different pay

rate. Working out of class or mid-month promotions.

Training Differential
Flat monthly amount paid to Sheriff staff for periods they train staff.

On Call Pay ) . g‘:‘:é be < hed it
Pay for being in "on call" status during normal times off. ¢

: p cal* Shee
ER Bonus Pay Leclesd,

"Emergency room differential



y g’é 37
\1@9 38
40

o
y& w2
7@5 43
Jgo 4h
g8 45
ygs
yigh 49

\169 52
ygé 53

\t\g‘? 54
\{@9 55

W 56

\1@9 58

TITLE and EXPLANATION

Workers Comp Pay
Paid by WC on account of illness and in lieu of salary. Not taxed.

‘Word Processing Differential '\ Pay for work on keyboards/VDT's

VDT Differential /

Resérve Pay
The regular pay of hourly firefighters working as Reserves. Hourly
firefighters are not comvered by CCCERA. '

OES Differential
Pay for assigmment to Office of Emergency Services:

Grade All Différential

Pay for work on a particular piece of equipment.

Investigator Pay -
District-Attesuey investigators Sheaéts

Charge Nurse Differential
Assigrment to charge nurse duties

Building Inspector Differential
self explanatory

Acting Pay \. ; . [
Pay for work in a temporary assignment - -b S [Qamen EF oG~

Double Shift Premium
self explanatory

2.4y
Shift Pay \ Pay for working eaté-a shift g£Ye S0°F™
Shift Pay Adjustment / .
Hazard Duty Pay \ Pay for exposure to hazards on the job.

Hazard Pay Adjustment /

Board and Commission Pay

Paid to Board of Superyisors while "s tting" in capacity of a
commission, (l\se %‘* 3d S‘w,rr@- %M& -..':[’mns‘aaf-éa#wa Lﬂé"

Bilingual Pay
Bonug for being bilingual in specified positions.

Truck Allowancw
Received by 7 Animal Services and Health Services employees for using

a truck while commuting to/from work.

Management Disability Pay

This 18 in lieu of salary paid to managers under special disability
insurance program.

Court Reporter Pay
Per diem paid to hourly court reporters not in CCCERA.




fei))

. ,/é 62
7 e
Jgb 6

ez 65
Y& 61

‘ R 71
8 i

s 7
Ygé 83
7@5 85
NoO 86

wgé 87

TITLE and EXPLANATION

Sale of Vacation
Value of wvacation time sold back to county annually,

Vac/PTO Payoff
Lump sum of accumulated, unused vacation, pald upon termination.

Uniform Allowance, Non-Safety A
Pay in recognition that uniforms must be worn for the job: plumbers,

painters, ete.

Structural Engineer Cert.
Pay for achieving/mdaintaining this certification.

‘Officer in Charge
self explariatpry

IMisc., Differential

Includes performance bonus }
Pay in Lieu i

Extra amount received by employees who don't receive regular County
benefits and aren’t covered by CCGCERA.

Sickleave Payoff o . ~ , - -
Paid esy to houtly employees, not covered by CCCERA. Als- : gw»kaﬂ o e Nedhra,
Ao CCcerA mimb es bndem cortei—

Goure=éppearance-Pay ' - Londibre g
ntad s, . (120 : '
Pavonced Bibe Swpgort )

Special Bonus
Used to pay bonuses for special assignment.

\4

Evening Clinic Bonus
Similar to shift differential.

Graveyard Pay
Similar to shift differential.

SDI Buyback
Offsetting payments In the state disability ins. pgm. Not wage items.

Rad/Angio Pay
A form ¢f hazardous duty pay. !

Phys. Weekend Rounds
A form of shift differential for physicians.

RN Hospital Differential
Registered mirses .

Incident Response Team

Pay for serving on the INC team.
Lead Worker Bonus

self explanatory




January 14, 1998
To:  Roger Edwards

From: Pat Wiegert /6340

Subject: County DOE’s includible in Compensation under the “Ventura
County Decision”

Attached is what we understand to be the complete list of the County’s pay items, their
DOE code, and an indication of whether or not they are to be reported as “‘compensation”
for retirement purposes pursuant to the Retirement Board’s actions on November 25,

December 5, and December 9

What’s now reported under DOE code 32 (On call Pay) will need to be separated into
those pay items that are includible and those which aren’t. As I understand it, DOE 32
now includes pay for those times an employee is scheduled to be in “on call” status and
pay for time once an “on call” employee is actually called in to work. The first instance
is includible compensation, the second is a form of overtime and therefore not includible.
Because both types of pay reported under DOE code 32 in the past, the payroll system
will need to distinguish between the two in future. '

DOE 70 (Miscellaneous) presents a real problem because this, too, could be used to
report just about anything. We would prefer that there not be a “Miscellaneous” category
at all. This would eliminate the mystery of “What is it?” and avoid the potential for this
DOE to be the dumping ground for anything new or unique. If you feel the continued
need for a Miscellaneous pay item, we ask that this be included in compensation rather

than excluded.

See “Special Notes” on the attached for other pay items of concern,

I understand that Craig was able to handle the problems identified at our recent meeting
which had to do with not enough “accumulators” and an old, less than user friendly,
payroll system. Iunderstand further that testing of the modifications is being conducted
with the hope that it’ll all be ready by the February 10 payroll.

I applaud you and Craig for the extraordinary effort you're putting forth on this issue.
None of us wanted to be in the position of having to modify the old payroll system when
the new PeopleSoft system is just around the corner. Your work is much appreciated!

If you have questions on the attached, give me a call.

attachment

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY

EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221, Concord, CA 94520-5728 ATTACHMENT B

Telenhope: (5101 646-5741. Fax: (S10) 646.-5747




Included

no

yes

yes

yes
yes
yes
yes

yes

yes
yes
yes
yes *
yes

yes
yes

yes
yes

yes

yes *

yes

no

IMPLEMENTING THE “YENTURA DECISION”
INCLUDIBLE COUNTY PAY ITEMS

Code

01

03

04

05
06
07
08

09

10
11
12
13
14

15
15

16
17

18

19

20

21

DECEMBER 9, 1997
Pay Item Explanation
Taxable Auto Additional mileage that Assessors receive

Dept Head Auto

Riteoway Pay

Longevity Pay

Career Incentive
Career Incentive CTG
Management Incentive

Assessors Education

Holiday Pay
Agric.Differential
Weght/Meas Incentive
Lump Sum Payment
Nurses Weekend Bonus

Holiday Pay (1996)
Search Warrant Pay (1997)

Nurses Longvity
Watch Commander

Mental Hith Lead Diff.
Call Back/Weekend

Scheduled FLSA

FLSA Overtime

in excess of the Fed. Maximum. Also
includes §3/day charged to employees using
a county car to commute,

Pay for business use of personal auto.

Form of hazardous duty pay for work in traffic
situations.

Bonus based upon length of County service.
Similar to Longevity Pay
Similar to Longevity Pay
Similar to Longevity Pay

Bonus for achieving professional certification for
certain employees.

Pay for work on a scheduled holiday,
For possession of Commisioner License

For possession of Weights and Measures License

Pay to nurses who work a weekend shift

Pay for hours not otherwise scheduled to work.
Animal Services employees for special assignments

Same as Management Pay
Safety category, form of shift differential

Paid to mental health lead positions under terms of
The Local 1 contract.

Pay to med. Personnel if called in on weekend or
After hours due to patient illnes.

Overtime that’s normally expected to be worked




no

no

no

yes

yes

yes

yes ¥

yes

yes

no

yes
yes
yes
yes

no

yes
yes
yes
yes

yes

22

23

25

26

27

30

31

new

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

Overtime Adj. Prior Yr.

Overtime Adj. Cumr. Yr.

Gross Pay Adj.

AWOP

#2 Base Pay

Training Diff,

BLS Cert-Fire
On Call Pay
On-Call Overtime
EMT Diff-Fire
ER Bonus

Workers Comp Pay

Retirement Allotment
Word Processing
VDT diferential

Prof Acct Differential

Reserve Pay

OES Differential
Grade All Differential
Investigator Pay
Charge Nurse Diff

Building Inspector Diff.

Payroll adjusting entry

Payroll adjusting entry

Used for multiple purposes. Negative offset for SDI
Buybacks, late time reporting, late WC clearances.
All require negative offset to previously taxed wages
that are to be changed to nontaxable,

At times has been used for regular or differential pay
missed in prior periods,

Reported as a negative number.

Used when an employee works a portion of a month
at different pay rate. Working out of class or

mid-month promotions.

Flat monthly amount paid to Sheriff staff for periods
they train staff.

Basic Life Support Training bonus

Pay for being in “on call” status.

Pay for work when actually called in while in
“on call” status.

Emergency Medical Technician bonus

Emergency room differential

Paid by WC on account of iliness and in lieu of
salary. Not taxed

Pay for work on keyboard/VDT’s

Pay for work on keyboard/VDT’s.

CPA/CIA/CMA certification

The regular pay of hourly firefighters working as
Reserves. Hourly firefighters are not covered by
CCCERA.

Pay for assignment to Office of Emergency Services.
Pay for work on a particular piece of equipment.
Paid to Sheriff’s investigators.

Assignment to charge nurse duties.

Self-explanatory




yes

Yes
yes
yes
yes
yes
yes

yes

yes

yes

no

no

yes.

yes *

yes

yes
yes
yes
yes

yes

47

48
49
52
53
54
55

56

57

58

59

60

62

63

new

64

65
66
67
68

70

Acting Pay

Performance Stipend
Double Shift Premium
Shift Pay

Shift Pay Adj.

Hazard Duty Pay
Hazard Pay Adjustment

Board and Commission

Bilingual Pay

Truck Allowance

Mgmnt. Disability Pay

Court Reporter Pay

Sale of Vacation

Vac/PTO Payoff

Vac/PTO Payoff

Uniform Allowance

Structural Engineer
Haz Mat

Officer in Charge
Standby Diff.

Miscellaneous

Pay for work in a temporary assignment. Currently
paid to San Ramon firefighters only.

self explanatory

Pay for working any shift after 5:00 p.m.
Adjustment to Shift Pay previously recorded.
Pay for exposure to hazards on the job.

Adjustment to Hazard Duty Pay

Paid to Board of Supervisors while “sitting” in

the capacity of a commission. Also paid to Ret. Bd.
Sheriff, Planning Dept. and Transportation Dept.
Bonus for being bilingual in specified positions

Received by 7 Animal Services and Health Services
employees for nsing a truck while commuting to and
from work.

This is in lieu of salary paid to managers under a
special disability insurance program

Per diem paid to hourly court reporters not in the
Retirement System

Value of vacation time sold back to county annually

Lump sum of accumulated, unused vacation, paid
upon termination, that was earned in the final comp
period.

Lump sum of accumulated, unused vacation, paid
upon termination, that was NOT earned in the final
compensation period.

Pay in recognition that uniforms must be wom for the
Job. Paid to non-safety employees: animal services,
Plumbers, painters, etc.

Pay for achieving/maintaining this certification.

Pay for working with hazardous materjals

Self explanatory

Similar to On Call pay

To the extent that this pay code continues, it will be
includible.



no 71  Payin Lieu Extra amount received by employees who don’t
receive regular County benefits and aren’t covered by

CCCERA

yes ¥ 72 Sickleave Payoff Paid to hourly employees, not covered by CCCERA.
Paid to CCCERA members who terminate without
retiring.

yes 73 Physical Fitness For safety members

yes 74  Crt. Appearance Pay (1996) Self explanatory

yes 74  Advncd. Life Support(1997) Pay for achieving/maintaining this certification.

no 76  Hospital Confract Pay

no 77  Contract Pay

yes 78  Uniform-Safety Pay in recognition that uniforms must be worn
for the job: safety members

yes 79  Special Bonus Used to pay bonuses for special assignment.

yes 83  Evening Clinic Bonus Simijlar to shift differential.

Yes 84 Holiday ovrtime adj, Adjustment to Holiday Pay

yes 85  Graveyard Pay Similar to shift differential.

no 86  SDIBuyback Offsetting payments in the state disability insurance
program. Not a wage item.

yes 87  Rad/Angio Pay A form of hazardous duty pay.

yes 90  Phys.Weekend Rounds A form of shift differential for physicians.

yes 94 RN Hospital Diff, Registered nurses.

yes 95  Incident Response Team Pay for serving on this team.

yes 96  Lead Worker Bonus self explanatory.

* SPECIAL NOTES:

13 We-understand that this pay item is used to reflect a variety of lump sum payments not otherwise
given their own code. This pay item should be used in the future for only those lump surmn pay items

which are includible as compensation under the Board’s policy.

19 We understand that this pay item has been used to report time both scheduled and unscheduled. In
this pay item should be used to report pay for scheduled work on a weekend.

32 The payroll system will have to distinguish between the pay for being in “on call” status (which is
includible) versus the additional pay received if an employee is actually called in to work (which is
not includible and will need a new pay item code.).



63 The payroll system will have to distinguish between that portion of a lump sum payoff which is
includible under the Board’s policy and that portion which is not includible.

72 For those employees who are covered by CCCERA, we will expect that only the portion of 2 lump

sum sick leave payoff which could have been eamed in the final compensation period will be reported
here.

1/14/98




co,
%,

(;Oﬂ-f V74

Employees’ Retirement Association
1355 willow way suite 221 concord ca 94520
925.521.3960 fox 925.646.5747

%

August 23,2013

Dr. David MacDonald (Via e-mail)

Re: Physician Call-Back Pay (County Pay Item D16)
Dear David:

Thank you for working with CCCERA staff on the Physician Call-Back Pay issue. Over the
course of the past few months, we have had several meetings with you to gather information and
gain a better understating of Physician Call-Back Pay.

This letter is to follow-up on the meeting held on August 8, 2013 and documentation provided to
CCCERA subsequently by Dr. David Goldstein, Chief Medical Officer of the Contra Costa
Regional Medical Center and Health Centers. We appreciate all the information and
documentation you and Dr. Goldstein have provided. As agreed, we have reviewed
documentation pertaining to one member (with the member's consent) as a sample.

As we have discussed, in late 1997 when the CCCERA Retirement Board first considered
including some call-back pay as “compensation earnable” for retirement purposes, the Board
adopted a policy that included call-back pay for physicians only if it was “pay for scheduled work
on a weekend”. Since 1998, however, the County reported all call-back pay as pensionable. In
June 2013, CCCERA informed the auditor-controller’s office and active CCCERA members who
have received call-back pay that call-back pay will no longer be included as compensation for
retirement purposes and should not be reported as pensionable to CCCERA.

The purpose of the meeting in August 2013 was to provide information regarding whether and
how Physician Call-Back Pay (County pay code D16) is scheduled to be worked. If scheduled on
a weekend, the Physicians argued, the call-back pay should be included for retirement purposes.
Dr. Goldstein presented timesheets and on-call schedules for a sample member during a sample
time period to show what work was scheduled on a weekend. Additional timesheets and schedules
were provided to CCCERA in the days and weeks following the meeting,

CCCERA staff has reviewed the documentation provided and found that, with some minor
exceptions, the on-call time on the timesheets for weekends and holidays corresponds to the on-
call schedules for the sample member during the sample time period. The call-back pay, on the
other hand, does not correspond to any time on the schedule (other than it was, for the most part,
during time that the member was scheduled to be on-call). Since we cannot confirm that any of
the call-back pay was scheduled to be worked on a weekend, we cannot include any
compensation reported under pay code D16 as compensation for retirement purposes under the
current compensation policy.

ATTACHMENT C




Dr. David MacDonald
August 23, 2013
Page 2

As we discussed, the argument that call-worked (i.e., call back) is an extension of being on call
and should be included on that basis is something the Retirement Board considered in 1997 and
reaffirmed in 1999. Time for being on-call was to be included, while time for being called back
(even if it results from being on-call) is overfime and pay for such time should be excluded.

As mentioned during our meeting, since call back pay is a form of payment for overtime work,
regular overtime rules apply. Under statutes and Board policy, overtime is generally excluded
from compensation for retirement purposes (Govt. Code § 31461.6). The exception is that pay
for mandatory overtime that the employer requires all employees in the same job classification to
work is included in compensation for retirement purposes.’ As we discussed, the County is well
aware of this overtime exclusion and the exception. For the purposes of this inquiry, however,
CCCERA staff has limited its inquiry to whether or not any of the call-back pay is “pay for
scheduled work on a weekend” as directed by the standard adopted by the Board in 1997.

If you would like the Retirement Board to reconsider its position, please let me know, so we can
put the matter on a future Board agenda.

Sincerely,

s

Ce: Dr. David Goldstein

! Government Code Section 31461.6 defines “compensation earnable” follows: “‘Compensation earnable’ shall not
include overtime premium pay other than premium pay for hours worked within the normally scheduled or regular
working hours that are in excess of the statutory maximum workweek or work period applicable to

the employee under [the Fair Labor Standards Act].” Government Code Section 31461 defines “compensation
earnable” as: “the average compensation . . . for the period under consideration upon the basis of the average
number of days ordinarily worked by persons in the same grade or class of positions during the period, and at the
same rate of pay.” We have referred you to the Stevenson case, Stevenson v. Board of Retirement of OCERS, 186
Cal. App. 4th 498 (2010)), in which the court upheld the retirement board’s determination that overtime pay was not
“compensation earnable” because it was not required of and worked by all members of the job classification.




PHYSICIANS’ & DENTISTS’ ORGANIZATION OF CONTRA COSTA (PDOCC)

P.0O. Box 1803
Martinez, CA 94553
(925) 988-3892

Officers

David J. MacDonald, MD
President

Family Practice / Surgery
Pager: (925) 346-4368
Cell: (510) 409-4458
fpdmacd@yahoo.com

Scott Loeliger, MD
Vice President
OB-Gyn

Pager: (925) 346-4922

Teresa Madrigal, MD
Secretary-Treasurer
Family Practice

Pager (925) 346-4596

Keith White, MD
Pediatrics

Taiyun Roe, MD
Family Practice

Gerard Bland, MD
Emergency Medicine

Chiyo Shidara, DDS
Dentistry

Jon Froyd, MD
Resident

Jan Diamond, MD
Family Practice

October 23, 2013

PDOCC Letter to Retirement Board
David MacDonald, MD
President, PDOCC

Dear Retirement Board Members,

Qualifying the call worked (call back) performed by our members as
compensation earnable (i.e., pensionable) is just, fair and reasonable.

I would like to address two main issues regarding physician call worked.

First: The nature of our work and how this work qualifies as compensation
earnable.

For the inpatient services of Family Medicine/Surgery, Internal Medicine
and Critical Care, members must share in the call duty. We are assigned
call for patient care on a regular and ongoing basis. Our call
responsibilities are to provide consultation and active management of
patient care issues for our respective services. This management usually
occurs over the phone. At times we must come into the hospital and/or
clinics to manage the patient in person. Phone call and call worked are
both active endeavors and call worked is an extension of call from afar.

In addition, call worked on the weekends and holidays is also assigned
work which occurs on a regular and ongoing basis. Individuals who are on
call during weekends and holidays must come into the hospital to manage
their respective inpatient services. This includes rounding on patients,
supervising residents and weekend rounders, and providing consults to the
emergency department, inpatient wards and clinics. It is mandatory

that those on call during the weekend and holidays be present in the
hospital to manage the inpatient services.

Whether or not the work is done via phone or at the hospital, it is still
work performed during a scheduled period of time. Therefore, medical on
call duty and call worked (call back) should be treated equally as being
pensionable income. One is the extension of the other and both occur
during a scheduled and defined period of time.

Second: Did CCCERA perform due diligence regarding the
implementation and monitoring of its policy change?




PHYSICIANS’ & DENTISTS’ ORGANIZATION OF CONTRA COSTA (PDOCC)

CCCERA states that call back pay was determined to be “not pensionable” in 1997 and
reaffirmed this in 1999. The only information we have on this are two CCCERA memos from
those time periods discussing the matter with some detail. Are there CCCERA board minutes

that reflect a discussion and vote on this policy change?

CCCERA states that it instructed the County in 1998 to no longer report call back pay as
pensionable. However, since 1998, the County has continued to report this pay item as
pensionable and ongoing pension contributions for that pay item have been made by the
employees and the County. CCCERA has not produced documentation of its instructions to the
County to stop reporting call back pay as being pensionable. Dr. Steve Tremain, who was the
senior medical officer at the time (HSD senior management team), states he received no
instructions from CCCERA or the County to notify the physicians of the CCCERA policy
change or instruct the physicians on how to document their hours on their timesheets to reflect

that change.

In addition, if CCCERA did instruct the County to no longer report call back as pensionable
income, what steps did CCCERA take to monitor the situation with the County in order to assure

that the County’s reporting was in compliance with its new policy?

Regarding communication with its members affected by the policy change, does CCCERA have
a fiduciary duty to inform its members of pension policy changes that would affect them
individually? What steps did CCCERA take to communicate this change effectively and what
evidence does CCCERA have that it did so? Dr. Stephen Daniels, president of PDOCC at the
time, was not informed of the new policy. Thus, he did not communicate this issue with the
PDOCC membership. Dr. Sharon Hiner (now retired but a very active, informed and key
member of the Internal Medicine Department at the time) states she was never informed or aware

of the policy change.

In the absence of the policy change information, many of our physician members have made
career decisions to stay at the County with their understanding of the pension arrangement at the
time. As the County continued to deduct pension contributions for this pay item from their
paychecks, our physicians had no reason to think otherwise. By default, there has been an
ongoing agreement between the County, CCCERA and the employed physicians that this work
type has been compensation earnable. CCCERA's application of their policy change retroactively

is a violation of that agreement.

PDOCC members’ call worked, as described above, qualifies as being compensation earnable.
Regardless, CCCERA did not perform due diligence regarding the implementation or monitoring
of its policy change of making call back no longer pensionable. CCCERA has a fiduciary duty to
inform and look after its membership. Regarding this matter, CCCERA did not live up to its
responsibility. CCCERA’s retroactive application of its change in policy is not fair to its legacy
members. It is a breach of contract.

David MacDonald, MD
President, PDOCC




October 23, 2013

Statement of Dr. Felicia Tornabene, Hospitalist Medical Director for the Contra Costa Regional Medical
Center:

I am the Hospitalist Medical Director for the Contra Costa Regional Medical Center. In that capacity, my
responsibilities are to oversee the adult inpatient services at the County Medical Center. | have been in
this position for 5 months, and before that | was a member of the inpatient Internal Medicine
department at CCRMC for 7 years. | am intimately familiar with the work of physicians at the Medical
Center, including the use of on-call duty and call-back work (what we call “call worked”).

There are attending providers on call for the Inpatient Divisions of Family Medicine and Internal
Medicine as well as Critical Care every night of the year. These on-call responsibilities are shared equally
between all department members and are a required part of departmental membership. The call duties
include frequent phone consultations from the in-hospital physicians as part of active management of
the patients in the hospital and Emergency Department.

In addition, the attending physicians are required to work in the hospital on weekend days (and
holidays) as part of the call responsibilities. On-call duties are regularly scheduled and required -
including call worked on weekends.

When physicians have been hired into the inpatient divisions, being on call and working on weekends
and holidays has always been a required part of the position. It has been this way for as long as | have
worked at the County. Saturday and Sunday work is not optional for any member of these departments.
Historically, this has been billed as on-call and call-worked—physicians are on cail for 24 hours and, as
part of their weekend on call duty, they must come in to the hospital to perform rounds. In addition to
managing the inpatient services, the physicians conduct weekend cardiac treadmill tests, oversee
resident physicians, consult for other inpatient services, including surgical, internal medicine and
Emergency Department consultations. This is a mandatory duty that is a requirement of working in the
hospital, because no physicians are available to perform these duties on weekends or holidays other
than the physicians on call. Once this call work is complete, physicians are then on call for the
remainder of their scheduled time. To be clear, though, the weekend call worked is scheduled, because
it is scheduled as an inherent part of the weekend on call work.

The inpatient services leaders have reviewed my statement and are in agreement with the content.

Sincerely,
Felicia Tornabene, MD
Medical Director, Hospitalist Services

In agreement:
Courtney Beach, MD

Division Head, Inpatient Family Medicine Surgical Service

Sergio Urcuyo, MD
Division Head, Inpatient Internal Medicine Service

Stuart Forman, MD
Department Chair, Critical Care Medicine Service




Meeting Date

CONTRA 11/06/13
G CCCERA | ssend e

Employees’ Retirement Association #6

MEMORANDUM

Date: November 6, 2013

To: Board of Retirement
Marilyn Leedom, Retirement Chief Executive Officer

From: Karen Levy, General Counsel

Subject: Whether To Continue to Exclude the Classification of "Deputy Sheriff — Recruit —
Fixed Term" From CCCERA Membership

Recommendation

Consider and take possible action regarding whether to continue to exclude "Deputy
Sheriff-Recruit — Fixed Term" from CCCERA membership.

Summary

Since 2004, the classification of "Deputy Sheriff-Recruit — Fixed Term" has been excluded
from CCCERA membership. Other similar short-term positions, such as "Firefighter-Recruit,"
"Firefighter-Paramedic Recruit," and "Deputy Public Defender — Fixed Term" are also excluded
from CCCERA membership. The reason for excluding these positions is that Retirement Board
Regulations exclude temporary service positions from membership. The Regulations also
exclude project employees unless the employer certifies that the project duration will exceed one
year. The County Employees Retirement Law of 1937 ("CERL") vests with the Retirement
Board the authority to exclude from membership employees whose tenure is temporary. The
position of "Deputy Sheriff-Recruit — Fixed Term" is a seven-month maximum position, which is
probationary and does not necessarily lead to permanent employment as a "Deputy Sheriff."
Recruits attend the academy, and those recruits who successfully complete the academy and
become "Deputy Sheriffs" become members of CCCERA and have the option of purchasing
their time employed as Recruits as additional service credit which then counts in their retirement
calculations. Recruits who do not successfully complete the academy within the seven-month
maximum term of this classification are terminated. Deputy Sheriff Association representatives
are requesting that the Board determine that the "Deputy Sheriff-Recruit — Fixed Term"
classification is not temporary, and that it be included in CCCERA membership. This issue has

1355Wi||owWay Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.646.5747 www.cccera.org

Page 1



CONTRA g~
costa
COUNTY Qs N A s

Employees’ RetlrementAssouatuon

been raised in order to qualify recruits who began the academy prior to January 1, 2013 but
became "Deputy Sheriff" after January 1, 2013 as pre-PEPRA members, so that they may be
subject to the more generous pre-PEPRA retirement tiers.

Discussion

We offer the following information which we hope will be useful for the Board in
considering this issue:

L CERL and CCCERA Board of Retirement Regulations Regarding Exclusions
From Membership

The County Employees Retirement Law of 1937 ("CERL") provides as follows:

In its regulations, the board may include the following provisions:

(e) For the exemption or exclusion from membership as a peace
officer member or as a safety member or from membership
altogether, in the discretion of the board, of persons whose tenure
is temporary, seasonal, intermittent, or for part time only, or
persons whose compensation is fixed at a rate by the day or hour,

(Government Code § 31527 (emphasis added.))

The CCCERA Board of Retirement Regulations set forth the criteria upon which
CCCERA membership is to be determined, as follows:

Exclusion from Membership — By Type of Employment
A. All officers and employees of the County or districts shall be members of
the association as provided in Article 4 under Sections 31550-31567 of the

County Employees’ Retirement Law of 1937 (Gov. Code Secs. 31450, et seq.
“CERL”), unless excluded from membership by this Section.

B. The following employees shall be excluded from membership:

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.646.5747 www.cccera.org

Page 2



CONTRA —
COSTA ‘
COUNTY |

Employees' Retirement Association

(1) Temporary, seasonal or independent contract employees who are
employed or re-employed for temporary service or at certain specified periods
each year.

(ii) Intermittent or permanent-intermittent employees who are appointed
to serve less than 80% of the full number of working hours required of regular
employees or who actually serve less than 80% of such full number of working
hours in one year as certified by their appointing authority.

(iii) Part-time employees whose service for the County or district is less

than fifty (50) percent of the full number or working hours required of

fulltime employees at that employer.

(iv) Project employees, unless the appointing authority certifies that the
project is expected to be of one year or more in duration on a greater than part-
time basis.

( v) Provisional employees, unless they otherwise meet the requirements
for reciprocal benefits with other retirement systems under Article 15 of CERL.

C. In making its determination regarding an employee’s inclusion in or exclusion
from membership, the Board will not rely solely upon the term given to the type
of employment. Rather, the Board will rely upon such additional facts such as the
nature of the employment, its expected or actual duration, and its relationship to
what is considered full-time, permanent employment.

IL. Deputy Sheriff-Recruit — Fixed Term

The County job description for "Deputy Sheriff-Recruit — Fixed Term" describes the
duties of this position as follows:

Under close supervision, to attend a California Peace Officer
Standards and Training (P.O.S.T.) approved Basic Academy and to

successfully complete the course of study necessary to gain peace
officer status in the State of California.

(See Attachment 1.)
The Description further sets forth this position's typical tasks as follows:

« Attends a California Basic Academy which includes those courses
necessary to gain P.O.S.T. approved peace officer status

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.646.5747 www.cccera.org

Page 3



CONTRA
COSTA
COUNTY

Emp O))ECS Retirement Association

» May attend an orientation on operations within the Sheriff's
Department

Finally, the Job Description provides:

Incumbents must successfully complete the P.O.S.T. Basic
Academy in order to successfully complete probation as a Deputy
Sheriff-Recruit and qualify for status as a Deputy Sheriff.

Incumbency in this class is limited to a period not to exceed
SEVEN months . . .

The Recruit class is an entry-level, non-sworn class which has no police powers.
Recruits do not have a valid P. O. S. T. certificate from a Basic Academy.

The County has explained in a letter dated September 19, 2013, that: "As soon as persons
in this classification complete their training, they move directly into the sworn Deputy Sheriff
classification." The County subsequently advised CCCERA that if the recruits do not pass the
academy within seven months, they do not pass probation and are terminated. The County does
support the inclusion of recruits in membership.

III.  Application of Board Regulations Regarding Membership to the ""Deputy
Sheriff Recruit- Fixed Term"

Whether a position is included or excluded from CCCERA membership is determined by
the CERL and Board Regulations, not by Memoranda of Understanding between the County and
its employee organizations. Under the CERL and the CCCERA Board Regulations, employees
who are "temporary" or provide "temporary service" are excluded from CCCERA membership.
(Board Regulations, Section III.1. "Exclusion from Membership — By Type of Employment.")
Those employees who are hired for a specific project are included in membership only if the
County certifies in writing that the project duration exceeds one year.

The Board Regulations provide that: "In making inclusion or exclusion from membership
determinations, the Board must not solely rely on the term given to the type or employment, but
must also rely on additional facts such as the nature of the employment, its expected or actual
duration, and its relationship to what is considered full time, permanent employment.”

The "Deputy Sheriff — Recruit — Fixed Term" is a probationary position for a fixed
duration not to exceed seven month. During that term, the recruit attends the academy and does

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.646.5747 www.cccera.org

Page 4



CONTRA
COSTA
COUNTY :

Employees’ Retirement Association

not perform peace officer tasks for the County. If the recruit successfully completes the
academy, they move directly to a "Deputy Sheriff" classification and become a sworn peace
officer. If the recruit does not successfully complete the academy, their employment is
terminated. If they came from another County department into the "Recruit" classification and
did not pass the POST Academy, they are returned to their previous job with the County.

We look to other "fixed" or finite term positions for guidance. The following positions
have been brought to our attention:

1. "Firefighter- Paramedic Recruit" — this classification is limited to a fixed term of 6
months, during which the employee attends the Fire Academy to become qualified for
appointment to the classification of "Firefighter-Paramedic." This classification is
excluded from CCCERA membership. (See Attachment 2.)

2. "Firefighter Recruit" - this classification is limited to a fixed term of 6 months, during
which the employee attends the Fire Academy to become qualified for appointment to
the classification of "Firefighter." This classification is excluded from CCCERA
membership. (See Attachment 3.)

3. "Deputy District Attorney — Fixed Term" — this classification is for a licensed
attorney whose duties are to prosecute criminal cases for the Office of the District
Attorney. The employment in this class is limited to thirty-six consecutive months
from the date of appointment. This classification is included in CCCERA
membership.

4. "Exempt Medical Staff Resident Physician I" — the county advised CCCERA that the
duration of this classification is limited to one year. This classification is included in
CCCERA membership.

5. Deputy Public Defender — Special Assignment — Exempt — this classification is for a
licensed attorney whose duties are to defend criminal cases for the Office of the
Public Defender. The employment in this class is limited to a fixed term of three
months. CCCERA was informed that incumbents in this position are often re-
appointed every three months and could serve for a total up to three years. This
classification is excluded from CCCERA membership as temporary.

6. Project employees are included in membership on if the appointing authority certifies
that the project is expected to be of one year or more in duration.

These examples illustrate that a three or six month fixed term qualifies as temporary
service and is excluded from CCCERA membership, whereas a fixed term of three years is not
considered temporary and is included in CCCERA membership. The seven month fixed term
duration of the Deputy Sheriff Recruit appears to be in line with the other temporary fixed term
positions that are excluded from CCCERA membership.

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX: 925.646.5747 www.cccera.org

Page 5



CONTRA
COSTA
C OUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association

County MOUs, Job Descriptions, Regulations and terminology used are very informative
as to the nature of the employment, its duration, etc. However, a position does not necessarily
have to be defined by the county as "temporary” in order to be considered "temporary" for the
purpose of CCCERA membership determinations. The CCCERA Regulations instruct not to
solely rely on the term given to the type or employment, but to consider "additional facts such as
the nature of the employment, its expected or actual duration, and its relationship to what is
considered full time, permanent employment." Consistent with the treatment of other "fixed" or
finite term positions, it appears that the seven-month maximum duration of the " Deputy Sherift-
Recruit — Fixed Term" position, which is probationary and does not necessarily lead to
permanent employment as a "Deputy Sheriff," is in line with other excluded temporary service
positions pursuant to the Board Regulations.

IV. Conclusion

The "Deputy-Sheriff Recruit — Fixed Term" appears to be properly excluded from
CCCERA membership because it is a seven-month maximum "fixed term" position, which is
probationary and does not necessarily lead to permanent employment as a "Deputy Sheriff."
Should the Board find to the contrary, i.e., that the classification should be included in
membership, we do recommend that the other short term positions be reviewed and treated
consistently in future membership determinations, including: "Firefighter-Recruit," "Firefighter-
Paramedic Recruit,” and "Deputy Public Defender — Fixed Term."

1355Wi||owWay Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.646.5747 www.cccera.org

Page 6



Attachment 1



County of Contra Costa - Class Specification Bulletin Page [ of 2

DEPUTY SHERIFF-
RECRUIT - FIXED N
TERM o¥7A

Bargaining Unit: DSA - Deputy Sheriff's Non-
Sworn Rank & File Unit

COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
Established Date: Sep 1, 1980
Revision Date; Jun 1, 1987

SALARY RANGE

$19.91 Hourly
$1,592.93 Biweekly
$3,451.34 Monthly
$41,416.08 Annually

DEFINITION:
Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties
performed by employees in the class. Class specifications are not intended to
reflect all duties performed within the job.

Under close supervision, to attend a California Peace Officer Standards and Training
(P.0.S5.T.) approved Basic Academy and to successfully complete the course of study
necessary to gain peace officer status in the State of California.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

Deputy Sheriff-Recruit is distinguished as an entry-level class in the County law
enforcement series. Incumbents must successfully complete the P.O.S.T. Basic Academy in
order to successfully complete probation as a Deputy Sheriff-Recruit and qualify for status

as a Deputy Sheriff.

Incumbency in this class is limited to a period not to exceed SEVEN months and to those
individual who have not completed a California P.O.5.T. certified Basic Peace Officer
Academy within the last three (3) years.

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS:
License Required: Possession of a valid California Motor Vehicle Operator’'s License.

Education: Possession of a high school diploma, G.E.D. Equivalency or a high school
proficiency certificate.

Citizenship: United States citizen or a permanent resident alien who is eligible for and has
applied for citizenship a minimum of one year ago.

Age Requirement: Must be 20.5 years of age at the time of appointment.

Physical Requirement: Ability to meet such health standards as may be prescribed by the
County Medical Consultant.

http://agency.governmentjobs.com/contracosta/default.cfm?acti... 10/25/2013




County of Contra Costa - Class Specification Bulletin Page 2 of 2

Visual Acuity: 20/100 uncorrected each eye; corrected to 20/30 each eye.

Hearing: Must not have suffered a hearing loss of over 25 decibels in the 500, 1000 or
2000 frequency ranges.

Background: A thorough background investigation, which will include a report writing
exercise, a polygraph examination and psychological testing, shall be conducted according
to the specifications of the State of California Commission on Peace Officer Standards and
Training; and shall not have been convicted of a felony in this state or any other state or in
any federal jurisdiction, or of any offense in any other state or in any federal jurisdiction,
which would have been a felony if committed in this state,

KNOWLEDGES, SKILLS AND ABILITIES:
Ability to:

+ Read and understand course material offered while attending the P.O.S.T. Basic

Academy
¢ Retain course materials
* Perform physical activities required at the Basic Academy

TYPICAL TASKS:

e Attends a California Basic Academy which includes those courses necessary to gain
P.O.S.T. approved peace officer status
+ May attend an orientation on operations within the Sheriff's Department

SPEC HISTORY:

Established: September 1980
Revised: January 2007
Revised: March 2013

http://agency.governmentjobs.com/contracosta/default.cfm?acti... 10/25/2013




RLS Rains Lucia STErRN, PC
Jim Bickert

- Labor Relations Representative
IBickert@RLSlawyers.com

October 24, 2013
ViA ELECTRONIC MAIL AND HAND DELIVERY

Marilyn Leedom

Chief Executive Officer

Contra Costa County Employees Retirement Association
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221

Concord, CA 94520

Re:  Contra Costa County Deputy Sheriff Recruits
Dear Marilyn:

The purpose of this correspondence is to seek an audience with the retirement board to
discuss the issue of Deputy Sheriff Recruits once again being allowed membership in CCCERA. 1
am requesting this issue to be placed on the agenda for the November 6, 2013 board meeting.

The Contra Costa Deputy Sheriffs Association (“DSA”) entered into a side letter agreement
with Contra Costa County (County), effective September 1, 2004, the purpose of which was to
exclude members of Deputy Sheriff Recruit classification from membership in CCCERA. Deputy
Sheriff Recruits are those members of the Sheriff>s Office that have been hired to be Deputy
Sheriffs, but must first attend a California P.O.S.T. (Peace Officer Standards and Training)
mandated training academy. Prior to this side letter between the DSA and the County, Deputy
Sheriff Recruits had been members of CCCERA.

Fast forward to earlier this year (2013) when it came to the attention of the DSA that Deputy
Sheriff Recruits were not members of CCCERA. The current DSA leadership was unaware of how
or why this situation came to be, but knew that Deputy Sheriff Recruits had once been members of
CCCERA. As it turned out, neither the current administration of the Sheriff’s Office nor CCCERA
knew how this situation came to be. :

DSA President Ken Westermann and I met with you and CCCERA legal counsel Karen
Levy in March 2013 to talk about pensionable compensation. It was during that meeting that we
also brought up the issue of Deputy Sheriff Recruits once again being members of CCCERA. We
were told that the issue lay with the County, not with CCCERA. We were told that if the County
agreed that these employees were to be members of CCCERA, then CCCERA would allow them.
At no point were we told that Deputy Sheriff Recruits were not qualified to be members of
CCCERA. :

2300 Contra Costa Boulevard | Suite 500 | Pleasant Hill, CA | 94523 | T 925.609.1699 | F 925.609.1690
Pleasant Hill | Sacramento | San Francisco | Sanjose | SantaRosa
www.RLSlawyers.com

ST

s




Marilyn Leedom :

Re: Contra Costa County Deputy Sheriff Recruits
October 24, 2013

Page 2

Following that meeting, Westermann and I approached the County to seek resolution as to
why the Deputy Sheriff Recruits were once members of CCCERA, but were no longer. It was a
few weeks after that the County was able to find the aforementioned side letter. By County policy,
if a side letter entered into during the term of a current MOU is not included or does not become a
part of the subsequent MOU, then the side letter expires. Such was the case with this side letter.
We were able to convince the County that the side letter was null and void (no small task). Hence,
Deputy Sheriff Recruits should have once again been made members of CCCERA upon being hired
by the Sheriff’s Office.

With the DSA and the County in agreement, the County submitted a letter and
documentation to you dated September 19, 2013, explaining the reasons why the Deputy Sheriff
Recruit classification should now be members of CCCERA, beginning with those Recruits hired on
or after December 6, 2011.

The DSA became aware on October 22, 2013, via the County, that CCCERA had denied the
County’s request to allow Deputy Sheriff Recruits membership in CCCERA. The reason given
was! |

“ it appears that the Deputy Sheriff Recruit position is a temporary position and is
properly excluded from membership under Board Re gulations because it is a seven month
“fixed term” position, which is probationary and does not necessarily lead to permanent
employment as a Deputy Sheriff. Under the CERL and the CCCERA Board Regulations,
employees who are “temporary” are excluded from CCCERA membership. I've attached a
copy of the Board Regulations for your review. The exclusion of temporary employees is
covered under Section I11.1. A Memoranda of Understanding between the County and its
employee organization does not change this analysis.”

As you can imagine, we felt like Dorothy in the Wizard of Oz. Dorothy is directed by the
Wizard to bring him the broomstick of the Wicked Witch of the West and then he will grant her
wishes. When Dorothy accomplishes that feat, the Wizard attempts to renege on the deal.

It appears the foundation for the above opinion is based upon the supposition that the
Deputy Sheriff Recruit classification qualifies as “temporary” within the County’s definition of job
classifications. I find it only slightly amusing that the person(s) responsible for this opinion have
totally ignored the explanation from the employer that the Deputy Sheriff Recruit classification is
NOT deemed a temporary position! One can certainly see the hubris in such a decision and
question the motivation.

The County Human Resources Department has attached the words “Fixed Term” to the title
of Deputy Sheriff Recruit. It is reasonable, at face value, to assume that “fixed term” means
_“temporary” for someone disinterested in seeking the distinction between the two terms. There are,



Marilyn Leedom

Re: Contra Costa County Deputy Sheriff Recruits
October 24, 2013

Page 3

in fact, objective distinctions at play. The County defines “temporary employment” as follows: any
employment which will require the services of a person for a limited period of time paid on an
hourly basis. Deputy Sheriff Recruits do not fit that definition. Interestingly, in the definition of
terms in the County Personnel Management Regulations, there is no definition for “Fixed Term”. It
seems a term of convenience as opposed to an official classification. It should be noted that there
are other “fixed term” classifications that are currently members of CCCERA, notably Deputy
District Attorney-Fixed Term and Exempt Medical Staff Resident Physician-Fixed Term.

The fact is that the Deputy Sheriff Recruit classification operates as a “permanent full-time
position”, which the County defines as any position which requires the full time services of an
employee. The position works a full time, 40 hour work week. The position is salaried, not hourly.
The position is benefitted. The position is represented by a labor association. It is important to
note that persons hired into this classification must pass a written test, oral interview, polygraph
examination, psychological examination, medical examination, and full background investigation.
These employees are being hired by the County to be Deputy Sheriffs. They are not seasonal help
brought in to fill a gap. Upon successful completion of the academy, they will promote to Deputy
Sheriff. This is the first step in the law enforcement series. There is no objective or subjective
expectation on the part of the County or the Sheriff’s Office or the employees themselves that their
service to the County is in any way temporary. - This is the beginning of their career with the
County. They are no more “temporary” than any full time employee hired by the County that must
pass an initial probation or proving ground. The fact that the Recruit proving ground is significantly
harder than that of your general employees should in no way be held against them by their
retirement association! '

It is important to note that the Benefits section of the Deputy Sheriff Recruit job description
publicly posted by the County states:

RETIREMENT — Permanent employees (working half-time or more) are eligible for
membership in the Contra Costa County Employee’s Retirement Association (CCCERA).

The above opinion offered to the County as to why the Recruit classification should be
excluded states: the exclusion of temporary employees is covered under Section III.1.4 (of the
CCCERA Board Regulations). This citing of the Board Regulations neglects to mention that just a
couple of paragraphs down, Section IIL.1.C states:

In making its determination regarding an employee’s inclusion in or exclusion from
membership, the Board will not rely solely upon the term given to the type of employment.
Rather, the Board will rely upon such additional facts such as the nature of the employment,
its expected or actual duration, and its relationship to what is considered full-time,
permanent employment.



Marilyn Leedom

Re: Contra Costa County Deputy Sheriff Recruits
October 24, 2013

Page 4

I trust that the CCCERA Board, upon understanding the circumstances specific to the class
of Deputy Sheriff Recruit, will find that classification is appropriately qualified to once again be
members of the Contra Costa County Employees Retirement Association.

Respectfully,
NS LUCIA STERN, P
M.

im Bickert
Labor Relations Representative

JB:bg
cc: David Livingston, Sheriff
David Twa, County Administrator
Ken Westermann, President Deputy Sheriffs Association



1of5

http://agency. governmentjobs.com/contracosta/default.cﬁn?action=...

Class Title: DEPUTY SHERIFF-RECRUIT - FIXED TERM
Bargaining Unit: DSA - Deputy Sheriff's Non-Sworn Rank & File
Unit
Class Code: 6X7A

Salary: $19.91 Hourly
$1,592.93 Biweekly
$3,451.34 Monthly
$41,416.08 Annually

Print Job_Information

View Job Posting

Email me when more jobs like this are available

Definition H Benefits '

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

r This is a summary of benefits for this classification

For a complete listing of all benefits for this classification, please see the
Memorandum of Understanding between Contra Costa County and Deputy Sheriffs'

Association Rank & File Unit.

SALARY - The starting salary is the first rate shown on the announcement. Advancement to
the higher steps of the salary level is in accordance with Salary Resolutions of the Board of
Supervisors. WORKING CONDITIONS - The normal work week of County employees is forty
(40) hours between 12:01 a.m. Monday to 12:00 midnight Sunday, usually five (5) eight (8)
hour days. Time and one-half is paid for overtime for eligible employees and certain job
classifications receive a 5% differential, above their base salary rate, per hour for shift work.

EARNED TIME OFF

Personnel represented by the DSA who are in the following assignments on Columbus Day (2nd

Holidays Observed

January 1 - New Year's Day

3rd Monday in January - Dr. MLK Day

February 12 - Lincoln's Birthday

3rd Monday in February — Presidents' Day

Last Monday in May - Memorial Day

July 4 - Independence Day

ist Monday in September ~ Labor Day
September 9 - Admissions Day

2nd Monday in October - Columbus Day
November 11 - Veterans' Day

4th Thursday in November - Thanksgiving Day
4th Friday in November - day after Thanksgiving
December 25 — Christmas Day

3 Personal Floating Holidays (accrued at a rate of 2 hours per month)

10/23/2013 9:44 AM



20f5

http://agency. governmentjobs.com/contracosta/default.cfm?action=...

Monday in October), Admission Day (September 9) or Lincoln's Day (February 12), will not
celebrate a holiday on those days, but will accrue personal holiday credits:

o Investigation Division (except Orinda contract officers)
Criminalistics Division
Administration Division

©

Coroner's Division

Detention Division (Bureau of Administrative Services only)
Technical Services Division (Civil Unit)

Vacation
**For employees hired prior to January 1, 1983.
Length of Monthly Yearly Vacation Maximum Allowance
Service Accruals Allowance

fUnder 11 years (10 hours 3 weeks {240 hrs (6 weeks)

11 years 10-2/3 hours 3 weeks+1 day jgss;‘rs (6 weeks+2

12 years 11-1/3 hours 3 weeks+2 days 3;3;)"—5 (6 weeks+4

13 years 12 hours {3 weeks+3 days jgg)hrs (7 weeks+1

14 years 12-2/3 hours 3 weeks+4 days ggjsl;rs (7 weeks+3

\15 thru 19 years {13-1/3 hours

IZ weeks

|320 hrs (8 weeks)

‘20 thru 24 years R-2/3 hours

E weeks

’400 hrs (10 weeks)

f25 thru 29 years [20 hours

B weeks

’480 hrs (12 weeks)

130 years and up 15-1/3 hours

’7 weeks

\560 hrs (14 weeks)

**For employees hired on or after January 1, 1983.

Length of Monthly Yearly Vacation Maximum Allowance
Service Accruals Allowance
H\der 5 years [6-2/3 hours |2 weeks (160 hrs (4 weeks)
[5 thru 10 years ’10 hours {3 weeks I240 hrs (6 weeks)
11 years 10-2/3 hours 3 weeks+1 day igss?rs (6 weeks+2
12 years 11-1/3 hours 3 weeks+2 days g:jsl;rs (6 weeks+4
13 years 12 hours 3 weeks+3 days ggs)hrs (7 weeks+1
14 years 12-2/3 hours 3 weeks+4 days 32;15;\rs (7 weeks+3

[15 thru 19 years [13—1/3 hours

|4 weeks

1320 hrs (8 weeks)

[20 thru 24 years |16-2/3 hours

{5 weeks

[400 hrs (10 weeks)

fzs thru 29 years [20 hours

f6 weeks

>l480 hrs (12 weeks)

10/23/2013 9:44 AM




Jof5s

http://agency.governmentjobs.com/contracosta/default.cfim?action=...

30 years and up \23-1/3 hours [7 weeks 1560 hrs (14 weeks)

**For employees regularly assigned and working in the Detention Division.

Length of Monthly Yearly Vacation Maximum Allowance
Service Accruals Allowance
Under 1 year {6~2/3 hours ’2 weeks E60 hrs (4 weeks)
1 year 7-1/3 hours [2 weeks+1 day é;&s?rs (4 weeks+2
2 years 8 hours 2 weeks+2 days ézis?rs (4 weeks+4
-

+
3 years 8-2/3 hours 2 weeks+3 days jgs)hrs (5 weeks+1
4 years 9-1/3 hours 2 weeks+4 days gsjs?rs (5 weeks+3
5 thru 10 years 110 hours B weeks E4O hrs (6 weeks)
11 years 10-2/3 hours 3 weeks+1 day jgss?rs (6 weeks+2
12 years 11-1/3 hours 3 weeks+2 days é;%sl)wrs (6 weeks+4
13 years 12 hours 3 weeks+3 days ggs)hrs (7 weeks+1
14 years 12-2/3 hours 3 weeks+4 days Sg\t/}sr)\rs (7 weeks+3
[15 thru 19 years ’13—1/3 hours [4 weeks (320 hrs (8 weeks)
[20 thru 24 years r16-2/3 hours [5 weeks |400 hrs (10 weeks)
)25 thru 29 years f20 hours ’6 weeks [480 hrs (12 weeks)
’30 years and up 123—1/3 hours f7 weeks {560 hrs (14 weeks)
Sick Leave

Twelve (12) working days sick leave are accumulated each year (accrued at a rate of 8
hours per month);unused Sick Leave credits are accumulated indefinitely.

As of the date of retirement, an employee's accumulated sick leave is converted to
retirement on the basis of one day of retirement service credit for each day of

accumulated sick leave credit.

AGENCY SHOP REQUIREMENTS - This classification is in the Deputy Sheriffs' Sworn Unit of
the Deputy Sheriffs' Association. As such, employees in this classification are required to join

the union or pay an equivalent service fee. HEALTH & DENTAL INSURANCE

Health Plans

The County will provide group health benefits through the California Public Employees'
Retirement System (CalPERS) for all permanent full-time employees, and permanent
part-time employees regularly scheduled to work at least twenty (20) hours per week.
The CalPERS program, as regulated by the Public Employees' Medical and Hospital Care
Act (PEMHCA), will control all issues, including but not limited to eligibility, benefit levels

10/23/2013 9:44 AM



http://agency.governmentjobs.com/contracosta/default.cfm?action=...

and premium costs. Because the Contra Costa Health Plan (CCHP) has met the minimum
standards required under PEMHCA and is approved as an alternative CalPERS plan option,
DSA members may elect to enroll in CCHP under the CalPERS plan rules and regulations.

Dental Plans

Permanent employees are also eligible to enroll in one of the following dental plans:

[ Delta Dental L__Px self-funded indemnity plan administered by Delta Dental.
[PMI DeltaCare! ’A prepaid dental plan.

**Important Enroliment Information - Health and Dental Plans have a 60-day enroliment
period from date of hire,

**Open Enrollment - Open enroliment periods allow you to make changes to your health
and dental coverage and to add or delete dependents without a qualifying event.

LIFE INSURANCE -~ County-paid Life Insurance of $10,000 is offered through ING ReliaStar
Life Insurance Company to all permanent employees (working half-time or more) who are
enrolled in a health and/or dental plan option. Voluntary Supplemental Life Insurance is also
available to purchase through ING ReliaStar. Employees may elect from $20,000 up to
$500,000 of coverage. Contact the Contra Costa County Employee Benefits Services Unit for

more information.
CCC Employee Benefits Services Unit
651 Pine Street, 5th Floor

Martinez, CA 94553-1292
Phone: (925) 335-1746

RETIREMENT - Permanent employees (working half-time or more) are eligible for membership
in the Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association (CCCERA), The County

retirement program includes the benefits under the County Employees Retirement Law of 1937
and Social Security, and offers the retirement formula of 2.7% @ 57. The staff of the
Retirement Office is available to answer your questions Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to
Noon, and 12:30 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. After hours, you can call and leave a voicemail message.

CCC Employees' Retirement Association
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221

Concord, CA 94520

Phone: (925) 521-3960

Fax: (925) 646-5747

DEFERRED COMPENSATION - Contra Costa County offers a voluntary Deferred
Compensation Plan administered by the Hartford Life Insurance Company. Under Section 457 of

the Internal Revenue Code, employees are able to set aside pre-taxed monies up to 100% of
includable compensation up to $16,500 if under age 50, or up to $22,000 for ages 50 and over
for calendar year 2009. Neither the contributed amount nor any investment earnings gained on
your investments are subject to Federal income taxes until they are withdrawn. Participation in
the program is voluntary. Participants select a designated monthly amount to deduct from their
paychecks and then select investment option from the portfolio provided by Hartford. The
Deferred Compensation Plan is a supplemental retirement plan option in addition to the County
retirement plan. Consequently, while you may stop your deductions at any time, you may not
have access to the monies until you have separated from County service. To receive additional
information about the Deferred Compensation Plan, please contact the Contra Costa County
Employee Benefits Services Unit at (925) 335-1746 or Hartford directly at (888) 435-9670 ext.
100. CREDIT UNION - For more than 50 years, Contra Costa County Federal Credit Union has

4 of 5 10/23/2013 9:44 AM



http://agency.governmentjobs.com/contracosta/default.cfim?action=...

been providing systematic savings and loans at low interest to Contra Costa County employees.
For more information, please contact the Contra Costa County Federal Credit Union at (888)
387-8632. DRUG/SMOKE FREE WORKPLACE - Contra Costa County is a smoke-free
workplace. It Is also an objective of Contra Costa County to achieve a drug-free County
workplace. Any applicant for County employment will be expected to behave in accordance with
this objective because the use of illegal drugs is inconsistent with the laws of the State, the
rules governing County employment and the special trust placed in its employees.

Sof5 10/23/2013 9:44 AM



PART |

DEFINITION OF TERMS

These tenms used m these regulations shall have the meaning mdicated below unless the

context indicates otherwise.

101 “APPOINTING AUTTHORITY" means the Department Tlead unless otherwise

provided by statute or ordinance.

102, "CLASS" means a position or a group of posttions sufliciently smmlar with respect to
the duties and responsibilities. that similar selection procedures and qualifications may apply
and that the same deseriptive title may be used to designate cach position allocated to the
aroup.

103 "CLASS TTTLE" means the designation given to a class. to cach posttion allocated to

the class. and to the employee allocated to the class.
104, "COUNTY" means the County of Contra Costa.

105, "DIRECTOR _OF HUMAN RESOURCES" means the person designated by the
County Adnnmstrator (o serve as the Assistant Comnty Admmstrator-Director of Tuman

Resources.

106, "ELIGIBLE" means any person whose name 1s on an cinployment. reemploviment. or

lavolT list for a given class.

107, "EMPLOYEE" means a person who is an incumbent of a position or who is on leave
of absence according to these rules and whose posttion is held pending return.

108, "EMPLOYMENT LIST" means a list of names of persons who have been found
qualified for employment in a specilic class.

109, "LAYOFF LIST" means a list of persons who have occupted positions allocated to a
class i the merit system. and who have been mvoluntarily  separated by layoll.
displacement. or demoted by displacement. or have voluntartly demoted m hieu ol layolf or
displacement. or have voluntarily transferred in lieu of lavoff or displacement.

(Amended 12:02/97_Res. No. 97/651)

P10, "MERIT BOARD" means the Merit Board of Contra Costa County,

PERSONNEL MANAGEMENT REGULATHONS




T "PERMANENT-INTERMITTENT POSITION" micans anv position which requires

the services of an employee for iregular periods of time. as needed. paid on an hourly basis.

F120 "PERMANENT PART-TIME POSITION" micans any position which requires the
services of an eniployee on a regularly scheduled basis less than full time.

113, "PERMANENT FULL-TIN POSTTION™ means any position which requores the
full-time services of an employee.

114, "PERMANENT STATUS" means appomtment to a position which must be
confirmed by successful completion of the probationary period specified for the class.

113, "POSITION" means the duties and responsibilities calling for the regular full-time.

part-time or intermittent employment of a person.

116, "PROMOTION" means the change of a permanent employee to another position i a
class allocated to a salary range for which the top step is higher than the top step of the class
which the employee formerly occupied except as othernwise provided for in these rules or in
ordinances or resolutions governing deep classifications.

117 "REALLOCATION" means the act of reassigning an individual posttion from onc
class to another class at the same range of the salary schedule. or to a class which 1s allocated
to another range that is within five (5) percent of the top step except as otherwise provided

for 1 these rules or in ordmances.

118, "RECLASSIFICATION" means the act of reassignment or change m allocation of a

0.

position by raising it to a higher class or reducing it to a lower class on the basis of

significant changes in the nature, difficulty. or responsibility of duties performed m the

position.

119, "REDUCTION" is the demotion of an emplovee to another position in a class having
a lower salary atlocation at the top step than the class previously occupied by the emplovee
or to a lower compensation level within the emplovee’s salary range.

1200 "REEMPLOYMENT LIST" meaus a hst of persons who have occupied posifions
allocated to a class who have voluntarily separated and are qualified for consideration for

reappointment under these rules,

121, "RESIGNATION" means the voluntary termination of permanent employment with
the Connty,

PERSONNEL MANAGENMENT REGULATIONS




122, "TEMPORARY EMPLOYMENT" means any emploviment which will requure the
services of a person for a lnited pertod of time patd ou an hourly basis.

123, "TRANSFER” means the change of an cmplovee (o another position i the same
class  a different departiment. or to another position in a class which is allocated to a salary
schedule the top step of which 1s within five (3) percent of the top step of the class
previously oceupied m the same or different department or as otherwise defined m deep

class ordinances or resolutions.

PERSONNEL MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS




Marilyn Leedom ) _

From: Marilyn Leedom

Sent: Monday, October 21, 2013 2:57 PM

To: 'Lisa Driscoll’

Cc: Karen Levy; Kurt Schneider

Subject: Deputy Sheriff Recruit - Fixed Term

Attachments: 21 - CCCERA Board Regulations - Revised 09.08.10 Complete.pdf
Lisa —

Absent specific direction from the Board, it appears that the Deputy Sheriff Recruit position is a temporary position and
is properly excluded from membership under Board Regulations because it is a seven month “fixed term” position,
which is probationary and does not necessarily lead to permanent employment as a Deputy Sheriff.

Under the CERL and the CCCERA Board Regulations, employees who are “temporary” are excluded from CCCERA
membership. I've attached a copy of the Board Regulations for your review. The exclusion of temporary employees is

covered under Section HI.1.

A Memoranda of Understanding between the County and its employee organization does not change this analysis.

If you need further information, or have questions, please let me know.

Marilyn Leedom

Retirement Chief Executive Officer
CCCERA

925-521-3960

This message contains confidential information and is intended only for the individual named. If you are not the
intended recipient, you should not disseminate, distribute, alter or copy this e-mail. Please notify the sender
immediately by e-mail if you have mistakenly received this e-mail then delete this e-mail from your system. Any views
or opinions presented are solely those of the author and do not necessarily represent those of the Contra Costa County

Employees' Retirement Association.




Contra Costa Board of Supervisors

County JOHN M. G101A
1% District

County Administrator

County Administration Building

651 Pine Street, 10™ Floor
CANDACE ANDERSEN

Martinez, California 94553-4068 3 District
V-925-335-1085
F-925-335-1098 MARY PIEPHO

3" District
David Twa o KAREN MITCHOFF
County Administrator 4™ District

FEDERAL D. GLOVER
5™ District

September 19, 2013

Marilyn Leedom, Retirement Chief Executive Officer
Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221

Concord, CA. 94520

Re: Determination On CCCERA Membership For Classification Deputy Sheriff -Recruit-Fixed Term

Dear Ms. Leedom:

Please advise whether or not the classification Deputy Sheriff-Recruit-Fixed Term (6X7A) will be
included in CCCERA general membership commencing January 1, 2012. In our view, the employees
entering this classification should be included as of that date.

Persons in this classification do not have temporary employment with the County. (See Definition of
“Temporary Employment” in the July 1, 2008-June 30, 2013 MOU between the County and the Deputy
Sheriffs Association and the attached job description.) They are not hired into hourly positions for a
limited period of time. As the attached job description reflects, recruits are in a non-sworn entry-level
classification in the County’s law enforcement series. As soon as persons in this classification complete
their training, they move directly into the sworn Deputy Sheriff classification. Recruits serve an indefinite
period of time in salaried, allocated permanent positions, first as Deputy Sheriff-Recruit Fixed Term and
subsequently as Deputy Sheriffs.

Including the non-sworn classification Deputy Sheriff-Recruit-Fixed Term in CCCERA general
membership also would be consistent with CCCERA’s treatment of other non-sworn fixed term and
training positions for purposes of retirement benefits. For example, the classifications Deputy District
Attorney- Fixed Term (2KWD) and Exempt Medical Staff Resident Physician I (VP71) are both included
in CCCERA general membership. It is appropriate to treat Deputy Sheriff- Recruit-Fixed Term the same
way.

Placing the Deputy Sheriff-Recruit- Fixed Term classification in CCCERA general membership as of
January 1, 2012, would not result in a prohibited retroactive enhancement of pension benefits for the
affected employees. Rather, it would correct an error concerning the retirement benefits for Deputy
Sheriff Recruits hired on or after December 6, 2011. On August 19, 2004, the County and the Deputy




Marilyn Leedom
September 19, 2013
Page Two (2)

Sheriffs Association agreed to the attached sideletter “Deputy Sheriff Recruit Change to Retirement
Benefit.” Subsequently, Recruits did not enter CCCERA general membership. In October 2008, the
County adopted the attached “Side Letter Policy” which provides that if a sideletter is to be carried
forward into subsequent years, it must be incorporated into the next MOU. At the time this policy was
adopted, the County and the Deputy Sheriffs Association were in negotiations following expiration of the
2005-2008 MOU on June 30, 2008. The negotiations were protracted and did not conclude until adoption
of the most recent MOU on December 6, 2011, When the most recent MOU was adopted, the above-
referenced sideletter was not incorporated. Further, DSA MOU section 50 “Scope of Agreement and
Severability of Provisions” specifies that the MOU constitutes the sole and entire agreement of the parties.
Accordingly, as of December 6, 2011, the August 19, 2004 sideletter was no longer effective. All persons
hired on or after December 6, 2011, into the classification Deputy Sheriff-Recruit-Fixed Term should have
been included in CCCERA general membership. This should also apply to future Recruit classes.

We appreciate your review of this matter and look forward to receiving your determination.

Very truly yours,

David Twa, County Administrator

cc: Ted Cwiek, Human Resources Director
James Bickert

Attachments:

Deputy Sheriff-Recruit-Fixed Term job description
Sideletter dated August 19, 2004

Side Letter Policy dated October 2008



DEPUTY SHERIFF-
RECRQIT = FIXED Class Code:
TERM 6x7A

Bargaining Unit: DSA - Deputy Sheriff's
Non-Sworn Rank & File Unit

COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
Established Date: Sep'1, 1980
Revision Date: Jun 1, 1987

SALARY RANGE
$19.91 Hourly
$1,592.93 Biweekly
$3,451.34 Monthly
$41,416.08 Annually

DEFINITION:
Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties '

performed by employees in the class. Class specifications are not intended to
reflect all duties performed within the job.

Under close supervision, to attend a California Peace Officer Standards and Training
(P.0.S.T.) approved Basic Academy and to successfully complete the course of study
necessary to gain peace officer status in the State of California.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:
Deputy Sheriff-Recruit is distinguished as an entry-level class in the County law

enforcement series. Incumbents must successfully complete the P.O.S.T. Basic Academy in
order to successfully complete probation as a Deputy Sheriff-Recruit and qualify for status
as a Deputy Sheriff.

Incumbency in this class is limited to a period not to exceed SEVEN months and to those
individual who have not completed a California P.0.S.T. certified Basic Peace Officer
Academy within the last three (3) years.

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS:
License Required: Possession of a valid California Motor Vehicle Operator's License.

Education: Possession of a high school diploma, G.E.D. Equivalency or a high school
proficiency certificate.

Citizenship: United States citizen or a permanent resident alien who is eligible for and has
applied for citizenship a minimum of one year ago.

Age Requirement: Must be 20.5 years of age at the time of appointment.

Physical Requirement: Ability to meet such health standards as may be prescribed by the
County Medical Consultant.

Visual Acuity: 20/100 uncorrected each eye; corrected to 20/30 each eye.




Hearing: Must not have suffered a hearing loss of over 25 decibels in the 500, 1000 or
2000 frequency ranges.

Background: A thorough background investigation, which will include a report writing
exercise, a polygraph examination and psychological testing, shall be conducted according
to the specifications of the State of California Commission on Peace Officer Standards and
Training; and shall not have been convicted of a felony in this state or any other state or in
any federal jurisdiction, or of any offense in any other state or in any federal jurisdiction,
which would have been a felony if committed in this state.

KNOWLEDGES, SKILLS AND ABILITIES:
Ability to:
¢ Read and understand course material offered while attending the P.O.S.T. Basic
Academy

e Retain course materials
e Perform physical activities required at the Basic Academy

)| TYPICAL TASKS:

e Attends a California Basic Academy which includes those courses necessary to gain
P.0.S.T. approved peace officer status
e May attend an orientation on operations within the Sheriff's Department

SPEC HISTORY:
Established: September 1980

Revised: January 2007
Revised: March 2013




Contra Human Resources Department

CDSta Administration Building
651 Pine Street
Cou ﬂ‘ty Martinez, CA 04553-1202
DATE: September 28, 2004
TO: Bob Campbell, Chief Accountant
FROM: Lisa E‘{ti ehson, Management Analyst
SUBJECT: Side Lettdr Agreement — Deputy Sheriff Change to Retirement

Benefit

Pursuant to the attached side letter agreement between the Deputy Sheriffs'
Association (DSA) and Contra Costa County, effective September 1, 2004,
employees hired into the classification of Deputy Sheriff-Recruit (BXTA) will no
longer be eligible to participate in the Contra Costa County Retirement System.
Accordingly, please ensure that effective September 1, 2004, payroll deductions
for retirement benefits cease for employees in the classification of Deputy Sheriff-

- Recruit (6X7A).

Thank you for your help in this matter.

cc:  Kathy lto, Labor Relations Manager 5
Ron Jarrell, Undersheriff
Stacey Sutter, Sheriffs Chief of Management Services -,

g ot
§ 1
SEAN o
A3 Hiy oo,

%3 i
N
s e
i3




Human Resources
Department

Administration Bldg.
651 Pine Street
Martinez, California 94553-1282

August 19, 2004

Mr. Gary Sly, President
Deputy Sheriffs’ Association
1780 Muir Road

Martinez, CA 94553

RE: Side Letter Agreement — Deputy Sheriff Recruit Change to Retirement
Benefit

Dear Mr. Sly:

The following represents the understandings reached between Contra Costa
County and the Deputy Sheriffs’ Association regarding retirement benefits for
employees in the classification of Deputy Sheriff - Recruit (6X7A).

1. Effective September 1, 2004, employees hired into the Deputy Sheriff -
Recruit (6X7A) classification, will no longer be eligible to participate in the
Contra Costa County Retirement System. Accordingly, effective
September 1, 2004, payroll deductions for retirement benefits wifl not be
taken for employees in the classification of Deputy Sheriff — Recruit

(BXTA).

2. Upon successful promotion to the classification of Deputy Sheriff (6BXWA),
employees will enter the Contra Costa County Retirement system. For
retirement purposes, employeas will be eligible to purchase service for
time worked in the classification of Deputy Sheriff — Recruit (6X7A) subject
to the rules and regulations set forth by the Contra Costa County
Employees’ Retirement Association.

3. This side letter does not alter any other benefits that may be received by
employees in the classification of Deputy Sheriff — Recruit (6X7A) and is
intended to only address retirement benefits.

Page 1 of 2



If the foregoing conforms to your understanding, please indicate concurrence by
affording your signature in the space provided below.

CONTRA COSTA i@ NTY DEPUTY SHERIFFS' ASSOCIATION
7 ) /%u{
- 1 ﬂ
TSt 24

J

is phe
Management Analyst

cc. Kathy lto, Labor Relations Manager
Warren Rupf, Sheriff
Ron Jarrell, Undersheriff
Stacey Sutter, Sheriffs Chief of Management Services

Page 2 of 2




- OFFICE OF THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR

DATE: October 20, 2008

TO: Department Heads
Departmental Personnel Officers

FROM: David Twa, County Administrator

SUBJECT: Side Letter Policy

Attached is the County policy regarding development and approval of side letter
agreements with our labor representatives. This policy outlines the process to be
followed when a side letter to an approved Memorandum of Understanding is necessary.

Each Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the County and a labor union
represents the parties’ understanding concerning matters subject to meet and confer
requirements. Though the parties to an MOU may mutually agree to modify the terms of
an existing MOU, such modifications should not be comtnonplace. Side letter
agreements entered doring the term of an existing MOU should be limited to
circumstances where urgent matters need to be addressed, clerical errors need to be
corrected, language needs clarification, or existing practices need to be memorialized.

All side letters require the approval of the Board of Supervisors. Informal agreements
made between the department and the employee organization will not be recognized.

Please refer to the attached policy, which is effective immediately.

Attachment

¢c: Board of Supervisors
County Administrator’s Office Staff
Human Resources Department Staff
Al Employee Organizations




CONTRA COSTA COUNTY
County Administrator’s Office

Subject: Side Letter Policy
Effective: October 20, 2008

Purpose of Side Letters

The purpose of a side letter is to address urgent administrative or operational issues
during the period that a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is in effect.

MOU’s with any labor representative (Union) are agreements between the Union and the
County and are subject to formal approval by the Board of Supervisors. Side letters are
addenda to such MOUs and are, therefore, not effective until the Board of Supervisors
has approved them.

Side letters are used for the following purposes:
x To correct clerical errors or clarify language during the period that an MOU isin

effect.

» To memorialize agreements made during the meet and confer process regarding the
interpretation of an MOU.

* To document existing practices excluded from an MOU.

Side letters are not to be used to address changes in compensation.

Approval to Meet and Confer on a Side Letter Issue

A department must notify Human Resources (HR)-Labot Relations, immediately when
an issue arises that requires meeting and conferring with a Union bargaining unit.

HR-Labor Relations, in consultation with the County Administrator’s Office, will
ascertain whether the potential impact of the meet and confer issue is countywide or
limited to one or more departments.

If the issue will have a countywide or multidepartment impact, HR-Labor Relations will
lead the meet and confer process and may, at its discretion, include representatives from
impacted departments.

If the issue will impact only one department, the department may conduct the meet and
confer process independently only after consultation with and approval by HR-Labor




Page?2

Relations. Any proposed settlement must be reviewed and approved by HR-Labor
Relations prior to finalizing a tentative side letter for Board of Supervisors” approval.

Side Letter Approyal Process
1. All side letters must be reviewed by County Counsel prior to any tentative agreement
by any departmental or HR representative.

2. Labor representatives, Human Resoutces, and any department involved in a meet and
confer process must sign off on all side letters indicating a tentative agreement,

3, The Human Resources Director will request inclusion of the side lefter agreement on
a Board of Supervisors Closed Session agenda, when and if appropriate.

4. The tentative side letter agreement will be forwarded to the County Administrator’s
Office along with a Board Order requesting placement on the next available Board of
Supervisors meeting agenda.

5. Any side letter approved by the Board of Supervisors will become effective the day
following Board approval unless otherwise stipulated within the side letter.

6. All approved side letters will expire on the same date as the amended MOU and will
be automatically extended if the MOU is extended.

7. If the side letter agreement is to be carried forward into subsequent years, it must be
incorporated into the next MOU,

8. A side letter will not be recognized or implemented without appropriate signatures
and final approval by the Board of Supervisors.

9. Copies of side letters will be maintained by the Human Resources Department.




(;ON’IRA

= CCCERA Meeting Date

Em_ployees' Retirement Association 11/06/13
Agenda Item

#7

MEMORANDUM

Date: November 6, 2013

To: Board of Retirement
Marilyn Leedom, Retirement Chief Executive Officer

From: Karen Levy, General Counsel

Subject: Request From the Contra Costa County Retired Employees Association
("CCCREA") To (1) Sponsor A Mailing to All Retirees;
and (2) Authorize Deductions For Insurance Through Pacific Group Agencies,
Inc., For Retiree Group Members

Recommendations

(1) Consider and take possible action to direct CCCERA staff to assist the CCCREA retiree
group in the mailing of materials from Pacific Group Agencies, Inc., to all current
CCCERA retirees at the expense of the retiree group and at no expense to CCCERA

(2) Consider and take possible action to direct CCCERA staff to proceed with implementing
insurance premium deductions for those retirees who provide CCCERA a written
authorization for the deductions and a release acknowledging their understanding that the
Pacific Group Agencies, Inc., products are offered and endorsed by the retiree group to
its members, and not by CCCERA. Require that the retiree group reimburse CCCERA
for all set up and ongoing programming, mailing, and administrative costs arising from
the deduction arrangement

Discussion

The Contra Costa County Retired Employees Association has requested that CCCERA:
1. Sponsor the mailing of materials from Pacific Group Agencies, Inc. to all current

CCCERA retirees; and
2. Authorize deductions from retiree checks for insurance products obtained through Pacific

Group Agencies, Inc. for retiree group members.

The request is enclosed as Attachment 1.

1355Wi||owWay Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.646.5747 www.cccera.org

Page 1



CONTRA -
COSTA E
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association

We address each request separately as follows:

L Request to Sponsor the Mailing of Insurance Products Marketing Materials
From Pacific Group Agencies, Inc.

The addresses of retirees in the CCCERA system are confidential. From time to time,
CCCERA is asked to assist retiree groups representing CCCERA retirees with mailing
communications from the retiree groups to CCCERA retirees. Approximately 3,000 out of
approximately 9,000 CCCERA retirees are members of retiree groups. The CCCERA Board of
Retirement has adopted a policy setting forth the guidelines under which such requests are to be
handled. A copy of the Policy is enclosed as Attachment 2. The Policy balances the Board's
duty to maintain the confidentiality of retiree addresses and preserving fund assets, with the need
of retiree groups to communicate to retirees beyond those within their membership. The policy
strictly provides that no fund assets are to be used for this purpose, and that any and all
CCCERA expenses, including staff time, is to be paid for by the group making the request.

The Policy also prohibits the mailing of material which solicits the purchase of a product or
service. However, the law, as recently amended, does allow the distribution of "communications
regarding membership in and retiree benefit programs available through the organization to all or
a portion of those retired members." (Government Code § 31592.6, as amended by SB 1382, eff.
January 1, 2013.) (Emphasis added.) The law further provides that: "The content of those
communications shall be wholly the responsibility of the recognized retiree organization, and the
board shall not have any liability for the content of those communications." Lastly, the law
provides: "The board may charge a reasonable fee for those mailings, which may not exceed the
actual costs to the system, including staff time for preparation of the mailings." The full
statutory provision is enclosed as Attachment 3.

The retiree group explains in its request that it selected Pacific Group Agencies, Inc., as the
provider for supplemental dental, vision, pet, car and home insurance for retiree group members.
The promotional materials that are sought to be distributed to all retirees state that the retiree
group "has endorsed the offering and administration of these benefits through Pacific Group
Agencies," but that the retiree group "itself does not provide or administer any of these benefits"
nor does the retiree group "receive any financial compensation for their sale." The sample mailer
provided to CCCERA is enclosed as Attachment 4.

The first inquiry in ensuring that this request fits within the plan provision is whether the
arrangement between Pacific Group and the retiree group qualifies the insurance products as
retiree benefit programs "available through" the retiree group to retired members. We think this
is satisfied because the retiree group will only allow these benefits to be provided to those

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.646.5747 www.cccera.org

Page 2



CONTRA #~ p—
COSTA ¢
COUNTY :

Employees' Retirement Association

retirees who are dues-paying members of the retiree group, and has endorsed the insurance
products offered through Pacific Group Agencies, Inc.

The second inquiry is whether this mailing runs afoul with the Board policy prohibiting the
mailing of solicitation materials. The purpose of this policy provision is to ensure that the Board
is not facilitating the harassment of retirees with possibly unwanted marketing materials
promoting the sale of products or services with which the retirement system has absolutely
nothing to do. The CERL provides, however, that the content of the communications to be
distributed at the request of the retiree group "shall be wholly the responsibility of the recognized
retiree organization, and the board shall not have any liability for the content of those
communications.” (Government Code § 31592.6.) Again, these insurance products have been
endorsed by the retiree group and would be offered only to retiree group members. So long as
the communication is about retiree group membership or "retiree benefit programs available
through" the retiree group, assistance with mailing appears to be appropriate, despite the fact that
the materials are clearly marketing and/or solicitation for the Pacific Group Agencies, Inc.
insurance products.

The third inquiry is whether this communication creates the appearance of the retirement
system's endorsement of the insurance products and services offered by Pacific Group Agencies,
Inc. To ensure against such appearance, we recommend requiring that neither the materials not
the envelope in which the materials are sent contain CCCERA's name in any way, and that the
envelopes have the retiree group's return address (not CCCERA's).

Lastly, CCCERA should charge the retiree group a fee reflecting the actual costs to the
system, including staff time for preparation of the mailings.

In light of the foregoing, the Board should first consider whether this is a retiree benefit
program available through the retiree group to retired members. If this answer is "yes," in
accordance with CERL Section 31592.6, the Board may direct CCCERA staff to assist with the
distribution of the materials at the expense of the retiree group provided that the mailings do not
give rise to the appearance that the retirement system endorsed the product.

I1. Request that the Board Authorize Deductions From Retiree Checks For
Insurance Products Obtained Through Pacific Group Agencies, Inc. For
Retiree Group Members

As to the retiree group's request for deductions of insurance premiums, the CERL provides
as follows:

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.646.5747 www.cccera.org

Page 3



CONTRA #~ -
COSTA ~ -
COUNTY |

Employees' Retirement Association

(a) The board may comply with and give effect to a revocable
written authorization signed by a retired member or beneficiary of
a retired member entitled to a retirement allowance or benefit
under this chapter, authorizing the treasurer or other entity
authorized by the board to deduct a specified amount from the
retirement allowance or benefit payable to any retired member or
beneficiary of a retired member for any of the following purposes:

(1) Paying premiums on any policy or certificate of group life
insurance or group disability insurance issued by an admitted
insurer.

(2) Paying premiums for a prepaid group medical or hospital
service plan.

(3) Paying premiums for a vision care program or dental plan,
approved by the board, for the benefit of the retired member or his
or her dependents.

(4) Paying premiums on national service life insurance or United
States government converted insurance.

(5) Payment for the purchase of shares in or the payment of money
to any regularly chartered credit union.

(6) Payment to a charitable organization or a federally chartered
veterans’ organization that is approved by the board.

(7) Payments to a recognized retiree organization.

(8) Payment for the purchase of United States savings bonds.

(9) The payment of personal income taxes to the government of the
United States or the State of California.

(10) Payment for any retiree benefit programs available through
the recognized retiree organization. The board may require that this
payment be to a single party designated by the recognized retiree
organization, either to itself or to a third-party administrator.

(b) Each month the order shall be drawn in favor of the insurer,
institution, credit union, organization, or government named in the
written authorization for an amount equal to the deductions
authorized in subdivision (a) and made during the month.

(c) The board may charge a reasonable fee for the making of the
deductions and payments.

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX: 925.646.5747 www.cccera.org

Page 4



CONTRA
COSTA
(OIN! Y

Emp oyees’ Retirement Association

(Government Code § 31452.5, as amended by SB 1382, eff.
January 1, 2013.) (Emphasis added.) The provision is enclosed as
Attachment 3.

Pursuant to authority granted under Section 31452.5, CCCERA currently permits a number
of deductions from the monthly retirement allowance received by CCCERA retirees and
beneficiaries. The largest deduction category is for premiums related to County and Special
District-sponsored health and dental care insurance plans made available to County and Special
District retirees and beneficiaries. CCCERA also permits deductions for the payment of
membership dues in three retiree groups in Contra Costa County, active member labor unions,
and other miscellaneous groups. Lastly, CCCERA permits deductions for direct-deposits into
the Contra Costa Credit Union and other Credit Unions located within county boundaries.

None of the current deductions are remitted directly to a private third party provider not
affiliated in some way with the county or the other participating CCCERA employers. If
approved by the Board, this would be the only deduction remitted to a third party insurance
provider (Pacific) not offered through a CCCERA employer.

Should the Board wish to allow the deduction, we recommend requiring that:

1. The retiree group will reimburse CCCERA for all set up and ongoing programming,
mailing, and administrative costs arising from the deduction arrangement

2. Inorder to protect CCCERA from potential liability in connection with the deduction
program and the Retire Group's offering of insurance products to CCCERA retirees
through Pacific Group Agencies, Inc., CCCERA should require that retiree deduction
authorizations include the following:

(1) An acknowledgement by the retiree or beneficiary that they understand that
the Pacific Group Agencies, Inc., products are offered, endorsed and
sponsored by the retiree group to its members, and not by CCCERA

(il) ~ CCCERA is not responsible for any insurance products and services nor
coverage issues associated with the Pacific program

(ili) CCCERA's role is limited to implementing the deductions and remitting the
same to Pacific Group Agencies, Inc.

(iv)  CCCERA is released from and held harmless against any and all claims or
alleged liability arising out of or related to:

a. The deduction of premiums and remittance of premium to Pacific; or
b. The Pacific Group Agencies, Inc. insurance products.

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.646.5747 www.cccera.org

Page 5



Attachment 1




CONTRA COSTA COUNTY

RETIRED EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION
P.O. Box 2973 «Martinez, CA 94553-8868
Representing the Past, Present & Future

October 1, 2013

Marilyn Leedom, CEO

Contra Costa County Board of Retirement
1355 Willow Way Suite 221

Concord, CA. 94520

Subject: Supplemental Retiree Benefits
Dear Marilyn,

During the past year, the Contra Costa County Retired Employees Association’s (CCCREA)
Board of Directors have been searching for ways to enhance and enrich the retirement benefits for
all county retirees. Polls have been taken to ascertain what benefits the retirees would like to
have, that they now lack. The answer has consistently been to have access to dental and vision

insurance coverage.

Some retirees were fortunate enough to be able to continue their dental insurance during
retirement, however only those with Kaiser Health Insurance, and some PPO policies, have
limited vision care. So in an attempt to fill this health coverage void, a great deal of research has
gone into vetting companies that will provide this type of group coverage.

Although there are many companies that offer these types of coverage, one stands out as being the
most likely to understand the issues of public employee retirees. That company, Pacific Group
Agencies, Inc., located in Santa Clarita, CA, has had the most experience working with other
county associations in the 37 Act system. This company currently maintains contracts with
numerous 37 Act counties, including Los Angeles, San Diego, Marin, San Mateo, Tulare, Kern,

Fresno, and Orange.

I have had personal contact with the Boards of Directors of many of those counties regarding this
subject. All agreed they felt the supplemental insurance policies offered by Pacific Group
Agencies, Inc. are fairly priced, and those members that have had to make claims for their
particular coverage were very satisfied with the service they received.

Another service offered by Pacific Group Agencies, Inc. is pet insurance coverage. While you
might think of this as inconsequential, I have been amazed at the number of retirees that have pets,
and the number that are extremely interested in having access to this type of insurance. The cost
of veterinary services today can be out of the reach of many retirees, and could cause them to



Finally, with the addition of other coverage such as home, auto, travel, and ID Theft, this program
could give retirees an opportunity to have the necessary insurance coverage to give them greater
peace of mind, and to protect their limited retirement nest egg.

For the above reasons, the CCCREA Board of Directors is requesting that this issue be placed on a
future CCCERA agenda and presented to the Retirement Board Trustees for a vote, to allow
CCCREA to sponsor a mailing to all current county retirees to offer them the above described
supplemental insurance benefits. We would also ask that the office staff be allowed to work with
Pacific Group Agency, Inc. personnel to set up a program so the premiums for any supplement
insurance can be deducted from the retirees benefit check on a monthly basis.

Please allow me to thank you in advance for your attention to this request, and please don’t
hesitate to contact me, should you have any questions.

Respectfully,
Michael Sloow
Michael Sloan, President

CCC Retired Employees Association
(925) 634-5259

Cc; Kurt Schneider



Attachment 2



A93-1

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION

POLICY ON MAILINGS TO RETIREES
Adopted 2/9/93; Amended 8/11/10; 12/12/2012

Statement of Policy

The addresses of the system’s retirees are confidential. Staff and Board members are not
authorized to release this information for any purpose other than to conduct the business of the

system.

Occasionally the Retirement Board is asked to help contact system retirees, either by releasing
addresses for mailing purposes or by mailing material directly from the retirement office.

This policy is intended to set forth the criteria by which such requests will be evaluated and, if
approved, the procedure which will be followed.

Criteria

No material which solicits purchase of a product or service will be approved. (no political
candidates)

Requests from retiree organizations must relate to membership in and retiree benefit programs
available through the retiree organization to all or a portion of those retired members. (Govt.
Code § 31592.6.)

The content of the communications are wholly the responsibility of the retiree organization and
the Board does not have any liability for the content or accuracy of the communications. (Id.)

Procedure

1. All requests will be reviewed by the Retirement Chief Executive Officer or designee to be
consistent with the policy and applicable law.

2. The material must not imply CCCERA’s endorsement or affirmation of the accuracy of the
information.

3. Material should be pre-stuffed in sealed envelopes, ready for applying labels. In general, no
material will be stuffed with monthly pension checks.

4. The requestor’s stationary and envelopes will be used.

The retirement office will generate labels and coordinate the mailing from that point forward.

No material with address already affixed will be released to the requestor.

6. The requestor will be billed for any and all paper, mail room, label generation, staff time,
including postage and handling charges incurred by the system.

4



Attachment 3



California Government Code Section 31592.6.

In order for a recognized retiree organization to fulfill its obligations to the retired members of
the system and to communicate with them, upon the organization’s request the board shall
cooperate with and assist the organization in distributing communications regarding membership
in and retiree benefit programs available through the organization to all or a portion of those
retired members. The content of those communications shall be wholly the responsibility of the
recognized retiree organization, and the board shall not have any liability for the content of those
communications. Cooperation and assistance in distribution may consist of combined or separate
mailings. The board may charge a reasonable fee for those mailings, which may not exceed the
actual costs to the system, including staff time for preparation of the mailings.

(Added by Stats. 2012, Ch. 178, Sec. 5. Effective January 1, 2013.)




Attachment 4



PPLEMENTAL
BENEFITS




$1010911(J JO preog VIIODS
‘Alp1eowg

"031BIA] UES JO AUNOD) 9Y3 YSNOIY) PaIojo 95RI0A00 [j[B9Y 2211031 WOIY
ojeredes Apeje[dwod pue YIYOOS £q POSIOPUS ole SIJOUIq SAYL

VAEDuIeS [1ed Jou o "woo'sanueledd@ v LI00s 10 $906
116 (008) 18 APOSIIp ‘IOJENSTUIWIPY SUB[J JJOUSY ‘SOIOUSSY dnoin
oytoeq 10vIu0d oses[d ‘sue(d a1 moqe suonsenb sAey nok I ‘€107
‘9 19quade( Spue sjyeueq [ejudwelddns oty 10 juswrpjorus ued()

"SSI}IATIOR INO UIof 03 SUOIIE}IAUL
pue ‘sFuneow diysI9qUISTI INO 0] SSAOOE “SONSSI JUPAS[SIL UO PAUIIOJUT
nok doay diey JBUl SIONS[SMOU IO SAISIAI [[IA SIDQUIDW Y IHODS

"90UDTUIAUOD
oA 103 pesopus st odoeaus umyer pred ofesod v og-1 sdeig
aye1dwoo ose sseeld ‘syyouaq [eusworddns ur [jorus 0} Burosye oste I
"0} JUSUI[[OIUS PasO[oue sy} Jo ¢ darg o3erdwos eses(d “VyODS W
[TOIU3 O, "UOTRIO0SSE INOA YINOIY) [qe[lear sjjeusq [ejuowe|ddns oy
Jo oZejueApE 93e} PUR SIJOULQ JUALIND 05301d 0 SI3INAI MOJ[S] INOK

urof 0} Uy oY} ST AOU TqUISW VIYODS V LON Aav NOX dl

"NOL 0] A[9AIS]OX0 O[E[IBAR S}IJoUSq oY)
935 0} J00q ST} mo1adl aseald ‘Tequisll VIJAODS V 1AV NOA Al

Stoquidul T IODS 01 djaazsnjoxa
S[qe[reA® aIe Je) S}JOULq SY) S[IRIOP 19[Y00Q SIJ "$}S00 [BIOLUaq
Te soampa1 o1 siyeueq dnois Ayenb opraord o) serouely dnoin

oy1Rd qim ARueSLIp pasIom sey VIIODS "s1eak o) ySnorg pauLIo)
sdigspusry  Sumunuoo 105 sueow ' Swpraoid pue ‘SroquieuI INO

30 areyjom oty Sunowoxd ‘sygsueq JusweIrel mo Junosayoid jo esodmd
o3 103 PaysI|qe1ss ‘seaIner Jo uoneziuesio jyoid-uou juspuedopur ue
ST (VII0OS) UONRIOOSSY [9UUOSIod PaIfay AJUno)) 0djejy UeS oy,

:00ho1dwy AJUnoy) 09jeIA UBS PaIoy IBa(]

UONBID0SSY [QUUOSIIJ PIANIY 09)BA] UBS
JO SIIQUIdJA] 10) APAISNIXT d[E[IBAY

SLIJANALT TVINTNATIAAS

*S906-11S (008)
38 suondo

SSNOSIP 03 sn Joeju0d Ised[d ‘passed surpeap suyy Iy

"€10T ‘9 JIqUINR( SpUd Jwdwjoxuy wadQ

LT

97

ST

ye
€C-TT
1T

0¢
61-81
LT-¥1
€1

(4}
I1-9
S-v
€-7

THOVd

[{oaug] 01 MOH
1unoedsI(Y Pry SULIBdy
[PaeL, sA1sURRIdmO)
dUEANSU] 1] A[OYAA INSS] PIdjuesens)
IDUBINSUY WO 29 I8
218)) 19d (O H.>
ueansuy 19J .Odds,
PRIYS Py, Auapy
PIdIYS [e33]
[PARL], 3INIIG 2 JUIPIIIY [BUOSIIJ
UOISIA
03]l UES X0J A10339.01(] I1SBUI(Q OANH
23U OJAH
[BRq 0dd

NVId LITANHL

XHANI




S6°691%

Ajmure, + 991130y

066118

PIIYD) 10 Jomred 91somwIo(] / asnodg + o1y

$6'6SS

A[uQ samoy

“uefd 9oURIRSUL JOY}0TE IOPUN PRISA0D A[USLTD ssajun pousd Sunrem quow-7

9781 PIJORLUOO SeILILUIY o1 Je pred oTe sygousg

20DIUDADAJ 40f paaIy Y
uosied / 6L UosIed /05§ SqUONPA( 18I X IBPUI[E)
"SISUTRIUIRIA]
soedg 7y ‘nredey o8puy ‘nredey
UMOI)) ‘SUOTIRI0ISAY ARTU()
‘suolreIolSey Aeuy ‘uoneiuswsny
9%0S %06 Juog ‘BISSYISOUY “SUOHIORIINE
xa1dwo)) ‘saxmyua(q ‘sefpug
‘steuR)) 100V ‘SONUOPOPUL
‘sonjuopoLiay ‘syuejdwyy ‘sumorr)
Jotpey ureg
Gronuuy KouoBrowry 29 ‘syuereag ‘Asdorg
2SV2LOU) Sp1foudg JaTs0oy ‘ouey 29 medey
UAYS Teo X 1.€ - %58 oImyus(q ‘sAey-y orweloued
TedX .7 - %08 ‘90URUSTUIR]A] [EIUOPOLIS
Tea X - %SL mqoﬁowﬁxm,,oﬁaww s3urmg
ADTATAS DISY .
opuonig
29 ‘sKey-X Suymong ‘suonenieAyg
%08 %001 [e10 sasusyaidwo)) 2 sannoy
‘(sqyuow g 12d 1) sBuruesy)
000°1$oLdn | 000°1$ 0xdn SpIEMIY (IS
Tes A 1od 0STS Tes X 124 00v$ ®
005°1$ jousyg Ies X Iepudre)

wod dnornseILIa Yy MM
)8 B3JIR IN04 Ul SI9PIA0.Id JI0MIIN 10) YOIBIS

ISYUSP Iompou-ur ue Sunisia £q
Tea4 ®© SIE[JOP JO SPaIPUNY 9ABS P[NOD NO X [HIOMIOU [RIUSP OPIMUOLET
1s9818] 94} SU ) “oprmuoneu s1epiaoxd ())(°Q97 I9A0 SBY SejLoury

ISYUSp JI0M19U B SUI00S USTM S}IJOULq JI0MIST IOYSTE P

'sojel , 1oo:s,, remaal
3 IO %SE - %ST [puonippy up nok Juiaes Aqreordsy
- PoIUMOOSIp 138318 oI S91BI ISTUSP JIOMISU SBILISUry A

Bupnpour sjyeusq sSuIAes
1800 JuBOYTUSIS oI 2I9Y) JIOMISU Seoury oy o sSuoreq
ISUuep MoK J1Ing ‘Isnusp Aue 998 03 nok mofre werd Odd siL

"9Sn oMYy $ I9qUISWI 91} I0Y SEILISUTy
Aq poxueq 1eak 10d 001§ reuonIppe ue o) dn oaey AJreonjemoine
[[I4 Jgousq [enuue IoY} JO (G.$ UeY) SSS] osn oym

[

SISQUISWI JYUq oSPIEMaY [BIUS(] Seiloury onbrun oy Mg e

iTe101 24,68 01 dn ‘reak
[OB3 %G SOOIAISS OIseq IO JJIUIQ HIOM)IU-UI INOL 3SBSIIUT
[T SEJLIDY PUe 1BoK 97 JULMP S0UO JSa] Je JSHUSP B JSIA
"qi[ESY [e}USp T10Y) SUIUTEIUIRW IOJ SIOQUIST SPIEMAT SBILIOUry

‘syuedunn pue ‘sermyusp
‘Sumoro ‘eres oanejuassid Surpnpw ‘rofewr oy o) sunnoI
wol sampaooxd +)9¢ SIOA0OD puE JyOUsq JIBIK Iepudyed
00ST$ & sopraoid weld fejuep SeILIOUTY 90TAIGS Iy Sy e

1802 24} 0 onP ST WOSBAX [# 9Y], "1eo4 o) SuLmp 9ou0
ISEBS] JB 1SIUSP © JUSIA O} [IB] SIOTUSS JO 9/4()y ISOWE “0Ied [BJUSP SUNNOI
3uraey Jo sygoueq Yieoy jueoyUSIS oy1 o31dsap “Jo "I00UED [BIO puE
‘aonooyur L10jemdsar ‘sejoqerp ‘OSBASIP HIBIY SB [ONS SOSSOU[I [BOIpauX
SOOLIRS JO uonesoyruewt ero jods uweo Aaqy jnq ‘ypes) mok p:slee o)
Auo jou sisnusqg -Sureqem pue yesy [[eIoA0 INOA Surarejurewr ul
yueprodunt A19wenxe st A[re[ngar 1STIUOp € SURISIA PUE [j[eay [RI0 POOD)

D2 YOV 24D)) [DFUI(J U0 UONNY QIS 4240 puads SuvoLIIWMY

[eud( Odd seywy



86% ‘ Aruaeg + ooEo,mJ
76$ PIIYD 10 Ioupred onsewo(] / osnodg + ssmey
L7$ AJuQ 98mey

"sampsooxd +08¢ [1e 103 sked
-00 33 IS1] 14 J1 PUB 9AT0RYYe Sun09q 93819405 MoK 03 Joud a[npayos 931RY)) Wone]

B QAIS03I [[14 NOX "0A0Qe paisl] suo 3y weyy Aed-00 JucroyIp v oAey Kew smpaoold
[ejusp oywads ok pue od4y ampasord a18ms v sopun padnoid aq Aem sompaoord
arduny - ysySug ured,, ojur POLIPOTI PUE PIsULPUOD Usaq sey odA] 2Impasolq 210N

S1$ UOLIROIPSTA BUIZI)ISUasa(]
$ses jmeunngy
0% 184D 10 UOISOT JO [RAOWIDY
Seg AwI0}09AI3UID)
058% jue[dw] [89)SOSURI], JO JUAWOR[ [BIISING
T8 9100 % 1504
0$ . BISOU)SOUY
0$ Asdorg
01$ Tredey] exmua(y
001$ omua(y
0SS UMOI]) UIR[9210g
1% Butuerd 100y pue JuI[edg
S1$ 0UBUSIUIR]A] [BJUOPOLIDJ
0S$ AequQ urefaorog
05$ Ae[uy Ure[2010(
0$ qi00], poydnig jo wonoenxy
0€$ (Joueyry) [eue)) j00y
0$ Sun[r] wsey
0$ (Burues)) stxejAydoig
0$ skey-xX
0% suonenjead reiQ)

‘uerd QWH BUS1) 23 Iapun
Aed-00 roqusw oy pue sod4} axnpssord o 381y & st oFed Suimoryoy oy,

xdse-apoop [eusp/peuuonemIudqeusn, /:dyy
e s10p1a01d 10y BOIR MOA [oIESS Ued NOA ‘Ajumon) oY) opISIno
A1 no£ J1 -oBed Aed-0) 1equiey ; odA smpaocorg Suimoryoy ayy
1oye sofed oy wo peysty st s1opraoid QNI eore Ajunon JoInvy

"NOA I0J SISIUSP JI0MIOU 19y}
[[e pauea1ossid sey eudr) pue UONERIOPISUOD [FIed INOYLM OB
0} Juepoduir 00} ST JeY} UOISIOIP € ST SUONEI0adXs pue spasu Mok
S1ooUl OYM ISHUSP ® FuNoofog Isuusp Bull) ® se soueidodsoe 1oy
0} 1oud pajenteae ASnoioyy pue peussrss-aid are JBY) SISpuop
payrenb £q3rg yo pesudwoo st yromsu eusr) OPIMUOLRU o7,

"werd oqy £q parea0d Aep s11y Mok
FurouiSaq o[qe[IeA® OTe SOOIAISS PIISACD [[B ‘Juerdwr we 10 Suruea|o

® IS0l S.1 IOUIOYA\ "90IAISS DPOIoA0D Kum 10y pouad Fuprem ou
ST 9107, "98I0A00 JO Aep 1SIY MOA WO J[qe[IeAt aIe SAOIAISS [TV

oaey sueld Odg
A 19ULq Ie[[Op WNWIIXEW Jepus(ed e jsureSe dn uni 1aa0u [im

nok querdun we pue sumorn sjdymu pasu nok 10 Buruea]d ounnos
e ommbaI A[UO NOA Ieyeyp| UIMWIXEW Jousq Jenuue 305 ON

"2uop yrom Aue Suraey
8I10J9q 1800 [[A FUIYAISAD [ONW MOY A[oexo MOWy [[IM MoK

0s ‘Aed-00 305 ® Seq ampoooid PaIsA0d Aleag "sosudins 3500 oN

"P219A02 NOA ARy [[ ueyd sy “rom sxmbai 10
EY JUS[[90X0 UT oXe Ypao) Mok soysyp “syue[dwr pue ‘sormuop
‘SumoId ‘ared aanejuosard Surpnpour ‘Jofewr o) 0y supnor wox
‘sarmpeooxd +(8¢ s19400 ueyd [eyusp ONH BUSI)) 90IAI0S [[1Y ST,

SUINTIXEU JJSUS] [ENUUR OU SI€ 9107} PUE 90IAISS PAIGA0d AUe 10J potrod
3umres ou SI 919, 'PareA0d are syuerdun pue ‘saImjusp ‘sumoid o} Kem
Y T[e ‘Suwrues(o Sunnor oy) woy sa8RIA0) “soyer o]qeplojye A[oWSIXs
18 paplaoxd st 98e19400 Jo oFuer opim ® ‘uerd OWH eu1) sarsuoyaidwos
O AL 3500 ST 3SNUSP oty 0f 3UI0F PIOAB SIOMSS TWOSBAI [# oY

OIH [y eusi)



L857-98L (019)

PAIg UeLIRdSOH 6€7HT
LS9191 1 Aufroeg
[BIU3 (] IUaID)

00S1-TLt (019)
PATg UOISSTA] €€T1¢€
06S81T I Aroey
.TﬁNU [elUa (] ueo)

Tv66-78L (015)

101# PATg ueLIndsal] 78961
0T0T¥1 -l Aoe]
suonnjog [e1umd(q

GSE1-868 (998)

pAlg UeLIndSol] £8%07
626S1S 1 Arroe
(MON 1YSLIg

1050-€8L (019)
SAY UOIUTM "M 099
00S5.L97 I Aroeg
UISYOJA] ‘TIEesSuY

0006-¥61% (01S)
oAy AIMOIN SSOE
LIE0ZY -Al Aoeg
[eIU_(f WIIISIAA

688¢-6¢L (01¢)

# PAIH 100WSL] 9TH9¢
¥$9L0T A1 Lpoeg
QIBIIIUUS

688¢-6¢L (01¢)
PAlg 100WL1] 91 H9¢
TL8E1T A1 Lroeg
JIeINUG

00L0-06L (0165)
PAI{ JUOWSYY 667 /L€
98LYbY ‘Al Aroeg
[erm( L1398

7626-T6L (01S)
9AY BUMEBIN 7908¢€
681967 Al Arqioeg
~Nw=®Q =E=NM

00LL-159 (015)
PAld JUOUISI] OYE6E
LESOST 1 Aroeg
[BIU3(] APUSD)

1818-v6t (O1S)

0T1# 24V AIMOIN G681
L8PTIY AL Arrroey
9IUI[IIXY [LIUI(] JUOUIIL Y

10L0-6€L (O1S)

Aep\ MBUOSIY 9£T6E
10S1$T I Lpoeg
[Frua(q Afrme areayooryg

0018-26L (015)

LTT# Id UOSURASIS (956¢€
L8T69T I Aroey
U3ISa(] IS PIIUBAPY

€6€0-0LL (015)
PAlg JUOWSL] 6]76€
89€7LT (I A1oeg
[e1ma(q modsy

¥L06-956 (576)

01T# £1d 93®[IA 0669
L8LSYY :Al Aroey
Lsoqrug 210350y

6£.9-878 (576)
V# pAIg urqng LE1L
€916SY -1 Anproey

00¥L-166 (059)

1S UOISSTIN /879
I¥L001 1 Lroe
TOS[IAA ‘mory

0t+0-266 (059)

099# pAld 'uag oradrun( 1/ 17
£665TT -1 Aoey

[e3UR( Fpudn)

0061-95. (059)

vOc# 1 sndwe)) 106
121907 Al Apoeg
[eyua( 148 snduwe))

ITTT1-¥66 (059)

SOT#1S wolBurgsep (Z¢

859191 (1 Aoy

peuUueYNoJA ‘tuereplejA-rv
11D

0192-5ZL (80t)
00T# 091D SUaARIS 11107

00150t I Arioey
[B}us (g nuue g

$650-769 (059)
STe# ey ourwe)) 19 0931

YLOTST ‘AT Aproed
BYSBIA] ‘SRl

#8¥8-0vS (0165)

bg As1enreg 611
969S17 -l LAoey
[BIUd(J WI3ISIAN

0vZT-$+8 (016)
V9€I# oAy ydeidalo], 1¢0¢

6STTYT AT Aroeg
[B1U( gsayoy

L¥Y10-926 (016)
BPOWELY oY $16
06€8¢T QI Aroeg
LLxeg ‘ury

£682-1£9 (059)

(# Tey ourme) [ 06¢
P166¥1 :Al Ao
[elua( BZR| Juowayg

8.80-2TS (019)
PAY [BINURD) £107
€2198¢€ 1 Anfoe]
13JU3) SSIUd M

£6T0+17 (019)

1) 210YS "S 01T
16,906 1 A1pioeg
iMON 1Y311g

M%a..ﬁ.ucv\«:mwubou.=cu«5_wonon.anwmu /:dnyg
1s1A 3sea[d ‘seoxe X9Yq)o A0

BAIY A)Uno)) 09)BJA] ueq
AX031I(] OAH [BIUd(] BuSI)H



S1+2-789 (S19)

1S B30LION STHT
1LOLST ‘I Aioed
[eeq L r

TTLY-1T6 (S1)
pAld A1eaD) $9¢7
9%8791 :dl Arfroey
L e epmwen

0021-128 (S1¥)

1S UOISSTIA t6$T
$66STT -1 LApoey
(8103 APUID)

$666-126 (S1)

1S prequo OGS

SOTP]T ‘Al Lpoeg

ANSNUA(] NBUWSO)) JO I13)UI))

0655-98¢ (STP)

£OEH# PAIG A122D) pybt
OLY81T (I Afoeg
HeP A ‘AYsAdyIpIag

0ZLY-€87 (STP)
STTI#1S 1o1nS OSh
876611 (I Arroeg
UWISYOTA] ‘LIBSUY
0068-59¢ (059)
PAI SUBISIOA L6
SS16SY - Anpoeg
[eIUa(] WIIISIAN

00£¥-L9€ (0S9)
PAI{ SURISOA /19
899, ¢y Al Lroeg
[eyua( pajrun

T550-99¢ (059)
G#1S yoIg GG
L8ESET AL Aproeg
ey yaa1g

1101-522 ($26)

d# oAY olep3unds 0pSS
LELEYY *I Afroe]

L mweg spusn

0001-15Z (019)
Aempeord 0¢ST
¥8LY61 Al Anoey
—Nwﬂvmm WIS >?

8080-¢68 (015)

00T# ZId MBS0 H Yuel] 00€
0L9906S 1 Aroeq

[elUo( epunjoy

01€L-¥26 (01S)

PTI# 1 10vema3py G018
0£069Y A1 Lroeg
Lsoqug puepeQ

00€9-p¥t (015)

1s[ 1 Aempeorg QL1
989L 1+ ‘I Anpoeq
[e1@3( puEReQ

1,601t (015)

€08# 1S 191542 M 00€E
LISYEY :al Lmoeg

L reywe@ 41D puepREO

SH0T-6€8 (015)
10€# 1S WET 0T€
871807 I Lnioeg
Aqouny, ‘uey

188L-15¥ (01S)
ST194#1S UIP[uel] $791
97657 1 Ao
[B3U3( APUID)

1¥0v-€68 (015)
0TTI#1S wIp[uely 791
0S180€ A1 Lioeg
[eyaa(q wrpjuery

g g

e e e

£261-€68 (016)

1S UIpuely 0161
165001 :dI L1roey
SISUI (Y A[Toe g

0055-€€6 (019)
SOT#1S WTI 9 10€€
69€9.LT ‘I Aoe]
Sa[rg juedary

90L0-¥€S (016)

d#3S W6 "9 0v0¢

9v18¥1 Al Lirroeq
Ansnua( Aimmeyg Aeq jseq

1£€€-€9L (019)

89TIN# IS 191SqQa M, 00EE
SISSET I Aroeg
MAIpUY ‘Sunay))

S1Tr-vib (016)
001# zId eme3Q H Yuel 00¢

LOETYT ‘1 Loeg
PIeuoy ‘paeqng

TLT9-895 (015)
0ST# 1 1918M38pT SO18

£€8887 A1 Afoeg
{MON 3q3LIg

8118-16L (015)

z[d JredmaN 0LZS
9Z0L11 Al L1roeg
qiaqezI[y ‘ue],

0220-2¥L (01S)
9AVY SIATef 6819
8LITEY ‘I Aroeg
[BIUS(Y JIBMIN]

8978-06L (015)

H# PAId JTeMON 0LOLE
#8095 11 Aoe]
[eaua(y I [y

2006-8¢6 (059)

g# [edy oune) 14 "M 1S
197y I Aoey
Auspuaq Afrure ouymae))

€1€1-9¢¢ (059)
€0T# P IURID Op0]
LL86TT 1Al Aioeg

[eruaq o1ddvy

L99¢-68S (059)

L# Kempeoxg 10¢1

8Y6681 A1 A1oe]
0Ipay ‘Aeanje))

1808-L7¢€ (059)

9# 9AY 2A0ID B 888
6206LT I Aoeg
ydoasop ‘gsoyaes

00,5-288 (015)

1S UOSyoR[ "M\ €71
701007 A1 L1poeg
[BIUd( WId)SIAN

08L1-98L (01¢)
P# P uosAuusy, "M 1611

£9998€ ‘I Lpioey
axe)) ferma( reddpny

191+-28L (016)

PAlg UeLadssy] 17477
00%091 1 A1roeg
JIBIINIG

0906-%9Z (015)
S# pY uwosAuuay, ‘A 1611

€29001 A1 Anproey
Srex) “afnouy



ISHUSP OAH
eu3L) © ST 3spuap sygads

InoAk 18} WAJuod
01 [ed asedrd “Kyiow)
e e )Spuwep  odgmads
€ 998 0) ysm noA Jy -uepd
siy 1deddoe Aewr Aypoey
® JE S)SOUAP [[& JON] 930N

‘ueyd
SIY) Jopun noA jdadoe
ued A3} J1 23S 0)

ISHUIP INOA }IeIU0D
“uoned juarImd ® Juw
noA Jy ‘ueyd srg) 9pun

PI[oIud syuaned
Sundadoe BEY1 01} |
ou SsI spuwg - L
SY9L-1¥ (016)

Py SOIIN OPRIBATY $99%¢
YOELTY 1T Aoeg

eI duryS

$979-L8% (016)

pAld OPeIRATY 8C[T7E
6LS081 Al Lpoeg
JH ‘sekayg

Ll
0€1Z-¢6% (016)

P SS[IN OPEIBALY £09%€

1SS6LY “AT Aoe]

ﬂwwﬁma‘. 91qo

1€69-7¢L (801)

3AY qO2qURY[OH 6£91
S16S1T Al Loeyg
[e}Ud(] APusD)

00T1-vLL (80%)
OT1# P 18I 9871
181y Al Aqoeyg

BIOY ‘BISO))

SLYT-0EL (80%)

81T# [eay oure)) T4 "M 6€6
SEL6SY 1T Aroey

Lzreq ‘Lresuy

8766-71T (059)

G# [eoy] outwae)) [ €€T1
19150S Al Liroeg
ANHEOQ omsw o.—ﬂm

7058-686 (059)

00T# PAIE Y3n0I10GISa My 004
00128% A1 Lioeg

BI[193)) ‘OpIusAYy
DNVIINVS HINOS

0LIY-E¥€ (801)

[eay ourwe)) g 678T
10L11S (1 Arroed
[eIUd(q WIISIAN

00L6-€08 (526)
V# PAIH ®IS0OY 0€16

801517 I Lr1oe
JTBII[IUS

o 0021-25S (S1H)

1S P3N 78T1
0126SY Al Lytoeg
[B1US (] UIA)ISIAN

S05€-29¢ (526)

0€T# P PoomIaa( [ 1]
91€T16 Al Anoey
ANSnua(y ang

005L-58T7 (ST+)

1S UOISSTIAl €187
LL9E6T Y Afroeg
13—5@ WII)SO M

09t 1-5£7 (059)
8oy ourwe)) 19 S 00T
878016 (I AIoe]

eI WIBsaA 860Z-1t1 (S1t)

TOT# °AY SSON UBA €477
9T9L-t€ (059) 8209%1 (] Ao
V# I 09JeN UeS "N 104 [BIUS(] SSIN UBA

OYITIT :AI £1p1oe,]

[e1us ([ BSUIUL g 00Z8-15L (STt)

10T# PAId AresD QI¢t
0269-LLY (059) oﬁwww.unm Qm_oﬁ
TH# 1 O91RINl UeS N 0Z€ .*. p W ‘ue],

S I LArqoe
’ mmwwsnm a«woum 8987-959 (STt)

SAY oumnug ueg LIRT

0LOLST I &ifroey
[BJU3(] 2AVY ounig ueg

0€£Z1-819 (019)

00T#3S W1 "9 S68%1
89601 2 TIT6SH Al Aroe
[BIUD(J WIIISIAN

00Z1-L8S (STh)
AV BASTSD) (01T
985001 I Lyroey

0289-15¢ (015) ooy ‘orpedey

dAY UOIBUMSEM T0EST 1588-199 (ST)
628651 I Aroe] 1S ©35LION] 64L¢
Bahid 6L88%1 (Il Anproey

[eyua(q v8ar10N

YYLL-956 (S1t)
0Y91# 1S Ionng OSH
SSE0ET AT Lroe]

0067995 (ST1¥)
Y0OT# 1 eomod 108
99¢61 ] Anroeg

piempy ‘oeyyz gdoasop ‘sejoarN

LLLE-8T6 (STt) 09€2-86€ (STt)

1S PIequoT] /€971 EEPT# 1S 1oNINg OGH

€8STTI A1 Anproey LY0T18Z -l Anfioeg
pleuoy ‘Sunox

ueAlkey] ‘iheyey



el

%0€ *08 93V %S 1GL 9BV %69 0L 28V :sorpdde uononpar a3y 0p00ES Xew
- (yuared o13uis ® a1 10K JT 94,6T) 1JOUSq IAQUISW JO 9401 ST IBUSQ PITYD) (PAISA0D
ST PIIYo AU JT 94,01) 33Uaq ISQUISW JO %(G Je ST JJouaq Iounre onsswo( / asnodg

00°¢ES 0SvT$ 000°00S$
0t'9z$ 09°61$ 000°00¥$
08°61$ 0Lt1S 000°00€$
0T €IS 08°6$ 000°002$
09°9% 06't$ 000°001$

AIqe[ieAy MOY $7 Suruuelq dup-e1d A
sAeoy a8essopy AouoSrourg A STe1Isyoy Te1ua( 29 [BOIPSIAL A
Bumsod puog [reg » 20UBISISS Y [[oy uonduosarg

uonernedey A
SOOUBAPY Yse)) AousSowug A
SOJIAISS UOLR[SURI], A

90URISISSY WSY] US]0)S 10 1SOT A
0UE)SISS Y [RSOT A
UOITBNIORAT] [ROIPOIN A

:s1yeueq [e1oads SuImO[[0Y 95T} SOPIA0Id U0}IVJ0IJ [SABL], 3INIIS
"Beqare urmonouny
Apredoxd e Suiaey pue jjaqyess e Suream 103 0OC¢ Lggordn A
"sosuadxe uoye(Iqeya1 105 000°01$ 03 dn A
"IOUBOLIPOIA SOIY2 A 29 UOLRIANY SWOH 10J 000°sc$ @ dn A

:opuduI AUl §)IJOUsq [EUONIPPY

"9[qe[IRAR OS[R
ST 23e10A00 PIIYO Juspuadep pue Iowpred onsswWO(] / osnods “Ioquuew
S} 10} 000°00S$ 01 dn S[qe[rEAR ST WONIN0IJ JUAPIOY [LUOSIO

"SUWIOY WOL 2I0UI IO SS[IW ()] SuIeARy 216 NOA USYM SIJoUsq
uonosjord [oaen [eroads sopraoid pue Ul SO IOPU [9ABI] MG
SYL "ISpU [oABI], omodg onblun B WM SIJOUSq JUSTLIOGUISTUSI(]
% Wee( [BIUSPIOdY JeuosIa{ [euonipen sojerodroour o8e1oa0d ST,

[PARL], 9INIIS 29 JUIPINY [BUOSII J

<9

43

© 00'8T$ Arore + samay
00°61% PIMD 10 IouWIe o1sawo(] / 2snodg + 991moy
ATaQ samey
SWIBL / SUOT / WEXH
ve/et/el :Kouanbaxy
[BLIoIBIN / taexy
$T$ /018 a[quonpa(]
0LS 0Z1% Somrel
2A102]5
Aupssaoap Aopapy
0128 PaI9A0]) %001 Su 10107
001§ Pa12A07) 9%001 SUT Ie[nonuo]
$9% P3I2A0D) %001 SUST [e00FIL
0SS PRI3407) 94001 SuaT [eooyrg
0¢$ PaI9A0D) %001 SUS7] UOISTA J3uIg
St$ PaIoA0)) 94001 suonBUTIIEXY

WO JS A MMM
‘e SI9p1A0Id HI0AMIDN 310U JSA [BI0] 10] §oIe0g

"Teamako pue swexs 242 g30q apraoxd Yo
Jo 1B ‘ssooe yo syured (pg‘ps 1040 Sey Yromjou dSA opmuoneu
UL "$)S00 }5oMmO0T pue sjgausq 3soy3Hy ou3 nok apracid s 1opraoxd
JIOMI_T 39107 JSA e Suisn jng “ropraoid Lue 03s 03 nok SMO[[® JSA

"aTed [[BISA0 MOA 0} [23IA [[S SI WEXS 945 [ENUUR e ‘Aro3ms
OADOSIIOD peY 24U IO UOISIA PoO3 Ajjermeu oaey nok oo
nok Aq peonjouun oF Aqises ueo Teq) ‘[oI03s9[0Y> YT pue sajoqeip
‘9SBASIp IE[NOSEAOIPIED ‘UoIsTa1IadAY N1y ‘STORIPUOD YI[BSY SNOLISS JO
SUSIS 10030p OS[e Ued A9y} Inq “ewooneld PUE S)0BIEJED SB [oNnS SISBISIp
943 15910p 03 PASn AJUo 10U ore SWexo oAg "ssauy[om pue [3[eay] [[eI2A0
mo£ urejurewt nok Surdjey 03 [eronm ST mexs 94> [enuue ue Jurael]

Ue[d UOISIA JSA



St

JIpne 3y pudyap dpay 03 swiy s £oud033e anok Jo sInoy (810}
0S 03 dn “)500 [EUO)IPPE OU JE JAIIIAIL UBD NOX °NOA 0] }S0D OU e
DUEJISISSE PUE “ADIAPE ‘UONIBINSUOD 0} SSIIDE IJRIPIWWI IABY NOA
‘SYI 2w Aq ypne ue Jo PaynNou dat NoA UAYM ‘pPRIYS [ES9T YA

‘reak 10d 000°0SS
UeT) SS9] SUD{ewl SPIOYSSNOY 0] SUOP 2ISM SIPUE JO 9 ()] ISAO0 “PIJIPNE

308 Auifea o) AJUO TR} JUIY) oYM 350U} I0,] "SY] oY} £Q PalIpne oIam
Aoy pue £3on| os j0u axom reak ise] opdoad 994 19| ‘Aforeuniioyur)
‘poyipne  3urdq  91,9M JBY) UONEOPHOU JOU  PUE  UOWBULIOJUI
wopuer swos 3snf sar jeqy Suikerd pue Surdoy QY[ oy woy
Ioyie] ® SUress usym SUI[a9] Jey) MOWY [[6 9A\ “U01)39)01d PNV SAI

“PAAJOSIX INSSI 343 193 0] J[eydq Inok wo
wIY] 30eju0d ued Aduwrone oy ‘Aprddoxdun pajde sey Laed 1oyyo
Y3 JI A1essa0u woap A1) sadueyd Lue 3s983ns osye [m LAsurojye
3Y ], "NOA 0] 3502 ou Je Adumroye InoA Aq ysySuy urepd ur nok
0} paure[dxo pue pamaraax ‘goes saged uoy 03 dn ‘syuommnoop edaq
[euosiad Jo IaqUUnu PIWIUN UE IALY UEI NOA ‘PIRIYS [8SoT I

¢¥sodap Furaes[d moA wnyaI 0] 9SNJaI pIOJPUE| € 9ARY I9AY Isdump
[Sel} 97} JO Je} ST MdIA 9Y) JNO DU 0] POALLIE PUE M3IIA B LM UIOOX
[9107 B Pa3{00q IOAT (PISO[OSIP ISASU oIoM JBY) SO9) [oung e paonou
noA ‘SeALIIR {[1q 3T 9T UM pue joenuoo suoyd [[90 ® poudis Ioaq

Jyueawr A[femoe
uogrel edo] yund sury o) [[e JeUM PURISIOPUN 9M PMOM ‘SUIILI0A0
Peal PIP oM JI UaAf '} SWuSIS 9I0JOq JUSUIMOOP € WS A[UO [[Im
sn Jo Auew jeqs st A[esI oY) 1 SurpesI noyim Surgiiue udis 19A0U
PInom om jeq} Aes [[B oM O[IfA\ “AIIAJY JUIUWINDO(] PUE JOBOUO.)

*PIAJOSII UONIEN)IS Y] 398 0) A0 LM
PUE STOLIdS 3Xe NOA Moy A9y} ‘uoneiuasaxdaa [e39] aaey noA jer
$39s £fyxed 19430 9Y) USYAA MOA 0] 350 OU ) J[EYaq INOA WO [[Ed
ouoyd v dYew 10 19339 B ALIM [[IM £3UI0)E U ‘PPRIYS [235T I

"paromsurun 03 ATS)I] [[x S[[ed PUE SI3NS] INoK pue
SUO[e SUOLEMIS 9SOY} UiLm [eap 03 Y] 21,104 ‘porys [eSoT moyiipm
"o9juereng 2o11d MO[ © 10U0Y 0] SISNJAT JUBYDIIAW € IO “YI0M SIY pPUIyaq
puels j,uom ueurnedsl B 10 ‘OSIPUBYOIOUI SATO3Jp JO wimgel e 1dasoe
JUOM ey} 2101 Jrejer B sem I sdeyisg "OONBMIS 9Y) SA[OSSI 10U Op
SI9139] pUe S[[ed IO pue sn Jo sFejueApe uoye) seq Auedwos 10 uosiad
E [99] 9/ 9107 SUOHEBMIIS UL US3q [ 9A M “SI9J397] PUE S[[B,) oU0[J

o

vl

: 078 A[uo 10j
arepdn 10 [[IA4 ®B 9419301 ued syuspuadop pue sasnodg “3s0d ou je
sajepdn £[1B34 PUE 1AL B SPATIIIT JIGUIdW Y} ‘PRIYS [eSoY mIM

"0197] 103UO] OU 3Te NOA UIYM JO 2180 USNE] 9 [[IM SOUO PIAO]
oA pue poyosjoid ore $1asse IOA SUrMOUy puIll Jo 95eog
"0} Ay13do1d MoA 1318 01 I PINOM NOA OYM SUITLINAP

PUB SSLIBIONAUA] INOA SWEU 0) [ONU0D o) NOA SOAIS [IM V
"10J papraoid st 1oupred moA sImsus ued

no£ ‘drysuone[ar paynuwIos € UI 21 jng ‘pSLLIBW J0U 5J8 NoK J|
"S}assE MOA JYIF PUE SPIAIP PINOM NOK MOY JOU ‘SME]

o1eqoid s.01e)s MOK Jo ASIOW oY) Je Qe SASSE INOA Iy ©
MOy A "1N0d djeqord Furmnsuos sury pue £[3soo oy Juiploe

pue sme] Aoseisojur pue 9jeqord woy sesse MoK Funoolorl e

“9pnOUI I & SWIARY JO S1Jauaq o) SULIepIsuos onsne)s SurreSSe)s
€ ST ST, [ITA\ B 9ARY 1,UOD SUBOLIOWNY JO 9,0/ Ajojewrxoiddy A

N04 JJUAq [[IM PIRTYS (830 Mo

"SINOY $SaUISNg § UIYIIAM NOA JORIUOD ME] JO BT Ry} U
pooustiedxe Aewrone Ue saey [im plerys [e8oT ‘s Suresp ole N4
SUSST 19ASJBI A "Oplmuoneu sfiowrone Ajrenb jo spuesnory o) ssoooe
SABY Jel) SIoqUIani WO +4°[ of) wiol [[1m nok ‘parys 1eSe qup

"JIMS M09 SWITe]d [[BWS © 9[1J 0} SN IO 9[SS'Y oY) 10 AoTIoNe
Ue SULITY JO }S00 39U} YLIOM 10U S J1 Jey} pue woajqoid o X1y 03 Jo3y00d
Jo 1o Aed o} o158 SI 11 JRY) [99] 0} PuUS) om ‘sosure woyqoxd e UOY M
“ILIET WISY) Pasned dAey jeyy 9soyy jswreSe uonoe oyerrdordde ovyey
uer royyer dn oard ordoad Auepy -SurueyySuy 1ySumop oq wes pue
‘poreotjdwos ‘Buisnyuos oq ueo pprom [e3s] oy jery 3qnop ou ST 2107,

"901APE [e39] SULY99S 10U I0J SISNOXS AYBUL 9 PUE PIOA Jeapl ue
Ul SAT] 3,UOP 9 INq “OUNNOT 9q P[ROM MITASI [e32] ‘PIIOM [SPI Ue 1]
"pareor[dumos awoo9q AP[omb ues sunnor oy pue ‘st A]orer ng ‘orduns
5q pmoys aJ1] A[re( ouwm 19y 10§ paSieyo 3,uorom pue suoneorjduros
S.91] o[puey O} SASUIORR 0} $S900B paywuIfun pey nok JU jeyp

Adv@ v 0§ uvy[ ssaT 10f oupwnp.L] 27 01 V1AL 2y wiodf
SUUDIA ]V UO 2D1APY [D32T [DUOISS2J04]

[PIYS [8397]



Ll

JUBLIEM B 1M POAISS IO “USIPIIYD MOA Iumye) oje)s
oU} YA POJUOJUOD “IUSPIOOE S[OIYSA IOJOW B Ul parnfur ‘paureop
I0 DPOISolE ISAS O1.M0A JI ASUWIONE UE 0] $S900B INOY-§7 SARE

310W [§ 10) 3BBIA0)) SSIY L/bT PPV

S6vIS AJrure,q 2 9s1mjey

"ousst 243 Jo Arxsrdwoos oy
uo Surpuadap AeA sojer rejnSoy ‘sajel remgor IIoG) JJO JUNOJSIP %467
© 12 0K 01 $001413s aptaold rim Asurope mok ‘werd prargs 1e3o1 mok
Aq pa10A02 J0U SIE OIYM ‘STORIPUOd Funsixe-a1d se yons ‘sonsst 104

"SOJIAISS 1157} 10 Moy Iad sIe[op paIpuny Jeresds Aed 01 9ARY ) UOM
nok ‘[[e J0 jsoq PUY °SPIS 1810 oY) woy souspirs ssoxddns Io/pue
o3us[ieyo 03 10 ‘oses oAk yroddns 03 SoUSPIAD ureqo Apredoxd o3 moy
10 ‘sompoooid [e39] IaY30 S[puURY puE SjUSWMOOP 1Moo opy Apxadoxd 0
4407 21| 90UBYO 0} STUIY} 9ABS] PUB SPUBY UAMO MMOA OJUI SINEUI ONE)
01 AR 3, U0M NOX "s}oodse [39] oY) WI PIsIoA 9q [[Im PUB TWOTRIYIS
mo£ Jo Ju2)Xa oY) pueisIopun Any [ ogm uosiad e SARY [[Is NOA
SOSLIE aNSST Uk US4 1B} 0S “SASUIONE JO JNIOMIQOU PIorYS (239 oy 03
§5900€ pojruaIun [0y 4s00 ou 2ARY [[14 NoA ‘Aep 1od (¢ Uey SSO] 10,7

"Teof 1od S3UWIN SIOW 10  9JIAISS Y3 asn Ao
Pres 9,0, “ue[d syyousq [e35] B Yum syuspuodsar Apnyg spaspr 10327 10
{}SO0 OU Sem 213} JI S9JIAISS S, AQUIOYNER UE 9SN NOA P[NOM USYJO MOE]

‘moq 1ad 87§ sem sAowione 4q padreys
oje1 oFeloA® oY) jJeyl punoy Apmig spasn [pSeT Juscel y -Aomione
Ue PIJOBIUOD A[[EMIOE SP[OYISNOY 950 Jo oFejuesrad [fews e Ao
Agm osudms ou s.J1 90 & “xokme] e oIry o3 WY} pI] dAey WYIrw jey)
pourad yiuowr 7] & Surmp jusAo ue pooustadxs pey spioyesnoy g Jo
% 1L Yo} PaMOYs A9AMS UONURIOOSSY Teq UBOLIOUTY JUI0DI B “TOASMOL]
"Aemrole ue Jo osn oy} sexmbor Iopewr [e89] A5 j0u ‘Apssuoy
pue 12SUNOO Te9[ pasu jou [[IM Aoy} jey; [99] Aew s1dood Auepy

9l

"Aease (12 auoyd 93.y-[[03 & L[uo s
dyoy 1e391 uarusaucd ‘Kyenb 4503 ou 03 ssadoe ‘PIBIYS 1337 YIIAA

(SIY311 MOL mowy nox [[im jnq ‘woneyussordsr
[e39] oary Aomy J1 Afreadsoe - syySur oy smowy A[9¥I] oOpIS IS0
94 "SIYSL MOK MO 0] Pasll NOA “UsdmMI0q T Sumue 10 ‘TeurwiLd
‘Pore[or ssoursnq ‘[euosiod S IOUIOYAy -omssi Aue uiafosar ur
deys 38113 o3 ST SIS Mok Surpueisiapun) "SIYSNY (8397 N0 X MOUWS|

"N0£ 03 1502 [RUONIPPE OU JE ISUJIP JO SINOY 09 01
dn opraoxd s £ouroye anof ‘woygoe [BUTIILI X0 [IAID PIIIA0I B ul

JUEPUIIAP € se pawreu st asnods 1noA 10 nok J1 ‘pRIYS [eS M

"SS24S [BIOUBUI PUE [BUOOWIS SNOPUSWST)
OSNEO UeD S}MSME] ‘STIO[OALT SI IO JUOW SBY NS o IomIS M
"AQUNOd STy} UI SPU0dSs 7 AIoAs 90uo PO[Y SI JIMSMEB] [IAID MOU
Vv "Aunos 1syjo Aue ueq; epdes rod SISAME] SIOW 9ARY AN “AIUNod
STOIZNI] © ST $9)B}S PSIU[) OY} JBY} IqNOD OU SI 019V ], "SWAJI (] [er1],

*sa¥e) 31 Juo|
M0Y JI9)jeW OU ‘NoA Pudyap [[M £ouxo}je Inok QPIdIWOY JB[NIIYIA
10 ‘opwIuwoy juadndou ‘xayySnesuew Lxejunpoaur ‘1s)ySneqsuew
A PISIBYD PUE JUIPIIE IED [B)e] & Ul paAjoAul aae noi pue
suaddey s[qequrgun ay) J1 ‘Jreyaq Inok uo JIsSMe] € 3[ 0} d[qe aq
Aew pue s3SI ok pue mef oy Surpredax a8pamouy Jo uonisod
' ul nok ind 03 s[qe aq [m £3yq] “Auedwmod dueInsur ok Ym
[e9p nof dpy 0) s13y) oq M Aduroye Inok ‘PIRIYS [B397T WAL

TeIoTID 5q Ued SpIs MoK o Lsurone ue 3urARy J0u 10
Ayred yney 1o o) o1om N0K 1OYIOYM pur uoddey syusprooe pue sjusprouy
iSIq3 Jo osnedoq swnrmsxd mok asrer o syjuem Kuedwos 90URMSUI IN0K
PUV juon®o e NOX onsst votjod oyy puy ;pay.nd nod moy uo pasvq
imof anod s1 31 Sunuvyd $1 42a14p 4Y30 2y} pup 19918 o4} w0 poyred
ST 1 SIYA Ted IOA SYOIU IBd ® JI JRYA (190N o) uo padred s 3 oTIgm
Ted INOA SYOIU IS © J1 JBYA ([Sem Ied ot y3noxgy unr 1o payjred jo1ea
3uraq 31 19e Ieo ok woiy SuIssI o1v SWAN JT JRYA\ (10] Sunjred
€ Ul pazijepuea ST 183> MOA JI 03 wny nok op ogm ‘roAamoy ~Kaed
190 943 iIm ansst oq) Jno 110s Auedwoo 90ULIMSUI INO J9] oM a1oyMm
SJUSPIOOE IOUIW PaduUSLIadXs [[B 9ABY opy “swajqoid JuSISlIp Auew
103 [enuajod o7y sa1ESI0 AOIYLA B SmMQO "SIDMATIS SPIYI A T0JOJA




6L

p121ys 0827 01 uOIPPY pIa1yg (0327 01 uoNIPPD
ur pasvysand usym JUNOISIP C§ D 41203y u1 pasoyound usym JUnoISIp £§ D dA1999Y

S6°17$ -esnodg 29 oomoy

$6°¢1$ -osnodg 29 9a1mey

e[ WL

ue|q paepue)s

"syofe pnexy guroeyd

Qs pue s [ pue spieo Juroeider pue Surjeoued yyum disy sopraoid
T[0Ty sy moA 107 syuswrede[dar Sured 10 seruedwoo pieds 1pa1d oy
[Te Supoeiunod sAep puads pinoo nok 4sof st asmd 10 197[eM INOK U A
UEISISSY ISING/II[BAA IS0

“IqUMN AJLN0ag [eoog mok Suisn pney reryusjod

10910p 0} payoreas are sprooer orgnd (UOIMq $€) 000°000°000°FE
9de1), dn[S 13quny £3LN9G [2100S

"IOPUSJJO XOS PAIV)SIFoL

e Aq posn Ueaq SBY SSAIPPR S,I10QWISW B ISURUM PUB SIOPUSLIO
X8 JO UONEBOO] oY) 109)9p 0} PSYOIRSS oI SOSEQREp ISPUSIJO XIS

[2183§ JIPUIJO XOF
"STIEU INOA GIIM PIIRIOOSSE AI0)SIY SSAIppe

10 Pqumy AUunosg [erog 03 sofueyo Aue Jo JuLIoyUOW AJHIUOIN
BUOSIAJ JM[qng

“uoneULIOUL TeuosIad I8Y)0 29 ‘SISqIUNU PIed JGOpAIPaId PUR AJLMOeS
[E00S IMOA JO oSN PIZLOWNEUn I0J AJIep PoOIOJUOW SI Gom oY,
ISYIIEAN QOAA

"SI0 A1Anoe Aue
J1 H9TR [IBWIS UR SAI909I [[IM NOA PUE A[SNONUIIUOD PAIOJUOWE 9 [[Is

syodor jparo uorup)suely, pue xeynbyg goq ‘wenadxyg o) uonIppe uj

JIB[Y AJANOY pue SULIONOYA] JIpax)) neaang ofdriy,

ISE [[9M SB UB[J PIEPUE)S 94} JO SJyouUaq
Y} [Ie SIpn[UI 33613400 weld WA PRIYS 1YL, Hnuspy

"Sn3ess PYoy-axd 03 A)JUSpI INOK SI0ISAX PUE SANSST o) AINUopI
O3 QAJOSAI 0] NIom Y[Im 313d¥0 901AI0S WONEIOISSY AMuop] ok
‘a1e[dwoo 03 swn Jo YIFua| oYy Jo sSI[pIESY JO SIEME 9 j0uU AR NOA
Yeq) Suret MoA Ul A1 AUE 10} PIIONPUOS 2 [[IM SISBQRIED [PUONE
PUE [EO0] JO $9Y0Ieas 9A1oe0Id pue s1eak uaAds 10y so11031s0doI 1IpaId

8L

[eUCHEU 391Y) J[B 01 JUSS 2q [[IM SUONBOYNOU JIO[e PNEL] “SUOHSUY
pUe so10uade PojOsiye Yy SINSSI YoYUl ANUSPL 1991100 0 Jieyeq InoA
U0 IO pUe WONN[OS 9T} SZIUIOISTO [[LM AU, "ONSSI 1J973 A1Uapl Ue
28] oA pInoys ‘Jeqsq Mok Uo $901AIes UONRINISaI (] aalsuayerduwos
uroyred [[im spedxs 931AT0g wonEIOISIY AIuUIp sAIsudgaxduwo))

"31J MIPAID IOA U0 ANATOR KUR 10]
SHOTE rets I STI 1pa1d UerradXy oA Jo Suriopuoly snonunuo))

"Hoda1 31pa10 JsITy IN0K Yiim 21008
1pa10 [euosiod MoK Jo SISA[eue PI[1RISp € M 3103G HPIID) [EUOSIY

meamq Funrodal JIpaIo
Surpes] oy ‘merrodxyg £q popraoid erep syep-o3-dn woy jroday 3pax)

:$9PNIUI 33219400 weld TYVANVLS PRIYS WYL, Anuapy

“UR[J WINIUIAX ]
S} pue We]d pIepPUE)S IY] SWRU PooT pue UPeId IMOA 8I10J8AI

pue 109101d djoy 03 s[qerreae sueqd piarys 7oy, Amuspy omy are axoq

"INO20 [orsIq
© P[nOYs AJUspl MoA O WoneIosel aArsusypidmos sopracid os[e 1nq

Pour Limuopr juessid 0} M0y TO TOTENSUOS J1adxe seopraoid AJuo jou
yoeodde aanoeoid s, pleryg oy Amuepy ‘swerdord SuLioyruour J1pa1d
1SOW SXI[U[) "SWeu poos pue Auapr ok 199301d 0} PUB 9100 JIPLID
InOA puejsiopun 03 AN[Iqe o4} noAk s3AIS “uenSuod Jsut juspuadopur
Surpes| s.puos. oy [lory YSnoxgy pexyo pemys Woyr Amuepy

"OUOp Wa3q sey oFewep
SU3 pue 9181 001 ST 31 [IUN Jory) AJUSPT JO SWUHOIA dIe £31) ey} 1o puy
1,UOp $I0MU9S 350w ‘Ajojeunjroyup) ‘osiom Surned A[uo st 1 pue SIOTUQS
§1001e Jeqy puey jo sadfy jusreasrd jsowr oy Jo suo ST Yy, Anuapy

“JIpa10 MOoA Surrredar Jo s3s500
oY1 10F 25eI0A00 10 Yoy Amuopt jsurede uonoayord Suiaey moqe yuiyy
Toasu o1doad 3sowr ynq Yy Ayyuspr Jo $30URISUIL )00 009 7] ISA0 2X0M
219U 19 X "9OURINSTI SISUMOSWOY jnoyyim Furod jnoqe yurg 3, upmom
o[doad 3sowr pue somy swWOY (OOQLE INOge oIoM oI5} ‘IeaK 1ser

D2 2aynIasu0) 1 410f spuwyduio)
4ownsuo0) fo 31T uoisstuwioy apvif aopag sdoy Yoy Gmuspy

PIRIYS oY T, AInudpy



1z
ed 1008/ 05318230 dpajIun MALM 2JISIA 10 QU VYOS

UB 3.8 NOA WONUIW PUE 7799-18L (888) 1€ 918D 194 payuf [[eD
U0 BULIOIUI 31010 X10J X0 [[0IUd 0],

0£65-0L°LS 124 [eUOnIppY qoey
09678 - 0£'¥CS$ S1od ¢
0T°0Z§ - 09918 S19d T
09°01$-6L8S B 1

L8€8-165 (059) 89L1-69€ (059)

0L0¥6 VO “SOpED ues 190%6 VO “A10 poompay

"PY Auno) plo §5¢ P SPISPOOM GS6
Tendsoy Tewurny uoraedwo)) Terdsoy] [ewTuy poop B[V
8058-867 (059) 1201-8%6 (059)

790¥6 VO Q1D poompay 0¥0Y6 VO “MITA Urelunop

9AY 9EPUOAY (¢ SAL(] sIemoys 069
[12D) 9SNOH 10 A STeoyM wSSepm [e1dSOH [ewTTy MIIA BI[Y

Ayune)) o3jeA] neS uI s19pacly Sunedoniey
"SUONEIIPSIA % ‘sjuows[ddng ‘sqroy] ‘edustpaq-Surarel], ‘Funyem
Soq ‘Bumig g ‘ereoheq o13fo( ‘speuusy JFupreog ‘serjddng
‘5100p01J ‘SILI0SSINVY ‘BUNLOOIL) ‘SPO0,] [EIMJEN] ‘SPO0, 19 -10] 3S0T)
Suipnyour saoe[d 10d SNOISWNU Je SJUNOISIP SAIEIDI OS[e TIIM SIOQUESA

"$19p1A0Id ATRU119)9A PATRIO] AJJUSTUSATOD Ayifenb
0081 ISAD [[oM JO JIOMJOU SpIMUONEU B oY 3103[es syuored 1o

joUO Aep WOl Asuow JULABS 1elS N0 X “UOHIPUOD [eIIpau 10 95k I1oy)
Jo sso[predoar [jorus Aewr jod mog “sossey ou ‘Apuepodun jsow pue
"SHSIA JOA JO IOQUINU 9T} UO JWI] OU ‘SUOLIPU0d Sunsixs-o1d 10§ sajel
Ioq3ny 10 suoIsn[oxa ou ‘spourad Surrem ou “no [[J 0 STLIOJ WITed Ou
‘s91quonpap ou are 210y, *ASe3 SI 2IB)) 1o PaHU() M Asuowr Suireg

"%ST-%07 POIUNOISIP OS[E ST UOLBIIPSIA]
‘sompaoord oxed Nols pue oapemesdrd Ioyo e pue ‘Ansyuop
“A3ofotper ‘sonsouderp ‘Fuunou/Furkeds ‘sourooea ‘monezijeidsoq
‘A103ms  ‘swexs ‘SUSIA 2O[FO O 9%(0G5-%07 JO sIuiaes Juesur
pooueIens 2Ie SISUMO 19 "SUONIPU0D odyroads paalq Io Sumsixe-oxd
pue o3k Jo sso[presal 98e19409 103 9[qIS1]s oxe sjod e ‘suerd souems
12d owos ax1uf) “weiSoid ymoosp Areurrojes e SI 9XBD) 194 PAIIU(

somndayl ¥ ‘spad 12YI0g ‘Spa4da.] ‘Snqquy ‘spaig ‘s ‘s3o(q 410f 21qupvay

9187) 19d «OIAH,,

0z
ed.100s/s331[1J €/ 0D dduRINSUT}ad-AMmMMm

SISIA 10 I_URW ¥ IHODS

€318 NoA Uonuaul pue H/8/-8¢/ (LL8) Y& APIAIIP IJA 118D ‘s9jel
YJODS PRIUNodstp Y3 e [[0IU3 0 10 UONBULIOUI 310U X0

YT$-€1$ Sue[q SSOUJ[I A
118 ueld 109798 suI[e,{
5 ueld Amfuy
61% [BOIIOU00Y UR[J [BIIPSIA
vTS ozmaono&EoO mmE EQGQE Toe]y

‘DY 10 Sﬁ-x 189} POO[q ‘TOTUOD WLIOMIIBIY] / BI[J “0JBOIJILIOD
mresy  Queidun  dgoororm  ‘wiy  reu ‘Suruomsp  ‘ropneu;Keds

‘Buraes[d [eluep ‘sisAfeunn  ‘sjse)  [BO9) ‘wromuresy  ‘ATI/ATOL
‘SuOTjeUdORA ‘SWIEXS 0] OFRIOA0D OpNOUl Aewl suepq SSOUIPAA

'ueld aA1suaya1dmos & Jo esuadxo 2y} JNOYIM ‘STONTIPUOD JEO TOUIOD
1S0W G U} I0J 95eI9A00 SUIPNIOUI ‘SOSSIU[[L 29 SIUIPIOOR SISAOD
puE S)E0 I0J PouBISop 95BISA0D S[qepIOJjE SI We] PRASIEINIELUEE |

"SUOTIIPUOS [ESIPAUT JOU Ing ‘(S9U0q ueyoIq pue sguruosiod
oyi[) Auo soumfw 10y o8e129A00 3S09-m0] sopraoid ey Amfuay

"anfea 1ee13 Je SUONIPUOd FuIoSuo pue ‘Sassoul ‘sorousdows
‘SJUSPIOOR  10]  ©5eI0A00  $9pIa0Id  [EdIWIOW0d Weld [BIIPIIAl

"$)JOUaq JO [9A9] 189731q pue uonoajo1d sarsueyerdmos 1sow o) qim
‘SI11q 394 81q 107 13U £19)eS B SI 9AISHAYAIdWO)) Uk [eIPIIA Jolepy

15T1e109ds 10 JoA AUE 995 ABW MO X "2[NPayds J1Jauaq 39S € o pred
SIe S)yousq pue speou oyroads mok 10y ofqerreae orxe sue[d ordnmy

USR] JO 9SIN0D PSPUAIIOIAL §,39A MOK Furmoroy Jueprodur
AJ[ea1 I JEYM U0 SNOOJ UBO noA 4s0d o3 jnoqe Surkuom Jo peojsuy
'SIIIq 194 peyoadxoun 9y} Se [[9M S ‘SUNNOI AU} Yi0q 10 28eI0A00
aaeq weo nok ‘Auedwoo souemsur jod Isepo s UOHRU 9T ‘TJA UIA

"Apjomb dn ppe ued S[[1q 194 YUSPIOOE IO SSIUY[L
Pa10adxaun we 01 dn-3o3yo sunno: e woxy ‘Ajsieunioyun “exes ajqissod
159q Y3 im woy) apraord o) yuem om ‘syusred jod sy -suoraeduwioo
AIppno mo jo ared odel 03 Ieok 1od UONIQ GG§ 10A0 puads opy

Sppuituy oRoXs % ‘Spa1g ‘Spp)) ‘s3o( 104 a1qupvap

vue.Insuy 39d .Oddss




€
"Ay1renb Aewr symeoridde [re jou Ewﬂﬁév@ﬁd AJrenpiarput ore symeorjdde ‘me|
£q penruurad Jueixs oty 0 "ATuo s28e12400 o1y0ads 03 A[dde s1UNOOSIP UTRIIAY) “olElS
Aq Ares Lew pue ‘moffe suonen3al pue SME| 9JElS JIOUM I[QEIBAR SI8 SSUIARS pue
$3unoosy(] "Area KeWi PUR $3181S (G [[& U S[qe[IBAR 9q 10U KB S082I8A0]) peloicinlitgl

"SI PAUNOISIP VLA OIS [erads ay) 198 03 1opao

ur ZIS6 11 dnoxs wonuayy ISNA no X *00¥6-+7S (008) :[Ie? 10

ed109s/m10> TenINUIALISQI MMM JISIA “0j0mb € X0

"91042I0)0UI 10 JJRIDISIRM
om0y ‘res mox£ 309301d 01 peou Nok I2YRYM - NOA IO] Yojeur 182q 2y}
PUQTITIODI pUR SULId) Ieo[d ul suondo moA urejdxe ues oAneiuosordal
[Eyn A19qI] v "Spast oi10ads MoK Joow 0] PIIOfIe) SIe SIIONOJ

"9JTAISS 021) S[SSEY PUB SoYel 2ANNadWod 19110 AoT]) “eourInsur 311]
pue Jwoy ‘reo Jo rapraoxd 3urpes] v sy “suonerodios g ) 15981 001
ourgIo, oy} Juouwre ore pue sajels (¢ [{e ur aeredo KoYl 7161 2ouUTS
SOAI[ omod3s a10W “Ioyes oAl ojdoad Burdoy ueeq sey [eman A1eqry

TemnjAl £312Q1 qiLs T80 PUE OTHOY INOA SISl
nok Usym 90URIMSUI SWIOY MOA WO oARS - JUNOISI(T Nmo:cmlgzg

"a9jueIRny) Iedoy
QWS PUB ‘Teiusy peyraup) ‘yuswooe[dey] IeD) MON ‘SSOUSAISIO
TUSpOY  1Burpnjour sygousq [euonrppe spiacid om Aym sjeq)
“08e10A00 01SBq ISN{ URY) 2IOW SAIISIP SISALIP o[qrsuodsar 2A2T[2q 90

"S}SLIOIOIAl PRINSULISPU() / PIINSUTU[) “UON09101g
Amfuy ‘syuowded [estpeIN ‘Apiqery oSewre(y Arodorg ‘Aiqery
Amfay Appog ‘oarsuegerdwro)) “morsIon) opnour Ued S9FBISAO))

"Ted Mok pue noA 10y so8eI0A09 1YL o))
2ABY oA aIms axeul s Loy, "suondo 90UBINSUT OJTIR JO AJSLIRA B [IIM
PoISAOD S[O9UM INOA pue NOA seq [emnjy A119qI] - SOUEBINSUY Ie)

‘sogewrep pojoadxoun
WOy oJuwoy o[Iqow mOA 305301 - JDUEINSU] OWOR S[GOJAT

WeI01J 90UeINSU] Pooy,] [EUOLEN] S USTIUIOA0S
[eI0p3) oY) G3nory) 2dueISU] PoO[y SISO [emynyy Aeqry ‘serrjod
IoUMOSWOY ISpUn paIss0d Jou S oFewep poo[y -mous Surew
USAS pUe SoUBOLINY ‘SULIO)S Aq DPIsnBd 9q UED SPOO[J "90UEINSuI
POOTJ Pa9U 0} IjeM IBST DAL O} PIJU L,UOP NOX - IUBINSU] POO[Y

zz

‘satorjod
Bﬁo. MoA U0 sywIy oY} puoksq 9FeIVA0D [BUOHIPPE M “JUSPIOOR
PSISADD B 0] OTP SJUSWIS[NSS 10 SIOIPIOA 93Ie] WIOL S19SSE INOA
s100301d souemsuy] effaIquIn) preme Al A3sod e 198811 pnoo Aedoxd
oA uo deysi 10 JUSPIOOER SNOLIdS Y 'SIE[[OP UOI[JI B 10] Pans oq
0} SIIEUOI[IU € 3¢ O} 2ABY JUOP NOX - UONIANO0IF ANIqer] [eUosIdg

"a1qearpun Axadord moxk oxew
SOFEUIEP PAIDAOD P[NOYS SWIOOUT JO $SO] Pue sofewep woxyy Aradoxd
mok spojord souemsur Aredoid Teyuey noqe Auom 01 Surg §89]
oUO 9A®Y [[NOA ‘@oURIMSU] PIOPURT YA Y3nous [nyssons st Lredord
JUSUSIATT INOA JNO SUPUSL ‘PIO[PUE] © Sy - JIURANSU] PIO[puUET

"Posu nok o5e15405 9[qepIOITE oY) op1aoxd [P “AN[IqRT] [euosIad
10 ‘suorssossod feuosyad moA Grum Mok Jo IOLISIUI SY) IDA0D 1UOM

90URINSUI S INOA ‘ISTMO OPUO0D B SV - 3JUBINSUY WINTUIUIODUO
. i - -

"o8e12A00 A3ITIqer] Teuosiad pejruny sapiaoid osje pue ‘Aeme pue
awoY e 0L 0} Ieyew ey} suorssassod oty §109301d SOURINSTI SIOJUSY
"s3urguofaq mo4 pue noL 309301d 3,USO0p BT} ING ‘U 9AI] noK urprmq
o3 300301d 0} 9oUBINSUL SBY A[OXI[ PIOJPUR] MNOX - I0WEINSUY SI93UY

“J[NeY 1B Sem ogm Jo
sso[predal ‘paseqoind nok yuny ay) 01 dn sesuedxs [eoIpotr AIBSS903U
pue oqenosear 10y Aed osfe [0 sywy Lorjod mok o3 dn swrepo
osoyy Aed pue noA jsureSe sWNE[O AU PUSJOp [[IM Terynjy Aeqry
‘sosrira1d mo4 uo oyrgm peSewrep Apedord seq 1o pamfut A[jeyxopiooe
§1 SUOQWIOS JI JBY} OS Papuioul 2q Ued 53RI0A00 AJI[Iqer] "oIOW YNt
pue ‘amyrey Smqumid ‘wsiepuea Yoy ‘ong Surpnour sIsso] Jo Kjorrea
© jsurede suorssassod pue awoy mok 309301d wes Lorjod SISUM 02Oy
Y "AJIAIIO®R [[E JO qOY 9} PUR ‘AIBMjOuBs MOA ‘s1orrenbpeay Arurey moA
S3] "SIt 2WOY IOA Juelrodunl MOy MO SA - IIUBANSUY SIDUMOIUIOFY

:10J 98810400
SISO [emyn]y A1eqr] “Iedk B SIB[[OP JO SPAIpUNy NOA 9ABS PINOd
ey sojer dnoid pajumodstp [eads Jo oSeyueape oyey o3 nok SMO[[®E
Teniniy A11eq1 Mis digsiomred oAISN[OXS INO “IQUISW VYOS B SV

20UDAINSUJ pOO].T B ‘Aa1qurT [pUOSLIJ
‘PLOIpUDT Wniunopuoy) ‘Siojudy ‘4v) ‘Saoumoamiory

[en)NJA] A)RqI]



14

"$906-11S (008) :1[e0 90UBSISSE 10] 19WIAIUT 9ARY JOU Op NOK J]
"UOJT 90URINSU] [oARI], 93U} O1[0 29 ed100s/t03 sar0uadedd Mmm JISIA

180D dixy 3o o461 08
1500 diiy Jo o411 SL
150D diig 3o 946 0L
1500 duy 3o o/ 9

3

"Io]oARI) JO 05e pue diY} JO 300 UO Paseq Se Soyey
uganso 1 )

1smayardun

"019 ‘Ae]ap SBI[J S10A00 ArJO(] [9ARI]

A

"03e10A00 ssOT/AB[e(] oFedeyg «
“Ayrioey ared syeudordde jsaresu oyy 0} nONRENORAS AoUsSIowIy

A

"S[1 973 SPISINO NOA ISA0D JOU S0P SOUBINSUI JSOUW PUR SIBIIPIA]
‘pomfur 10 Yo1s 9w00sq NOA JU S[Iq 10} o5BISA0O [BOIPAN

"SWOY Wiyal 0} sjuseguele [aAel) 10y Aed weo vondnureuy diry

A

"UOTD9UUOD PASSIW € 193U 0} parmbar 51500 uoneyrodsuern
10 soo o3ueyo Y3 10] 9FIGA0D UONOSUUO)) PISSIA <«

'sasuadxo ajqepunyeruou ‘predard 10409 03 uoneyEouR)) duy, <

“10J 9[qe[IeAR ST 93RISA0)) "SOOUBISUINOIIO JO A)9LIEA © 10] ok 100301d weo
souBMSUI [aae]) ‘dIn paxooq-J[as Jomb e isnf 1o ‘e8exoed moy ‘wonesea
HOSaI “LieJes oJIPIM ‘3SIMUO © WO 3urof 21,104 IOYIoYAy ‘Sposu ok
JOOUWI 03 9[QEZIWOISNO ST SOUBINSUL [SABI] JAISUSYQIAWIOD PIENL) [SABL],

"paroadxaun 2y jsurede purw Jo aoead nok apraoid o0y o101 St eouRMSHT
JoAel], "soysiues uwonedea e 103 pred Asuwow oy Je ‘Apueysuy -suerd
SweAen MOA SIS}[E WISIOLIG) 10 ‘IoUyeam o[qejdsoyuT Io)sestp [emjeu
® ‘Bquow Aqrmrey 10 uvorredwoo SUIeARI) B JO SSOUII WOpPNS oL

"A13800 £19A 9q URO pue Suturesm jnogim woddey
U UISSAI0JUN I} [oARI) 0] SSTWIOD L USYM ‘IOASMOF] SOUO PIAO] [IIm
awm Lyjenb pue ‘wonexear ‘Jerfex ssens [j1m nok opraoid o, prom prey
oA [Je 10§ J]osIMOA 0} premar [euosiod e oq 03 pasoddns st woyEoEA

2]q)Ivay 25002407 [PNPIPY puv uondniiazuy 40 uoyvyPouvy) disy

UB.INSUJ [PARL]

$107 ‘1 bw:svmh ey} I21[1e3 WFaq jouues 9881sA0))
"91EP 9ATI02]J0 88812400 48U} J8 988 INOK U0 Paseq 2q [[im serey Suniim

Ul JUSW[OIUS POULIFUOD Sy SJI IS [HUn 9910 Ul jou SI 98eIoA0))

"YIBIP JO 28TED
Aue 10y pred oq I SIFOULG RSP [[0Y ‘SIe9K om3 1YY -pred swmrnuord
JO %011 JO 1JSU9q [Iedp DOpEIS PINIWII] B 9AIO00I [[m Aredijouaq
o) ‘sTeok 0M3 IS SU} WIYILM JUOPIOJE AQ URY} ISTI0 SIIP poxusur sy} Iy

0S°STES 0S°€91$ 0S°78% SL
0S°ISTS 0S°971$ P98 0L
0S°T61S 057968 6v$ s9
0S°LYIS 0S'vLS 8¢S 09
056118 . <SS
s - 5

0S°SETS 0S°811S 09$ SL
0S°SLIS 05°88$ Sv$ 0L
0S°LETS 057698 0S°S€S 59
0S' €IS 0S°LSS 05°67% 09
05°S6$ 0S°8%$ T4 sS

00007 00001

'ssa001d woneorydde porprpdung o

“Aortod ot 30 oJ1] o1y 10¥ surroid (949 e

"3URIMISPUN 10 WEXS [ed[pawt & onmboi J0U 1=TeTq Y

"9JI[ 10] 9[qeMAULI PIojuRIENS PUR ONSSI PISJURIRNL) o
spujout sonjeay uerd snbropn
"IoP10 pue GG 23e asot 10§ paudisep Aqrerads sem ueyd sty
"Slqe[ieAR o8 (00°0T$ PUB 000°0T$ ‘000°C$ JO symoume ooey 25819400
"SOUO paso] MoK 10y ANfiqe)s [eroueury spiaoid o3 Kem o[qepIoye
pue Ases we SI oOUBINSU] OJIT 9[OTA\ OMSS] poojuEIEns) S SJI TR

"yseo gim dn owoo Appomb o3 o138nns 03 asey
1.uom Ararey mo£ oms oxewr Swidjoy yo Aem mo£ oq weo 9JUBADE UI JO
oIed USYE] oIe 1500 959y} Surmsuy -Aeme ssed Aoy usym sy(1q 10710 pue
$1S00 [eISUNY ‘$1q9p SUIPULISING Yiism ALY 10U} USPING O} STHEM U0 ON

WIDXH [DIIPIJA] O - INSST PIAJUDADNL

UBINSUY IJIT A[OYAA




yx4
"$906-116 (008) 1[0 10 oo saroualedd® VYOS
e IOJenSIIIUIDY  Sue]d <Yl 10BJUOD) [IOUEISISSE PIau Jo suonsang)

"noA 1s18Se pue $59001d O JIROH oY) urefdxs ([ ASY ] “ISquIow
VAdIODS © 2110A MOW| WAl 9] PUe $/0L-9%8 (LL8) 3¢ APOSTp OdreeH
[[ED '[0TUS 0} Pa3u oUW ST 2187} pue FHYd SI JPuayg SulLed OJIedy

"90UBISISSE 10Y 6906-115 (008) B0
9se9]d ‘SSO00R JOUIMUI 9ARY JOU Op 10 9OUBJSISSE POl NOA J] "TOST SOURINSU]

[eAR1], oalsueyardwo) oy uwo Sunpryo 2 TAIOOS/ WO SeIoUET ST MMM
Sunsia £q patjorus 2q ued PARA]L, sAsmyaxdmo))

"pa1onpsp [[o1ked 3q
upd q ‘Auedwods souemsur o4y yum L[30a1p pafueire ore sSwnruel ‘[[oIus
01 edIOOS/WOS TeNUIAIISAI MMM 1JISIA OS[e AW TMOX "Seiel VIHODS
PSIUNOISIP JAISN[OXS of) 303 0} dnoid s uonuewr JSAW NOX “ZISEI]
dnoip o) Suoeq nok Suruonusw pue 00v6-v7S (008) 1 Apposmp [emnyy
Ayeqry Sur[es Aq ps]jorus g URd ddUEINSUY poolq 2 ‘SIqery [puosiag
‘pro[puUR] ‘WNIUTIIOPUO)) ‘SINUIY ‘Ie)) ‘SIOUMOdMOY [emInJAl A}xdqr

‘pajonpop [01ked ore
swnrwoerd A[uoyN “[jo1us 0} BAI658/0TI00 31e51odPNTaN MMM 1JISIA osTe Aemx

DO "IqUIaI Y ODS © 216 noL jeqy Juruonuaw pue 7z99-18/ (888) 18
Apoaxp DN Sui[[es £q PaT[OIUS 9 UES BIE)) 30 (OIAHS,, 318D 19g PaIug)

"patonpep [[oxfed are

surmnrwsxd ATgyuoyA [forus oy BdIOS/SOYR ] e/W0D S0UCINSULod AMA [JISIA
0s[e AW NO & "ISqUISW ¥ YOS B 218 1oL jety} SUTUOTIUOWT PUE 4/ 8/ -8E/.
(LL8) ve Aposxp 1A Sur[es £q Por[orus oq wEd 2dUENSUY 19d (Odds IdA

"Auedwoo souemsur oy; qum Aposnp peSuelre axe SNl g nok
03 pafrewt oq (i woneorjdde s1e)s 1991100 97} PUE WIOY JUSW[OIUS PASO[OUS
o[} U0 X0q ooueInsu] 9JIT S[OYM Y} 103[9S 95BO]J "@OUSPISII JO 91BIS MOL UO
PoSEQ WLIOY JUSWI[[OIUS U SoNmbox 2dueInsuy 91T [0 AL ONSS] PIdjueIens)

"Pa1onpop Jjo1hed are swmrwoeld A[qiuopy ‘U0 JuSTI[OIID
pasopous ayy Sune[dwoo £q ur paf[orus oq weo [dAERA], 2INI3S 29 JUIPIIY
[eUosIog pue ‘ppIIS PIUL Lnuep] ‘pRIYS [edo] ‘worsip Terus(q

"ULIO ] JUSTI[OIUR
paso[ous oy wo (4 deyg) uwoposs drgsrequielN VINODS o1 oyo1dwron

0} ams oyew osedld ‘VNIODS JO IoquaWl & AJUslns jou H v3I00S
w drgsiequiswr 9Aanoe sexmbai suerd 259t Jo [[e U JUSWI[[OIUY 330N ISEI[J

[foau’yy o,

9¢

"$$9001d o1y ureydxo pue nox jsisse :E@
49U 12qUISU VYOS Ue 91,N0K MOWY WA 19 PUL §£0L-9%8 (LLS)
e Apoanp Qdresy qreo ‘wexSord ooy s Jo s3ejueApE 93eEl O],

HHIA

Arure, + Iy

"o[ge[reA® Suroueul,]

MOA IBSU SOIUT[O SULIEAY JUSIUSAUO,)

"Ansnput a3 U1 3s98u0] 943 JO 2U0 - AjueLem IR0A-¢

"99jUEIENG WONORYSTIES YoBq-AQUOM 0400 ABP-(9 92II-STY
"aTe0 dn-mo[0y 901 Ieak-au(

"satreneq jo Ajddns 1ea£ suo oa1g

1% 4q sejonb [e00] Jeaq o “esjuerens 2oud mo] pre SurresEy
"9I0W pUB ‘SUSWIANG ‘AoyIel§ ‘punogay

Supnpour spre 3ulresy jjo o467 Jo sSuwiaes areunrxoxddy

"sonsouderp pue 3unse) Furreay 330 o404

:apnjout syyousy urerdord yunoosip
Pre 3Ulesy FFY e 1Ho 0} VIY0OS Yum parsmred seq Ogresy

"SJUSWIUOIIATS SUISUL|[eYo Ul 3ourtLIOfIod SUIPUBISINO ISAT[Op
[[0s PUE J[QISIAUL AJ[ETUIIA STe SpTe Sultesy AUBIA "SIOST II0Y) J0J O] JO
Arrenb [rexsa0 oy saoxdun ApyueoyruSis Aoy ‘pony Apradoid are spre
SuLresy uoYM JeY) UMOYS SARY SOIPIS [ROTUI[O 1) SI SMAU poosd oy,

'sso] Sutreay e woy Sunmsox Surpuejsiopun goosads Ul 9SB3I93p
€ ST qorgm ‘wonearrdo(] A10)Ipny 9snes os[e ued 3 “Spre Surreoy Ieom
oYM 98e Ye[TuIls Jo 950G} 0) paredwiod UOLRIOST [RI00S pue uorssaxdop
woxy 210t 13Ns $s0] Sulresy pejeanun qm ofdosd )1 wox Suwrepyns
oS0 Iof o[ Jo Aenb [eros0 o sromof juouuredun Surrespy

"pre SuLreay e Smpad jou 10§ payIo SuOsELI
UIBW 97} oIe JUSWISSEIEQUId PUE [eIUSD ‘A[9yeuniioju/) ‘pre Surresy
© Past 9,07 Inoqe ATuo ‘o X -ssof Surreay saey ()7, o8 100 ojdoad Jo
769 18} pUnoy Apms SWIOIPSJA JO [004og AsIAry) supjdoy suyo

JJIUdY SULIBIH O JIedH



*'S906-11S (008)
3% ‘6818.L00 T VD ‘sanuady dnoin e ‘rojexistarupe uepd
9 108U ‘ss3301d JusmffoIna Yy Xo suwrd o) uo suonsanb xoy

‘sosde] YOO S w drgsmquem
mo& 10 wosear Aue 10] dojs WONOMPSP PIEd JPAId 10 9UNOIOE

SuD[AYD [0S0 JUSIAIRI MOA PINoYs Surirem JNOYIIA PIYRUIILID)
9q Aewl s08I0A0)) "SHIJOULQ 2SO} UIRIRI 0 IOPIO Ul VA0S ur smeis
drgsroquiow ureymew SN $I9QUISTA ‘spaau JI94} 0] S[qeUNS SI I
pue uefd 1021100 S} Y PI[[OIUG Uo3q dARY AOT]) JeT) TWIIJUO0D 0] IqUISTI
oy Jo Apqrsuodser oy st iy ‘suerd osoyy yo Aue Jopun peImsur oq
01 AIIqe U3 $}o31J® 1Ry} SIyE)S J1oY) Ul oS uero Aue Surpredax sorouefy
dno1n oyred 10eU00 0} IoqUOW oYy JoO Anqqisuodser oyy st 9y

"2yep 2An0ayye sjerrdordde o) Mim 9810400 30 mOREOYLIOA ©
[EUPIAIPUL 21} JUSS Sey] IOLLIED 8Yf} [HUN 9FRIOA0D 0ARY ASY]) 181} SUMSSE
jouues Tenpralpwr oy wonesydde uwe poprwiqns 9A®Y A5 JT WAL
9FBIOA0D OTURINSUT 0ATOIYJS 9ATY KoY} OUINSSE JOUTED [enpIATpUI Uy

"AuedwIos 90URINSTL U T34 PAJLI[IFe UIBSI [[i4 Iopiaoxd
© Jeqy 99juerens ou st a1eyy, “Auedwmoo souemsw we s uoner e
TIog) snuyuoostp ‘Furnrem nogum ‘Aewt sopraoid ‘quanbagur a[Iga

-oum) Aue je syonpoid yo Sursyyo pue ‘sojer “usupiorus ‘sarorjod
‘woneoridde ogy wo pooerd ore jeyy souropms ‘AyiIqelrese “0geIoA00 JO
SIS} ‘SuonenIax ‘sa[nr o 95ueo 03 Y1 o) 9ALY SIOLIIED S0UBIMSU]

"90UBIMSU] JO S37ROYIHR)) AU} JO STId) o) oFuryd [[im
‘parjdunr 10 GONTIM IOUIO ‘UISISY POUTEIUOD Sumiou pue souemsuy Jo
SIEOLIIS] € 10U ST 39P{004 SUJ, "MIJ0 UeD SINBISTU ‘IOAIMOY ‘PIISTIO
Suroq s98e10A00 oy Syussarder AJeryory pue ojemooe ore sayIsqom
O} poLIdJal pue 19[00q ST SINSUS 0} Spewl Ueaq sey jdwone K1oAg
‘suopel] ooeds 0} oNp PIUSHOYS USq Sey SuIpIoMm urepn)) Ardde
Aew syuswarmbor AnprqiSis pue ‘STOYEIIWI] ‘SUOISN[OXS [EUORIPPY
'sueld oy jo sySyySiy pue sowrewmwums SUBIUOd  J9P{00q  SIYJ,

OTes J1o7) 103 uonesuadwoo [elouRuY AUE 9A1001 VYOS S90p 10U
‘s1gaueq esoyy yo Aue IejstorwIpe 10 Spracid jou SO0P JI9sU VIIODS
Mq ‘sepusdy dnoip oywed YInory) jysusq ooy Jo UOTIRNSTUILIPE
PUB 3TN0 oY} POsIOpUS Sey Y IYODS ‘SIequiom st Jo Aianonpoid
penunyuod pue ‘ssourddery ‘Suiog-fem ‘gyesy oy Funoword g

JOWICISI(Y




PACIFIC GROUP AGENCIES, INC.

25876 The Old Road #11 ¢ Santa Clarita, CA 91381
 Tel: (800) 511-9065 o Fax: (800) 549-0059 « www.pgagencies.com/scorpa

rev 1/14




Attachment 5




California Government Code Section 31452.5.

(a) The board may comply with and give effect to a revocable written authorization signed by a
retired member or beneficiary of a retired member entitled to a retirement allowance or benefit
under this chapter, authorizing the treasurer or other entity authorized by the board to deduct a
specified amount from the retirement allowance or benefit payable to any retired member or
beneficiary of a retired member for any of the following purposes:

(1) Paying premiums on any policy or certificate of group life insurance or group disability
insurance issued by an admitted insurer.

(2) Paying premiums for a prepaid group medical or hospital service plan.

(3) Paying premiums for a vision care program or dental plan, approved by the board, for the
benefit of the retired member or his or her dependents.

(4) Paying premiums on national service life insurance or United States government converted
insurance.

(5) Payment for the purchase of shares in or the payment of money to any regularly chartered
credit union.

(6) Payment to a charitable organization or a federally chartered veterans® organization that is
approved by the board.

(7) Payments to a recognized retiree organization.

(8) Payment for the purchase of United States savings bonds.

(9) The payment of personal income taxes to the government of the United States or the State of
California.

(10) Payment for any retiree benefit programs available through the recognized retiree
organization. The board may require that this payment be to a single party designated by the
recognized retiree organization, either to itself or to a third-party administrator.

(b) Each month the order shall be drawn in favor of the insurer, institution, credit union,
organization, or government named in the written authorization for an amount equal to the
deductions authorized in subdivision (a) and made during the month.

(c) The board may charge a reasonable fee for the making of the deductions and payments.

(Amended by Stats. 2012, Ch. 178, Sec. 1. Effective January 1, 2013.)




CONTRA
= CCCERA eetng Dats
Employees' Retirement Association 11/06/13
Agenda Item
#11

MEMORANDUM

Date: November 6, 2013

To: Board of Retirement

From: Karen Levy, General Counsel

Subject: State Association of County Retirement Systems

Legislative Proposal - 2014

Recommendation

Consider the legislative proposal and provide appropriate direction to the CCCERA voting
delegate attending the State Association of County Retirement Systems ("SACRS") business
meeting, to be held on November 15, 2013.

Background

SACRS has provided its legislative proposal for 2014, which consists of PEPRA clean up
legislation. The SACRS Legislative Committee has recommended additional technical clean up
legislation in order to conform the County Employees Retirement Law of 1937 ("CERL") to the
Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 ("PEPRA"). One example provided is the need
to add the words "pensionable compensation," which is the PEPRA term for that compensation
that is included in compensation for retirement purposes, to particular provisions in CERL, as
applicable. This would be a follow up to AB 1380, the SACRS PEPRA cleanup bill already
enacted.

At the Friday, November 15, 2013, SACRS Business Meeting, SACRS member systems will be
asked to approve the SACRS proposals. The Board should provide guidance to its voting
delegate with regards to its support, opposition, or abstention on this SACRS action item.

1355Wi||owWay Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.646.5747 www.cccera.org



YEAR 2014 SACRS LEGISLATIVE PLATFORM WORKSHEET

PLEASE COMPLETE AND RETURN BY SEPTEMBER 6, 2013

Title of Issue:
Association:
Contact Person:
Phone #;

Fax #:

PEPRA Clean-up Legislation
SACRS Legislative Committee
Julie Wyne, OCERS

(714) 558-6221

Please answer the following questions as fully as possible:

Description of issue. A Subcommittee of the SACRS Legislative Committee
worked throughout 2013 to conform the County Employces Retirement Law
of 1937 (CERL) to PEPRA. After the lust set of amendments to AB 1380 in
2013, it was determined that further technical clean-up amendments are
required. For example, an important word was dropped from one of the
amendments made by AB 1380; some death benefit provisions that rely on
“compensation earnable” were not amended to include reference to
“pensionable compensation” for members subject to PEPRA, efc,
Additionally, the Subcommittee identified some provisions of the CERL
unique to specific county systems that may be obsolete or require updating,

Recommended solution. Prepose legislation to accomplish technical clean-up
amendments to the CERL related to conformance with PEPRA that were
not included in AB 1380 nor SB 13 of 2013,

Specific language that you would like changed in, or added to, '37 Act Law, and
suggested code section numbers, To be determined.

Why should the proposed legislation be sponsored by SACRS rather than by your
individual retirement association? This language will be applicable to all ‘37
Act systems.

Do you anticipate that the proposed legislation would create any major problems,
such as conflicting with Proposition 162 or create a problem with any of the other
19 SACRS retirement associations? None anticipated. This bill is intended to
only address technical corrections to facilitate implemenrtation of PEPRA
and clarify the CERL.

Who will support or oppose this proposed change in the law? SACRS will
sponsor; individual systems may support,

Who will be available from your association to testify before the Legislature?

Julie Wyne and Richard Stensrud




MEMORANDUM

ReedSmith Meeting Date
11/06/13
Agenda Item 101 Second Street
#12 Suite 1800
. San Francisco, CA 94105-3659
From: Harvey L. Leiderman +1 415 543 8700
Direct Phone: +1 415659 5914 Fax +1 415 391 8269
Email: HLeiderman@reedsmith.com reedsmith.com
To: Members of the Board of Retirement
Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association
Date: October 29, 2013
Subject: Proposed Legislation Making CCCERA a Separate District

The Settlement Agreement entered into between CCCERA and the County, and approved by the
Superior Court, provides that the parties will jointly seek legislation that separates CCCERA from the
County and makes it an autonomous district participating in CCCERA, with its own employees who will
continue to be members of the retirement system. In concert with the County Counsel’s Office, we have
prepared the enclosed draft text of a bill to accomplish these purposes. The bill adds and amends
various sections of the County Employees Retirement Law of 1937. Once approved by the parties, we
will jointly seek a sponsor in the Legislature and proceed to take all steps to secure passage of the bill in

the coming legislative session.

In August, the County HR Department provided copies of the draft legislation to the two bargaining
units that represent employees presently working at CCCERA, asking them to review and approve of the
proposed legislation. We have had a series of communications with AFSCME, leading to additional
language they sought in the bill to provide for a smooth transition between the County and CCCERA as
the employer of their members. That language is acceptable to us as counsel. We are authorized to
represent to the Board that AFSCME is satisfied with the language of the bill in its present form and will
support its passage in the Legislature. We have not heard back from Local 21 as of this date.

We will review the proposed bill with the Board in open session at the November 7, 2013 Board

meeting and seek Board approval to proceed to find a sponsor and move the bill through the Legislature.
We recommend that the Board approve the proposed bill in its present form.

c¢: Marilyn Leedom, CEO

NEW YORK ¢ LONDON ¢ HONG KONG ¢ CHICAGO ¢ WASHINGTON, D.C. ¢ BEIJING ¢ PARIS ¢ LOS ANGELES ¢ SAN FRANCISCO ¢ PHILADELPHIA ¢ SHANGHAI ¢ PITTSBURGH ¢ HOUSTON
SINGAPORE ¢ MUNICH ¢ ABU DHABI ¢ PRINCETON ¢ NORTHERN VIRGINIA ¢ WILMINGTON ¢ SILICON VALLEY ¢ DUBAI ¢ CENTURY CITY ¢ RICHMOND ¢ GREECE ¢KAZAKHSTAN



CCCERA PROPOSED LEGISLATION
SECTION 1. Section 31522.9 is added to the Government Code, to read:

31522.9. (a) The board of retivement may appoint a retirement
administrator and such other personnel as are required to accomplish the
necessary work of the board. The board may authorize the administrator to make
any such appointments on its behalf. Notwithstanding any other provision of law,
the personnel so appointed shall not be county employees but shall be employees
of the retirement system, subject to terms and conditions of employment
established by the board of retirement, including those set forth in any
memoranda of understanding executed by the board of retirement and recognized
employee organizations.

(b) Sections 31522.1 and 31522.2 shall not be applicable to any
retivement system electing to appoint personnel pursuant to this section.

(c) The retirement system electing to appoint personnel pursuant to this
section shall be a “public agency” for purposes of the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act,
Government Code Sections 3500 et seq.

(d) The compensation of personnel appointed pursuant to this section
shall be an expense of administration of the retirement system, pursuant o
Section 31580.2, except as provided in Sections 31529.5, 31529.9 and 31596.1.

(e) The board of retirement and the board of supervisors may enter into
such agreements as they determine are necessary and appropriate in order o
carry out the provisions of this section.

(f) The retirement system, upon the effective date of this section, shall retain,
for a 90 day transition employment period, non-probationary employees who, upon
the effective date of this section, were covered by a county memorandum of
understanding and employed by the county at the retirement system’s facilities,
providing that neither just cause exists to terminate such employee nor legitimate
grounds exist to lay off any such employees. If at any time during such 90 day period
the retirement system determines that a layoff of such employees is necessary, the
retirement system shall retain such employees by seniority within job classification.
The terms and conditions of employees retained pursuant to this subdivision shall be
subject to those terms and conditions established by any memoranda of
understanding executed by the board of retirement and recognized employee
organizations applicable to such employees.

(2) Subject to the employees’ rights under the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act, the
retirement system, upon the effective date of this section, shall recognize as the
exclusive collective bargaining representative of the employees retained pursuant to
subdivision (f) of this section the employee organization that previously represented
those employees when employed by the county. The initial terms and conditions for
those employees shall be as previously established by the county memorandum of
understanding applicable to such employees.

(h) This section shall apply only in Contra Costa County.




SECTION 2. Section 31468 (1)(3) is added to the Government Code, to read:

31468 (1)(3)  “District” also includes the retirement system established
under this chapter in Contra Costa County.

SECTION 3. Section 31529.9 is amended to read:

31529.9. (a) In addition to the powers granted by Sections 31522.5,
31522.9,31529, 31529.5, 31614, and 31732, the board of retirement and the
board of investment may contract with the county counsel or with attorneys in
private practice or employ staff attorneys for legal services.

(b) Notwithstanding Sections 31522.5, 31522.7, 31522.9, 31529.5, and
31580, the board shall pay, from system assets, reasonable compensation for the
legal services.

(c) This section applies to any county of the 2nd class, 7th class, 9th class,
14th class, 15th class, or the 16th class as described by Sections 28020, 28023,
28028, 28030, 28035, 28036, and 28037.

(d) This section shall also apply to any other county if the board of
retirement, by resolution adopted by majority vote, makes this section applicable
in the county.

SECTION 4. Section 31557.3 is amended to read:

31557.3. On the date a district, as defined in subdivision (1) of Section
31468, is included in the retirement system, any personnel appointed pursuant to
Section 31522.5, 31529.9 or 31522.9 who had previously been in county service
shall continue to be members of the system without interruption in service or loss
of credit. Thereafter, each person entering employment with the district shall
become a member of the system on the first day of the calendar month following
his or her entrance into service.

SECTION 5. Section 31580.2 of the Government Code is amended to read:

31580.2 (a) In counties in which the board of retirement, or the board of
retirement and the board of investment, have appointed personnel pursuant to
Section 31522.1, 31522.5, 31522.7, or 31522.9, the respective board or boards
shall annually adopt a budget covering the entire expense of administration of the
retirement system which expense shall be charged against the earnings of the
retirement fund. The expense incurred in any year may not exceed the greater of
either of the following:

(1) Twenty-one hundredths of 1 percent of the accrued actuarial liability
of the retirement system.




(2) Two million dollars ($2,000,000), as adjusted annually by the amount
of the annual cost-of-living adjustment computed in accordance with
Article 16.5 (commencing with Section 31870).

(b) Expenditures for computer software, computer hardware, and
computer technology consulting services in support of these computer products
shall not be considered a cost of administration of the retirement system for
purposes of this section.




CONTRA
gggg%YCCCEI b \ Meeting Date
Employees’ Retirement Association 11/06/13
Agenda Item
#13

MEMORANDUM

Date: November 6, 2013

To: Board of Retirement
Marilyn Leedom, Retirement Chief Executive Officer

From: Karen Levy, General Counsel
Subject: Legislation Update
Recommendation

Receive and File.

Summary of Legislation Recently Enacted

October 13, 2013 was the last day for the Governor to sign or veto legislative bills. Here is a
summary of recently enacted legislation that is relevant to CCCERA and its Board of
Retirement. The legislation includes topics such as Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of
2013 ("PEPRA") clean-up language, investments, public records and open meetings laws.

AB 205 - PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT: PENSION FUND MANAGEMENT.
Effective January 1, 2014, this bill amends Government Code Section 7514.2 to authorize CERL  ——
retirement boards to prioritize investment in an in-state infrastructure project over a comparable
out-of-state infrastructure project. Such authority already exists in the law for CalPERS and

CalSTRS. This bill states that the legislature encourages each retirement board to prioritize

investment in in-state infrastructure projects over alternative out-of-state infrastructure projects if

the investments in the in-state projects are consistent with the board's fiduciary duties to

minimize the risk of loss and to maximize the rate of return.

AB 382 - STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS: ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS:

PUBLIC ACCESS.
Effective January 1, 2014, this bill adds an exemption to the Ralph M. Brown Act Open
Meetings Law, which generally requires that any documents provided to the board at a public

1355Wi||owWay Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.646.5747 www.cccera.org

Page 1



SLCCCERA

Emp oyees Retirement Association

meeting must be made available upon request without delay. The Public Records Act already
exempts from disclosure certain specified alternative investments records, for example, due
diligence materials and quarterly statements. (Government Code Section 6254.26.) AB 382
added a consistent exemption to the Brown Act: if the alternative investments records specified
as confidential pursuant to 6254.26 are distributed to the board members at a public meeting, that
distribution does not make them public document. The records retain their confidential nature.

AB 1380 - COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT.

This was an urgency bill that is effective immediately. It is "round one" of PEPRA clean up
language sponsored by the State Association of County Retirement Systems ("SACRS"), with
"round two" anticipated to come next year. The bill amended various provisions of the County
Employees Retirement Law of 1937 ("CERL") to coordinate with PEPRA. The bill added
references in CERL to PEPRA in general as well as to specific provisions within PEPRA, as

appropriate.

SB 13 - PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT BENEFITS.

SB 13 was also an urgency bill. Its purpose is to clarify PEPRA and it states that it is declaratory
of existing law and is intended to be applied as of the effective date of PEPRA, January 1, 2013.
The bill:

e Clarifies that members with concurrent membership within 6 months of beginning
employment with a new employer are exempt from PEPRA tiers and should be placed in
the pre-PEPRA Classic/Legacy retirement tiers (Section 7522.02(c));

e C(larifies that an employer is not precluded from offering a defined contribution plan on
or after January 1, 2013, if the employer did not offer one prior to that date (Section
7522.02(e));

e C(Clarifies that a retirement system must modify its plans in accordance with PEPRA and is
authorized to adopt resolutions or regulations to do so (Section 7522.02(h));

e (larifies that the calculation of normal cost can be done either as a single rate of
contribution or as age-based rate of contributions (Section 7522.04(g));

e C(larifies that the pensionable compensation Consumer Price Index ("CPI") adjustment is
to be calculated each September and compared to the month of September in the
preceding calendar year (Section 7522.10(d)(1));

e (larifies that employers are required on and after January 1, 2013 to offer PEPRA
formulas to "new members" who are safety employees (deleting the reference to "new
employees") (Section 7522.25(e));

o Clarify that the definition of "normal cost rate" takes into account actuarial assumptions
and must include any elements that would impact the actuarial determination of the

1355Wi||owWay Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.646.5747 www.cccera.org

Page 2



SLCCCERA

Employees’ Retirement Association

normal cost, including retirement formula, eligibility and vesting criteria, ancillary
benefit provisions, and automatic cost-of-living adjustments (Section 7522.30(b));

e Clarifies that new members must have an initial contribution rate of at least 50 percent of
the normal cost rate or the current contribution rate of similarly situated employees,
whichever is greater, if the greater current contribution rate has been agreed to through
the collective bargaining process (Section 7522.30(c));

e C(larifies that exclusions from "pensionable compensation" apply to "new members."
(Section 7522.34(c));

e Adds that State employers and State employees can agree in a Memorandum of
Understanding ("MOU") that any form of compensation they identify in the MOU is
nonpensionable. The State can determine whether the same exclusion applies to non-
represented employees. The State employer must inform the retirement system of the
excluded form of compensation and provide a copy of the MOU (for represented
employees) and public pay schedule detailing the exclusion (for unrepresented
employees) (Section 7522.34(c)(13)).

e Clarifies that the prohibition against employers offering Internal Revenue Code Section
415 replacement benefit plans is applicable to "new members" (deleting the reference to
"new employees") (Section 7522.43(a));

o (Clarifies that the exemption from the 180 "sit out" for safety members who retire and are
reemployed without reinstatement only applies if the reemployed retiree is a safety
member "hired to perform a function or functions regularly performed by a safety officer
or firefighter" (Section 7522.56); and

e Repeals Section 7522.66 regarding safety industrial disability in its entirety.

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.646.5747 www.cccera.org

Page 3



COSTA { |
el C - I z A Mle 7? SZ/D’gte
Agenda Item

Employees’ Retirement Association
#14

MEMORANDUM

Date: November 6, 2013

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement

From: Kurt Schneider, Deputy Retirement Chief Executive Officer
Subject: On-call pay in final year only

At the September 4, 2013 meeting, staff presented an example based on a member who retired
July 1, 2013. In the example the member received approximately $10,000 of on-call pay in the
final 12 months of employment after receiving no on-call pay prior to that period. If the on-call
pay were included in the retirement calculation, the employer’s unfunded liability would increase
by approximately $56,000. The Board directed staff to process the retirement without including
the on-call pay, notify the member, and gather information from the member and the employer to
determine if the on-call pay should properly be including as compensation earnable in the
calculation of the retirement benefit.

The retiree was a Charge Nurse at the hospital and was assigned to the “Epic team”. Epic is an
Electronic Health Record (EHR) system. The retiree was assigned to the team in May 2011 along
with several other nurses and employees of various other job classifications. Team members
received extensive training on Epic in order to help determine how the system should be built
and to help build it and train personnel to use it. The Charge Nurse was not performing nursing
duties during this time. The team also was required to provide support after the system was
implemented. When the system was implemented in July 2012, on-call duty was required of

team members.

The team members had no way of knowing at the time they were assigned to the team in 2011
that on-call duty was going to be required, and this retiree did not volunteer for an inordinate
amount of on-call duty. In fact, the retiree left the team three months prior to retirement and had
no on-call pay in the final three months of employment. Within the Epic team the retiree was
assigned to the “Clinical Documentation” team. One person from the Clinical Documentation
team was on call every day from July 30, 2012 through June 30, 2013, 336 days. The team had 7
members to start with, though it was later reduced. The retiree was on call for 48 of the 336 days,

exactly 1 out of every 7.

1355 WillowWay Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.646.5747 www.cccera.org



A number of reasons have been suggested as to why some or all of this type of pay should be
excluded in the calculation of the retirement benefit.

1.

Pay for services rendered outside of normal working hours.

At the April 10, 2013 meeting, the Board discussed the fact that on-call pay appeared to
be completely excluded from compensation earnable by AB 197, however the court
ordered stay prevents us from fully excluding on-call pay entirely on this basis pending a
decision in the AB 197 lawsuit.

Compensation that was paid to enhance a retirement benefit.

Although the same stay order would prevent us from excluding the pay at this time on
this basis, we have gathered enough information to conclude that there does not appear to
be sufficient evidence to support the notion that any of this on-call pay was paid to
enhance a retirement benefit.

Fraud against county retirement systems under Gov. Code §31455.5

There is no evidence to suggest the retiree or the employer made false statements to the
retirement system.

Excluded as an “improper” increase in compensation by the member under Gov.
Code §31539(a)(2)

Gov. Code §31539 allows the Board to correct errors. In this context the word
“improper” means erroneous. The on-call pay was earned by the member and was paid to
the member during the final average period. There has been no error to correct under this

section.

A fiduciary obligation to prevent the creation of the $56,000 unfunded liability that
will be paid for by employers (and ultimately the taxpayer), along with interest, over
an 18 year period.

The unfunded liability was created by the employer’s pay practices, not by the Board. It
is the Board’s responsibility to set a funding policy that requires the employer(s) to pay
for the unfunded liability that arises. Note that it is the Board’s current funding policy
that allows the employer to spread the liability over the cost group and to stretch out the
payments over 18 years. The Board has the authority to adopt a funding policy that would
determine what portion of an experience loss of this sort is excessive and require payment
by the employer for that portion of the loss over any period as short as 1 year.

Recommendation: Authorize staff to adjust the retiree’s benefit to fully include the on-call pay.

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.646.5747 www.cccera.org




'CONTRA COSTA
HEALTH SERVICES

Memo

To: Kurt Schneider

From: DavidJ. Runm%/
Cc: Dorette McCollumn

Date: October 28, 2013

Re: -Retirement

The retiree in question,_ was a Charge Nurse at the hospital and working on the
Clinical Documentation team for implementation of the new electronic health record (EHR)

system from Epic Systems, Inc, which is known as cclLink at Contra Costa. was assigned
to the team in May 2011 along with several other nurses and employees in vagi ther job
classifications. Team members were asked to volunteer for this assignment. was not
performing nursing duties during the time of this assignment.

Individuals assigned to the Team received extensive training on the Epic system in order to
participate in its build, training, and support activities. Once the system “went live” July 1, 2012,
team members were required to provide after-hours support. All On Call support was made as
equitable as possible across all the team members to ensure not person did not have an
inordinate amount of On Call. One person from the Clinical Documentation team was on call
every day from July 30, 2012 through June 30, 2013, 336 days. The team had 7 members to
start with, though it was later reduced. The retiree was on call for 48 of the 336 days, exactly 1

out of every 7 days.

-left the team three months prior to retirement and had no on-call pay in the final three
months of employment.

If you have any questions, please contact me.




[RECFIVE
| SEP 112013
September 11, 2013 !‘g .
Kurt Schneider
Deputy Retirement Chief Executive Officer
CCCERA

1355 Willow Way, Suite 221
Concord, CA 94520

Re: Retirement Calculation — On-Call Pay

eraploye NN
Dear Mr. Schneider:

I recently received your letter regarding the exclusion of my On-Call pay in my retirement calculations. |
did not receive the On-Call pay as an enhancement, to the contrary it was an expectation in the last year
that | worked on the EPIC project that was not negotiable if | stayed on the project. Most of the
empioyees (there were ninety at that time) working on the project were told they would be working On-
Call in rotating turns within their teams after the “Go Live” of the electronic charting and last | heard this
is still an on-going expectation. On my EPIC team, each member rotated into On-Call duty once a month
to be done 5pm to 8am each day for a week. Immediately after “go-live” the On-Call had nightly call
backs, resulting in call back pay. This was very arduous work as we were then expected to be at work at
8am and work a full day despite being called back during the night. The call backs did taper off after
about 6 months. My supervisors that scheduled the On-Call are _and—
whom 1 believe are still in administrative positions on the EPIC project if you wish to contact them
regarding the On-Call. The Payroli department received detailed documentation of ali On-Call and Call
Back time that | worked. These time sheets were reviewed and signed by the above supervisors.

If you have any questions for me regarding this On-Call time you may reach me at (I ' am
hoping that you will resolve this matter quickly. As | am sure you are aware, the process of getting my
retirement has taken mare than two years to compile and many meetings. It has already been a difficult
process and despite having all my paperwork in place since June, | have only just received my options
package and thus have not received any retirement pay.

Thank you for your time in this matter,




(’E()N:["}{A :;(:r E,
&C)){s]\i]%& | L Meeting Date
Employee Retlrement Assouatlon 11/06/13
Agenda Item
#15

MEMORANDUM

Date: October 29, 2013
To: CCCERA Board of Retirement
From: Marilyn Leedom Retirement CEO

Timothy Price, Retirement CIO

Subject: Board Meeting Recordings

Background

At the October 23, 2013 Board Meeting, several Board members asked to revisit the decision to
record Board meetings and post those recordings on the CCCERA website. This practice began,
at least partially, in pursuit of greater accountability and transparency for Board decisions. At
this time we reduced the amount of detail included in the meeting minutes with the realization
that the recording would be accessible by the public and other interested parties.

Administratively, this process has been implemented and processes have changed. However,
we have experienced an unintended consequence of this process. In some cases, Investment
managers under consideration review the recordings as soon as available and have insight into
our investment and negotiation strategy, many times before we have had the necessary
discussions to continue our due diligence process.

The issue that has arisen is whether and how the Board can engage in discussions surrounding
strategies to achieve key terms or fee reductions when the recordings are made and posted. In
certain instances, these negotiations can extend over a period of months, during which time
the recordings are a public record. To date, California law does not allow the Board to discuss
contracting or consider new investment managers during closed sessions.

Recommendation

We recommend that the Board revisit the decision to record and post Board meeting
discussions. Proper governance of CCCERA requires that a balance be struck between
transparency and open discussion of strategy. The possibility of disclosing the Board's strategy
with respect to hiring new managers was not contemplated when the recording policy was put
in place. At the very least, the Board needs to consider if they can accept or mitigate this

development.

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX: 925.646.5747 www.cccera.org



CONTRA
COSTA ‘ ‘ ‘ RA Meeting Date
COUNTY 11/06/13

E s’ Retire t A t
mployees’ Retirement Association P vebpisgliel
#16

MEMORANDUM

Date: October 30, 2013

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement

From: Timothy Price, Retirement CIO

Subject: CCCERA Commitment to Aether Real Assets Fund Il and Surplus Fund Il
Overview

The Board approved an aggregate commitment of $75 million to Aether (525 million to ARA
Fund Il and S50 million to ARA Surplus Fund Ill) at the May 29, 2013 Board meeting as an
anchor position in the CCCERA private real assets program. The commitment was made subject
to the standard CCCERA on-site review and an operational due diligence review. The
operational due diligence (ODD) review was completed by Kreischer Miller (KM) on October 24,
2013 and the Board on-site review was completed on October 28, 2013.

The CCCERA representatives at the on-site review included Debora Allen, Russell Watts, Marilyn
Leedom, Tim Price and Marty Dirks from Milliman. We reviewed the firm’s background,
investment philosophy, sourcing of investment ideas, due diligence and portfolio construction
processes. We came away with a confirmed and deepened understanding of the firm’s
investment philosophy and process.

The outstanding issue was the firm’s compliance with SSAE 16 (formerly known as SAS 70). This
is an independent review of internal controls and procedures. In this case, Aether’s fund
administrator did not have this certification, but is in the process of pursuing it. The fund
administrator is pursuing this certification, but the process will likely take 18-24 months.

Recommendation

The fund administrator’s lack of a SSAE 16 certification was not known to the Board at the time
that the commitment was made in May 2013. While the fund administrator is pursuing an SSAE
16 examination, it will not be complete by the time that CCCERA would have to commit to

1355Wi||owWay Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.646.5747 www.cccera.org



Aether Fund lll, and would in fact most likely not be available until the fund had completed all
of its commitments (in the next two years).

The illiquid nature of these investments (capital could be committed to Aether for the next 12
years) makes it imperative the Board affirm or rescind the $75 million commitment to Aether at
this time. Aether anticipates a first close on the fund by November 22, 2013. We will need to
inform Aether of our intent to proceed or rescind our commitment well in advance of that date.




NCPERS: National Conference on Public Employee Retirement Systems

¥ HOME

¥ MEMBERS ONLY
 MEMBERSHIP

¥ EDUCATIONAL CONFERENCES
¥ NEWS

# NCPERS BLOG

¥ RESOURCE CENTER

# VIDEQS

¥ GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS

¥ MEDIA

¥ NCPERS {NSURANCE

¥ CHARITABLE FOUNDATION
¥ ARCHIVES

¥ ABOUT NCPERS

¥ CONTACT US

‘ollow Us
on Facebook

2 Follow Us
on Twitter

Follow Us
. on Google+

Connect
on Linkedin

Connect
on Youtube

Page 1 of 2

HOME @ MEMBERS ONLY 11 | | Search |

Meeting Date
11/06/13
Agenda Item
#17a.

Count on NCPERS for information, knowledge, education, and powerful advocacy to protect
the financial security of the retirees who depend on you.

Legislative Conference
The NCPERS Annual Legislative Conference is the premier conference for public fund trustees and plan

administrators, hightighting the issues on Capitol Hill and in federal regulatory agencies that affect pension funds
today.

Past conferences have brought senior administration officials, Members of Congress and Washington insiders to help
aducate fund members on the critical issues affecting public pensions and equip them with the tools needed to deal
with these issues effectively and meat-face-to-face with thelr elected leaders on the Hill.

2014 Legistative Conference
January 26-28

LCapitol Hilton Hotel
Washington, DC

This year, in conjunction with the Legislative Conference, NCPERS will also host a one-day "Healthcare
Symposiuny” on January 28, This program will focus on the Affordable Care Act {(ACA) implementation and
regulations, Medicare, and other federal and state healthcare issues.

+ Save the Date!

Registration Fees

Legislative Conference Preliminary Agenda
Healthcare Symposium Agenda
2014 Legistative Brochure

» Registration

+  Hotel Reservations

i Call for Speakers

+ Sponsorship Opportunities

Past Legislative Conferences

EDUCATIONAL CONFERENCES
® August 19-21, 2013

MORE NEWS

# September 2013 Issue of the Monitor

SPOTLIGHY
2013 Public

Safety Now Available {August 29, 2013) Program for Advanced Trustee Studies
Employees e

Per?sio); & B NCPERS Responds to The Economist's Cambridge, MA

Benefits "‘Who pays the bill? Pensioners are pushing B October 27-30, 2013

Conference many cities and states toward financial Public Safety Conference

Registration for

crisis’ (August 27, 2013)

# Bloomberg BNA: Detroit Bankruptey
Fiting Raises Constitutional Issues, Could
Affect Other Plans (August 20, 2013)

B August 2013 issue of the Monitor Now
Avaitable (August 13, 2013)

# NCPERS Letter to the New York Times
Responding to an August 4, 2013 Op Ed A
Plan to Avert the Pension Crisis’ (August &,
2013)

http://www.ncpers.org/Conferences/Legislative/

Rancho Mirage, CA
® January 26-28, 2014
Legislative Conference
Washington, DC
B April 26-27, 2014
Trustee Educational Seminar
San Antonio, TX
® Aprit 27-May 1, 2014
Annual Conference & Exhibition
San Antonio, TX

READ MORE £4

9/10/2013



The Voice for Public Pensions

2014 LEGISLATIVE CONFERENCE

Sunday, January 26
3:00 pm - 5:30 pm

5:00 pm - 6:00 pm

Monday, January 27
7:00 am - 8:00 am

7:00 am - 5:30 pm

January 26 - 28
Capital Hilton Hotel
Washington, DC

PRELIMINARY AGENDA

Conference Registration

Networking Reception

Breakfast

Registration

8:00 am - 12:00 pm General Session

12:00 pm - 1:30 pm Networking Luncheon

1:30 pm - 5:00 pm

5:30 pm - 6:30 pm

Tuesday, January 28

7:00 am - 8:00 am

8:00 am - 5:00 pm

General Session - continued

Networking Reception

Breakfast

Congressional Appointments
Or
Healthcare Symposium



National Institute on Retirement - National Institute on Retirement :: Annu... Page 1 of 1

Annual Policy Conference ey

R

: The Annual NIRS Policy Conference brings thought leaders from across the retirement
industry and policy spectrum—retirement plan service providers, regulators and
policymakers, and plan sponsors and administrators—together in Washington D.C. each
spring to discuss and identify policy solutions aimed at improving Americans' retirement
prospects.

The Fifth Annual Police Conference will be held on March 3-4, 2014 in Washington, D.C.
at the Washington Court Hotel. Please check back to this page for more details.

BRSNS {

Learn more about the previous Annual Policy Conferences in 2013, 2012, 2011 and 2010.

Close Window

http://www.nirsonline.org/index2.php?option=com_content&task=view&i... 10/21/2013



Marilyn Leedom

From: Cheryl Marrow <cmarrow@koried.com>

Sent: Thursday, October 03, 2013 9:05 AM

To: Marilyn Leedom

Subject: Register Now for KORIED'S Institutional Investors' Roundtable - Sa FIﬁ\CiSCQ, CA
eeting Date
11/06/13

Agenda Item
#17b.

KORIED A8

The Fiduciary Speaks Series |l:
Fresh Approaches - Fresh Solutions

December 2 - 4, 2013

Westin St. Francis Hotel
San Francisco, CA




HERNDON CAPITAL  THOMAS WHITE
Management 1 N} h RN} f\?l » O N g‘{\ L_‘

Copduing Vokie Waorldwids®

Lara Druyan Oliver C. Mitchell, Jr. The Honorable Donald R.
] Vice Chair Board Member White
San Jose Federated City Pennsvlvania Stz T _
Employees” Retirement System Pennsylvania State reasurer
Employees’ Retirement System Alameda County, CA

¢ Monday, December 2, 2013




-
é%

e Wednesday, December 4, 2013

Registration Fees

Slan Sponsor (Public Fund Trustees/StaftfUnion Officials)
5395.00

sevice p?{}%i{ﬁ%’ﬁ? {investment Professionals/Vendors)
ﬁ?i g\{\f»

Sponsorship Opportunities

sitver Sponsor
(includes 2 registrations, Silver Sponsor Listing in Brochure, Logo Inclusion in marketing
nisterial) $3,880.00

sold Sponsor
Includes 3 registrations, panel participation, 1/2 page ad in conference brochure, Company literature in Conference
Jag) $8,000.00

Siamond Sponsor
Includes 3 registrations, special signage at an event, full page ad in conference brochure, Company literature in Conference
3&@, Booth Space) §7,800. %:%i}

CANCELLATIONS
Sonference registration cancellations received in writing before November 1, 2013 will qualify for a refund, less 10% handiing
sharge. NO refund will be given on cancellations after this date, although su ibstitutions wiii be acceptad.

4otel information

THE WESTIN 8T. FRANCIS
SAN FRANCISCO ON UNION SQUARE

well Strast,
nciseo, CA 84102
740470 F 415403 8891

Lt

8P
san -
415,

5
g

TS

oW
&
7

Sonference Rate: $218.00 (Single or Double Ocoupancy) per night

“otel Link: https://www.starwoodmeeting.com/StarGroupsWeb/booking/reservation?id=1308170180&key=1DF9




Unsubscribe
i




-~

11/06/13
Agenda Item

Meeting Date

X
e
o
>
=
(544
z

APELLA

UM S

l{)ﬁti.i_u_ﬁ;;x:;ﬂ
nvestor
FOR

S
=
=
=
L
cd
k..
Lh
Y’

JANUARY 14-15, 2014

3RD ANNUAL

N e
e
.




» Institutional Investor Forums — 3™ Annual Risk & Liquidity Forum

ll’nsiiﬁtuional

RYesior

FORUMS

Advisory Board

David Chapman, Chief Investment Officer, ALAS, Inc., a Risk Retention Group

Joy Namhee Wilkinson, State Investment Officer, Alaska Retirement Management Board
Anjum T. Hussain, Director of Risk Management, Case Western Reserve University

Marc Gauthier, Treasurer, Concordia University

Laura R. Rubinstein, Vice President, Investments, FINRA

Mark Baumgartner, Ph.D., CFA, Director, Asset Allocation and Risk, The Ford Foundation
Vijoy Chattergy, Chief Investment Officer, Hawaii State PERS

Raynald D. Leveque, Director of Risk, New York State Common Retirement Fund

Kevin Zhu, CFA, CMT, Director, Strategy & Asset Mix, Ontario Teachers’ Pension Plan
Sonali Dalal, Senior Director, Investment Strategy and Research, Penn State University

Jean-Francois Bureau, CFA, Chief Risk Officer, PSP Investment

Melanie Lomas, Risk Manager, State of New Jersey Division of Investments

Syed Haque, Portfolio Manager - Global Equities, United Parcel Service of America, Inc.
Mike Edleson, Chief Risk Officer, The University of Chicago

Jonathan L. Shear, Chief Investment Officer, University of Utah

Kathleen Wagner, Senior Associate, Portfolio Risk Management, UTIMCO

Forum Chairperson:
Kathleen Wagner, Senior Associate, Portfolio Risk Management, UTIMCO

» Page 2 Using Asset Allocation and Portfolio Construction to Take Advantage of Risk & Liquidity Issues
January 14-15, 2014 | Apella | New York



» Institutional Investor Forums — 3™ Annual Risk & Liquidity Forum

Sponsoring Organizations (to date)

Anchor Sponsor:

Janus Capital Group

Lead Sponsors:
INTECH

Schroder Investment Management

Co Sponsor:

AXA Investment Managers

» Page 3 Using Asset Allocation and Portfolio Construction to Take Advantage of Risk & Liquidity Issues
January 14-15, 2014 | Apella | New York



» Institutional Investor Forums — 3™ Annual Risk & Liquidity Forum

Preliminary Program as of September 26, 2013

Using Asset Allocation and Portfolio Construction to Turn Risk
& Liquidity Issues Into an Advantage

Investors have been dealing with risk and liquidity issues for several years now; the issues have always been there to varying degrees
but have risen to the forefront of asset owners’ minds since the problems of 2008-2010. Over these years, investors’ thinking about
these issues has evolved and the asset management industry has moved to introduce solutions and to develop strategies to help
investors cope.

The 2014 Risk & Liquidity Forum will present the latest, best thinking on those solutions and risk management strategies but we will
also turn a lens on the ways that investors — and their managers — have begun to view risk and liquidity issues as an opportunity as well
as a bane of our current reality. This day and a half program will be stocked with experts from both leading asset management firms
and speakers from leading, innovative institutions who will provide their expertise — through panel sessions, discussion groups, and
real-world case studies — on how they are not only managing these risks but also turning these issues to an advantage.

Tuesday, January 14

8:00 am
Registration and Continental Breakfast

Apella Lounge

8:40 am
Welcome

Apella 200
Forum Chairperson:

Kathleen Wagner, Senior Associate, Portfolio Risk Management, UTIMCO

8:45 am

Guest Presentation

Asset allocation with illiquidity risks

Apella 200

With an Introduction by:

Mark Baumgartner, Ph.D., CFA, Director, Asset Allocation and Risk, The Ford Foundation
Presented by:

Andrew Ang, Ann F. Kaplan Professor of Business; Chair, Finance and Economics Division, Columbia University

Based upon a case study of one of the world’s most famous endowments, Professor Ang will discuss the consequences of (il)liquidity for
investment decisions. What lessons can be learned from this case study and how this once-envied endowment re-evaluated its
portfolio management strategy to manage illiquidity risks better?

9:30 am
Panel Discussion

» Page 4 Using Asset Allocation and Portfolio Construction to Take Advantage of Risk & Liquidity Issues
January 14-15, 2014 | Apella | New York



» Institutional Investor Forums — 3™ Annual Risk & Liquidity Forum

How can funds position themselves within the macro landscape within their risk and liquidity
guidelines?

Apella 200

Moderator:

Laura R. Rubinstein, Vice President, Investments, FINRA

Panelists:

Eugene L. Podkaminer, Vice President of Capital Markets Research Group, Callan Associates Inc.

Additional panelists to be confirmed

o,

% What adjustments, if any, are you implementing on your liquidity requirement models to reflect current low volatility/low rates?

.

% Is it possible to achieve sufficient real returns to meet investment objectives within risk and liquidity guidelines?

“+ How can investors use scenario analysis to project real returns across different market environments?

e

% What are the consequences of allocating more to the private markets?

10:15am
Presentation

Risk management in the real world (proposed)

Apella 200

Presented by:

Stephen Kwa, Senior Client Portfolio Manager, Schroder Investment Management

10:45am
Coffee Break

Apella Lounge

11:00 am

Workshop Series I

Workshop A

Exploiting the low vol anomaly within asset allocation

% Are these becoming crowded trades?

Apella 203

Workshop B

Addressing problems with indices
Apella 207

11:45am
Workshop Series I1

Workshop C

The risk and liquidity consequences of moving to an LDI strategy
Apella 203

Workshop D

To be determined

Apella 207

» Page 5 Using Asset Allocation and Portfolio Construction to Take Advantage of Risk & Liquidity Issues
January 14-15, 2014 | Apella | New York



» Institutional Investor Forums — 3™ Annual Risk & Liquidity Forum

Lunch

Riverpark

2:00 pm
Panel Discussion

Implementing low volatility strategies

Apella 200

Moderator:

Syed Haque, Portfolio Manager - Global Equities, United Parcel Service of America, Inc.
Panelists:

Senior Representative, AXA Rosenberg Investment Management (Pending confirmation)
Additional panelists to be confirmed

< Does the current low volatility environment necessitate a review of your policy portfolio?

e

» How would low volatility strategies work in a rising interest rate environment?

o

» What are the various types of low vol strategies? What do investors need to be aware of/avoid with low volatility products?

<+ What can be the unintended consequences of these strategies? For instance, exchanging volatility risk for other ones such as interest rate
risk, sector biases, and value tilt.

+» How do you determine the appropriate allocation to these strategies?

%+ Are we underestimating risk (VAR) as a result of the current low volatility environment?

2:45 pm

Case Study

The flip side of the coin: Preserving gains amidst volatility
Apella 200

Presented by:

Schroder Investment Management

3:15 pm
Case Study
To be determined

Apella 200

3:45 pm
Coffee Break

Apella Lounge

4:15 pm
Case Study
Getting yield without taking duration risk

Apella 200

4:45 pm

Panel Discussion

Managing your fixed income allocation
Apella 200

Moderator:

» Page 6 Using Asset Allocation and Portfolio Construction to Take Advantage of Risk & Liquidity Issues
January 14-15, 2014 | Apella | New York



» Institutional Investor Forums — 3™ Annual Risk & Liquidity Forum

Marc Gauthier, Treasurer, Concordia University
Panelists to be confirmed

¢+ From a policy portfolio standpoint, given the current low rate environment, is your fixed income asset allocation a revenue contributor
still or just a risk diversification play?

% What happens to risk parity strategies when interest rates rise sharply from a low level?

++ How will you manage your fixed income allocation when rates begin rising again?

5:30 pm
Cocktail Reception

Apella Lounge

6:30 pm
Evening free for private functions

Wednesday, January 15

8:15am
Continental Breakfast

Apella Lounge

9:00 am
Investor Case Study

What happens when volatility returns? (Pending confirmation)
Apella 200

Presented by:

Jean-Francois Bureau, CFA, Chief Risk Officer, PSP Investment

9:15 am
Investor Case Study

To be determined
Apella 200

9:30 am
Presentation

To be determined
Apella 200

10:00 am
Debate

What is the right use of leverage?
Apella 200

In the past, too many funds used leverage to their detriment. Now, even many hedge funds have ratcheted back on the amount of
gearing they're employing. Is there any investment thesis left for using leverage?

10:30 am
Coffee Break

Apella Lounge

» Page 7 Using Asset Allocation and Portfolio Construction to Take Advantage of Risk & Liquidity Issues
January 14-15, 2014 | Apella | New York



} Institutional Investor Forums — 3™ Annual Risk & Liquidity Forum

11:00 am
Presentation

To be determined
Apella 200

11:30 am
Investor Case Study

How can you stay dynamic (tactical/opportunistic) while managing risk and liquidity?
Apella 200
Presented by:

Anjum T. Hussain, Director of Risk Management, Case Western Reserve University

11:45 am
Investor Case Study

Proven liquidity management strategies: Board education, committee oversight, and execution
Apella 200

Presented to:

Mike Edleson, Chief Risk Officer, The University of Chicago

12:00 pm

Panel Discussion

Putting these tools together
Apella 200

Moderator:
Sonali Dalal, Senior Director, Investment Strategy and Research, Penn State University
Panelists to be confirmed

®,

«+ Achieving diversification by asset class versus by risk

% Reporting to the Investment Committee: Which risk measures to report and how best to communicate with the members

12:45 pm
Lunch

Apella Lounge

2:15 pm
Forum Concludes

» Page 8 Using Asset Allocation and Portfolio Construction to Take Advantage of Risk & Liquidity Issues
January 14-15, 2014 | Apella | New York



B L B Bernstein Litowitz
Meeting Date Berger & Grossmann LLP
11/06/13

Agenda item

‘Partftlios Against Fraud
on Foreign Exchanges

' What the Institutional Investor
-\ Community Needs to Know

February 6, 2014

* New York City
)

uffet served at 8:00 a.m.
gram starts at 8:45 a.m.

Waldor Astoria Hotel

$199 pér night. |

"
"
"




February 6, 2014

Protecting Securities Portfolios Against Fraud

on Foreign Exchanges

What the Institutional Investor CommUn/'ly Needs to Know

Three years ago, the Supreme Court limited the scope of the federal securities laws in Morrison v. National
Australia Bank. That decision precludes U.S. investors from using the federal securities laws to recover
losses incurred on investments made on foreign stock exchanges.

As a result of this decision, many fiduciaries of U.S. institutional investors question whether:

(1) foreign jurisdictions provide a means to recover losses on foreign securities; and (2) pension funds
have adequate tools to monitor their portfolios for instances of fraud involving foreign securities, and
assess the risks and rewards of trying to recover losses incurred outside the U.S.

s this event for you??

This seminar is designed for representatives
of public pension fund systems, private money
managers and other institutional investors including:

e Executive Directors * Investment and

» Chief Executives Finance Officers
« Administrators * Fund Trustees
« General Counsel » Corporate

Governance Officers

What you have to gain

Get an inside look at the different regulatory
and legal landscapes affecting your holdings.

Hear experts speak to the potential impact
of foreign litigation on public pension and
institutional portfolios.

Know and understand best practices for
handling these complex issues and protecting

portfolio assets against securities fraud.




New York City

I

:-““” i

W
fy
“l‘

‘j‘

In the wake of Morrison, fiduciaries are increasingly being forced to consider whether to engage their
institutions in foreign litigation to recover investment losses that were caused by fraud on foreign exchanges.
It is critical for U.S. institutions to fully understand the risks — and rewards — that can result from foreign
securities litigation.

BLB&G’s one-day seminar will provide a comprehensive survey of the issues that fiduciaries confront
when assessing the systems in place to monitor securities portfolios; identify losses caused by corporate
misconduct involving securities that trade on a foreign exchange; and consider the options available to

U.S. investors to recover such losses.
Institutional investors will gain a detailed understanding of the legal recourse available in the U.S. and
abroad to address foreign corporate misconduct in their portfolios.

Academic experts, leading practitioners and pension fund
fiduciaries will address topics including:

* The Broad Impact of the Supreme Court’s Morrison Decision

» Morrison in Context: Recent Decisions Limiting Shareholder Rights

* Combating Foreign Fraud: Litigation Options for U.S. Investors

» Foreign Litigation: Risks and Rewards of Litigating Across Borders

* Risk Assessment: Monitoring Global Securities Portfolios to Identify Fraud




Registration

5 EASY WAYS TO REGISTER

ON-LINE REGISTRATION: FAX:
www.blbglaw.com/newyork Fax this formto +1 (212) 554-1444
ATTN: Chantal Jackson
E-MAIL:
Scan this form to chantalj@blbglaw.com MAIL:
Send this form, along with payment, to:
TELEPHONE: Chantal Jackson, BLB&G

1285 Avenue of the Americas
38th Floor
New York, NY 10019

Call Chantal Jackson at +1 (212) 554-1576

PAYMENT INFORMATION

The registration fee for this seminar is $250 per person.*

O Checkenclosed QO Please bill me

(Checks payable to Bernstein Litowitz Berger & Grossmann LLP)

* The registration fee covers meals in conformity with many jurisdictions’ gift/gratuity limitations or restrictions. If you are not governed by such restrictions, you

may submit a written request to waive this fee. For qualified institutional investors from the United Kingdom and Europe, the registration fee is automatically
waived unless required by your jurisdiction.

WHEN AND WHERE

February'6, 2014 The Waldorf Astoria Hotel In order to reserve a room at the speCial discounted
301 Park Avenue rate of $199 per night at the Waldorf Astoria Hotel,
New York, NY 10022 please call: 1-877-476-8792 (group code “BLB”)

212-554-3000

PERSONAL INFORMATION

Name

Title

Company

Address

Telephone

Fax

Email

How did you hear about this event?




	agenda 11.6.13
	Item #3
	Item #4
	Item #5
	Item #6
	Item #7
	Item #11
	Item #12
	Item #13
	Item #14
	Item #15
	Item #16
	Item #17
	Item #17a
	Item #17b
	Item #17c
	Item #17d


